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Our business — Introduction

We operate in a world where quality, exceptional service,
a strong safety record, technical expertise and a trusted
brand are real differentiators.

Balfour Beatty is focused on Engineering and Construction,
Professional and Support Services and Investments.

A key strength is the breadth of capability we bring to major
infrastructure projects that often require an integrated approach.

We continually assess what our customers want, and deliver it.

Balfour Beatty produced another excellent financial
performance in 2008, together with further progress in

the Group’s strategic development. We are strong both
operationally and financially. Our scale and the resilience of
our business model will serve us well in this difficult economic
environment. The majority of our work is in partnership with
public sector and regulated customers, who are long-term
Investors in infrastructure.

@

lan Tyler Chief Executive
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Group performance

Our performance demonstrates
the resilience of our business model

Strong growth in profits® and earmings”

Average net cash in the year of £239m

Order book of £12.8bn at year-end

Recent acquisitions performing well

Dividend increase of 11%

*Batore exceptional items and amortisation, and including the pre-exceptionat results of discontinued operations in adjusted
eamings per share in 2007.
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Baifour Beatty plc

Financial review

The Financial review covers the topics shown below.
Additional information can be found elsewhere in the
Annual review 2008 as indicated.

Topic Additional information

DIRECTORS” REPORT
AND ACCOUNTS 2008

The accounting policies used by the Group are outlined in Note 1 to the
financial statements, and there have been no changes to these policies in
the year. The presentation of pension costs has changed in the year, and this
s explained below,

Group trading See Annual review 2008 pages 26 to 43 for more
performance detailed comments on performance by segment.
Group cash flow More detailed anatysis on the movements in
performance net cash are shown in Note 36.

Group balance sheet A key part of the Group’s balance sheet is the
and capital structure investment in PPP concessions, which is
dealt with in detail on pages 6o 8.

Group trading performance
Results for the year
Pettentage
Fas 2007 ncrease
Revenue including joint
ventures and associates* £9486m £7488m +2T%
Group revenue® £8261m F64BBm  +2B%

Pre-tax profit from continuing operations
— before exceptiona! items and amortisation £249m  £20lm  +24%

— after exceptional items and amortisation £270m  f157m  +72%
Eamings per share

- adjusted™* 39.9p B0p +148%
— basic 42.9p Bip +22%

Continuing oparations. 7 .
**  Before exceptional items and amariisation of inangible assets, and including the pre-gxtepional
results of discontinued operations in 2007.

2008 has been an extraordinary year for the world economy. |n the early part
of the year, there were concems over the level of inflation dnven in part by the
price of oil and commadities. The risk of inflation receded to be replaced by
concems over the stability of the banking sector, and the year ended with
concems over deflation and recession.

Through this period we have demonstrated the resilience of the Groups
business mode! and in particufar the conservative management of its bafance
sheet. The lack of debi has seen the Group end the year in a very strong position.

2008 was a year of very good progress across the Group. Revenue in 2008
from continuing operations, including the Group's share of the revenue of joint
ventures and assotiaies, was £3,486m (2007; £7,488m), an increase of 27%,
of which half was attrihutable to acquisitions. Profit from operations before
exceptional items and amoriisation of intangible assets increased from £178m
1o £230m {29%}.

Pension charges of £73m (2007: £71m} have been made to the income
statement in accordance with 1AS 19, including a service charge of £38m
{2007: £47m) for tha defined benefit section of the Balfour Baatty Pension
Fund, in 2008, to help show trug underlying trading performance moverments,
the net of the expected retum on pension assets and the intarest cost of £5m
{2007: £13m} is now shown within investment income, leaving only the service
charge within profit from operations. The figures for 2007 have been
re-presented on the same basis.

Investment income, net of finance costs, reduced from £23m in 2007 to
£19m in 2008, before exceptional items. An increase in inigrest income from
net investment hedging of £6m was more than offset by a reduction of £8min
the nat retura on pension scheme assets and liabilities.

The Directars expect a further reduction in net invastment income in 2009,
as a result of a reduced pension retum, a reduction in our hedging programme
and lower interest rates.

Pre-tax profit before exceptional items and amortisation increased from
£201m to £249m {24%).

Treasury risk The financial review largely focuses on reasury

management related risk matters. A broader description of the
Group’s principal risks and risk management is
included on pages 9to 10.

Going concem To appreciate the prospects forthe Groupas a
whole, the complete Annual report and accounts
2008 needs to be read, with particular reference
to Notes 21 and 24.

Exceptional items

The Group has recorded a net exceptional gain after tax of £33m (2007: £7m).
The single biggest component of this was a £60m gain from a reduction in past
service pension liabilities in certain sections of the Balfour Beatty Pension Fund.
This resulted from measures to (imit future increases in salary used for defined
benefit pension purposes. This change is part of the work being performed to
manage the impact on the Group of the liabilities that arse from the pension
schemes.

During the year £6m of reorganisation costs were incurred, largely
resulting from the acquisition and integration o businesses.

The tax impact of these items is a net charge of £15m, in addizion o
which there was a one-off write-off of deferred tax balances of £6m in the year,
as a result of changes in tax legislation from the 2008 Finance Act relating to
the phased withdrawal of industrial building allowances.

Taxation ¢

The Group's effective tax rate in 2008 was 38% {2007: 33%) of profit from
continuing operations before taxation, exceptional items and amortisation of
intangible assats, axcluding the Group’s share of the resutts of joint ventures
and associates. Eliminating the finance cost of the preference shares which
does not attract tax relief, the Group’s effective tax rate would be 36%

{2007: 36%). The benefit of lower UK tax rates has been offset by an increase
in the peoportion of profits from higher tax countries, notably the US.

Earnings per share

Adjusted eamings per ordinary sharg increased by 14% to 39.9p{2007: 35.0n).
The percentage increase in EPS was less than the increase in profit before
tax due principally to the impact of the shares issued in May 2008.

Cash flow performance
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Cash flow performanca in the year was again strong with cash generated
from operations of £237m (2007: £277m) exceading profit from operations
of £251m {2007: £136mi.

In the year, we used some of the Graup’s cash resources 1o continue to
grow the business, and in particular cantinued to acquire businesses which had
a good fit with our sirategic objectives.

Consderation
Strategic obecive Segroent Acqusition frm
UK regional conracting  Building & Civils Dean & Dyball 46
Non-PPP and overseas Investmants Blackpool Airport 3
PPP investments GMH Military Housing 180
Prafessional services and Building Bamnhart 63
Demestic expansion outside UK
Damestic expansion outside UK Rail Schrack-Mieves 25
Various Other 16
Total 33
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Financial review

The acquisition of Balfour Beatty Communities {formerty GMH Military Housing)
in April 2008 for £180m resuited in the Group’s riet cash balance reducing
substantially, following which we raised £182m of equity in May 2008.

The Company has agreed with the trustees of the Balfour Beatty Pension
Fund 10 make deficit payments of £17m per year until April 2013. As the
agreement was back dated to the date of the last valuation, being 31 March
2007, the total deficit payments in 2008 were £29m. Deficit paymenits for other
funds during 2008 were £9m {2007: £10m in total).

Average cash in the second ha'f of the year was £254m, although the
Group’s net cash at 31 December 2008 was significantly in excess of that at
£440m (2007 £374m|, before taking into account the consolidation of £143m
{2007: £61m} of non-recourse net debt heid in wheolly-owned PPP
project companies.

The year-end position benefited from {avourable movements in exchange
rates from holding significant cash balances in the US in US dollars, although
as the US dollar cash position is broadly hedged, this will be offset, assuming
exchange rates stay &t the year-end level, by a £70m outflow in September
2003 when the hedges mature.

Balance sheet and capital structure

Goodwill and intangibles

As noted above, total consideration an acquisitions in the year amourted
1o £333m. Goodwill arising on these acquisitions amounted to £144m, and
afurther £137m of intangible assets were recognisad in respect of brand
names angd customer contracts and relationships. As a result, and after
exchange adjustments, the goodwill on the Group’s balance sheet at

31 December 2008 increased to £375m (2007: £634m) and other intangible
assets to £223m {2007; £59m|.

Impairment reviews have been caried out, and none of the goadwall
has been impaired. Details of the calculations and assumptions are shown
inNote 13,

Charges for the amortisation of intangible assets have increased io
£27m {2007: £9m} due to the impact of acquisitions, with a related tax eredit
of £7m {2007; £3m).

Public Private Partnerships {PPP}

During 2008, the Group invested £12m in a combination of equity in and
sharehoider loans to Balfour Beatty Capital’s PPP project companies.

At 31 December 2008, the Group had invested a totat of £156m in equity

and subordinated loans to its 25 continuing PPP project companies and had
committed to provide a further £89m aver the period 2009 to 2012. The Group
has also been appointed preferred bidder for a further four PPP projects io
which it is expected at financial close to commit to provide approximately
£98m funding.

At 31 December 2008, the Group's share of non-recourse net debt
within Balfour Beatty Capital’s continuing PPP project companies amounted
to £1,511m {2007: £1,418m), compnsing £1,368m {2007: £1,357m) in relation
ta joint ventures and associates as disclesed in Note 16.2 and £143m
{2007: £61m) on the Group balance sheet in relation to wholty-owned
project companies as disclosed in Note 24.1.

The Group's share of the results of the military bousing PPP concessions
of Baliour Beatty Communities is contractualty limited to 2 maximum
pre-agreed level of retum on funds invested, which is shown under the equity
method of accounting within joint ventures and associates. The Group's
investment in those concessions is recorded on the balance sheet at the initiat
equity investment plus the valug of the Group’s accrued prefemred retivn. The
fee income which is the bulk of the retum eamed by the Group from these
concessians is included within Group operating profit

The Directors have camied out a valuation of the Group’s PPP concessions,
including the military housing PPP concessions of Baffour Beatty Communities,
and this is set out on pages 6 o B.

Infrastructure investments

in 2008, the Group added to its existing nan-PPP infrastructure investment
porifolio, comprising the Group’s 25.5% interest in Barking Power and 60%
stake in Exeter Intemational Airport, by purchasing a 3% stake in Blackpool

intemational Airport. At 31 December 2008, the Group's share of non-recourse
net debt in elation 10 these investiments amounted 1 £20m {2007: £24m), as
disciosed in Note 16.2.

Pensions

The Group's balance shestincludes aggregate deficits of £261m {2007: £286m)
for the Group’s pension funds based on the assumptions set out in Note 26.1.
The Group recordad net actuarial losses for 2008 on those funds tatalling
£62m {2007: £1m loss), with the effects of the higher discount rates applied

10 the funds” liabilities countesed by worse than expected retumns on the assets
held by the furds.

The last formal actuarial valuation of the Balfour Beatty Pansion Fund was
carried cut at 31 March 2007 and showed & funding pesitian of 96%. A formal
actuarial valuation of the Railways Pension Scheme was camied out at
31 December 2004 and showed a funding position of 92%. Formal actuarial
valuations of the Mansell schemes were camied out at 31 March 2005 and
31 July 2005 for the Hall & Tawse Retirement Benefit Plan and the Mansell pic
Pension Schame and showed funding positions of 79% and 78% respectively.

Note 26 includes a sensitivity analysis which idantifies the impact on the
profit and boss account and the balance sheet from changes in the assumptions.

Graph removed

Equity raising

In May 2008, the Company successfully placed 43.3m shares at a price of 430p,
raising £182m of cash. This equated to just under 10% of the Company's issuad
ordinary share capital. This resuited in the total number of ordinary sharas in
issug at the end of the yaar being 478m {2007 433m| and the average number
of shares in the year being up 6% at 458m (2007 430m}

Dividend policy

Balfour Beatty aims to grow the dividend broadly in line wath the growth in
eamings, 1aking into account the investment needs of the business. The Board
has recommended a final dividend of 7.7pin respect of 2008, giving a full-year
dividend of 12.8p{2007: 11.5p), up 11% on last year. Underlying dividend cover
for 2008 is 3.1, simifar 10 the cover of 3.0 lastyear,

Treasury risk management

The Groups financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise cash

and liquid investments, and borrowings. The Group enters into derivatives
transactions [principally forward foreign currency contracts and interest rate
swaps) to manage the currency and interest rate fisks arising from the Groups
operations and its sources of finance.

Itis, and has been throughout the period under review, the Group's
policy that no speculative trading in financial instrurnents shall be undertaken.
Compliance with policy is monitored through regular reporting and intemal
audits. The Board reviews and agrees palicies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised belaw.

Details of the Group’s financia! sisk factors and financial instruments are
shown in Note 21.




Finance and liquidity risk
The Group’s pelicy remains to carry na significant net debt, other than the non-
recourse borrowings of companies engaged in PPP projects and infrastructuse
investments.

Balfour Beatty's cash and liquid investments comprise cash, term deposits
and the use of money market liquidity funds,

Additionally, the Group has a series of bifateral facitities which total
£404m, the majority of which mature in 2012. The purpose of these facilities
is 10 provide liquidity from a group of core rlationship banks to support
Balfour Beatty in its current and future activities.

Graph removed

Treasury counterparty risk
Treasury counterparty risk is monitorad regularly and mitigated by limiting
deposits in value and duration to reflect the credit rating of the counterparty.

Contract bonds

In the normal course of its business, the Group arranges for financial
institutions to provide customers with guarantees in connection with its
contracting activities (commonly refesred to as “bonds”). Such bonds provide
a customer with a level of financial protection in the event that a contractor
fails to meet its commitments under the terms of a contract. In retum for
issuing the bonds, the financial institutions receive a fee and a counter-
indemnity from Balfour Beatty plc. As at 31 December 2008, contract bonds
in issue by financial institutions covered £3.7bn (2007: £2.1bn) of contract
commitments of the Group.

Balfour Beatty plc

DIRECTORS REPORT
AND ACCOUNTS 2008

The Group's businesses manage their known foreign currency transactional
exposures by 1aking out forward foreign exchange contracts through Group
Treasury. The Group has decided not to adopt hedge accounting for its foreign
curency transactional exposures except whera the exposure is in excess of
pre-set materiality limits in which case a decision is made as to whether to
hedge account or notL As a result, there was a charge to profit of £3m which
would otherwise have been charged directly te equity.

The Group also faces currency exposures on the translation into sterling
of the profits of overseas subsidiaries and associates, primarily in the US and
Europe, and on its overseas trading transactions. Balfour Beatty does not hadge
these profit transtation exposures as these are an accounting rather than cash
exposure. However, the effect of volatile short-termm cumrency movements on
profits is reduced because the Group accounts for currency profits using
average exchange rates.

In addition the Group is exposed to currency exposures from translation
of the net assets of overseas subsidiaries and associates. Balance sheet
translation exposure can be managed by matching net assets denomingted in
currencies other than sterling by wey of forward foreign exchange contracts.
The hedging policy is reviewed periadically to consider the potential cash effect
of the hedging programme againsi the potential effect that the movement in
currencies can have on the Group's net assets, and the level of hedging is
adjusted accordingly. Given the growth in the Group’s net assets and the
additional focus on cash due o the economic climate the ievel of hedging
in 2008 was reduced. As at 31 Becember 2008 approximately 45% of the
LS dollar deniominated net assets were hedged {2007: B1%), and none of the
Euro denominated assets {2007: 81%). The level of US dollar hedging broadly
equated to the level of US dollar cash balances that were held.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant barrowings {excluding PPP non-recousse tem
Ioans). Group poficy is for PPP concesstons ta use interest raie swaps to swap
floating rate borrowings to fixed rates to mitigate the risk of changing interest

_rates on the project cash flows, The Group's deposits (excluding PPP

guaranteed investment contracts} earn interest at variable rates and are
short-term in nature.

Going concem
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Currency risk in reviewing the future prospects of the Group the following factors
The following exchange raies were applied in the preparation of the accounts: @@ relevant:
Average rates * the Group has a strong order backlog, and good forward visibility;
Elbus i) 3007 Cage  ® growth in the business is expected to continue to generate additional cash
UsD 186 200 {7y%  thiough cash backed profit and
EUR 12%6 148 {141% o the Group had in excess of £400m net cash at 31 December 2008, in addition
Closing rates 10 which it had undrawn committed facilities in excess of £400m, of which
g £779m lzst through untl the fouth quarter of 2012,
£1buys bt ] 07 Charge . . . . —_—
USD 146 199 177 Based on the above, and having made appropriate enquiries and reviewed
EUR 1‘05 1.36 (23)‘%2 medium-term cash forecasts, the Directors consider it reasonable 1o assume

that the Group and the Company have adequate resources to continue for the
foreseeable future and, for this reason, have continued 10 adapt the going
concem basis in preparing the accounts.

Do

Duncan Magrath Finance Director

(Graph removed
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Directors’ valuation of PPP concessions

GGraph removed Graph removed

Graph removed | Graph removed

Movement in value 2007/2008 (Em)

New Operational
Equity Unwind of project performance 208 2 Growth
2007 imvested  Distributions discount Rebased wins__ Acquisitions gans lexcl FX}  transiation 008 (e P
Balfour Beatty
Capital 306 1 (Zn n m 32 1 10 360 - 360 136%
Balfour Beatty
Communities 123* 8 (18} 10 123 1 15 6 145 5 19% 179%
Total 429 19 (45) 37 440 K 16 16 505 51 556 148%
Balfour Beatty Capital restated 2007 Directors’ valuation
2007 Restated 2007
2007 Directors’ Move I 2007 Mven  Alemaive Move1opost )
Directors” Uowind P8 valuation ne 80%  Dimectors’ 80% valuation  shareholder Alemative
husati discount  PBdiscount  distountrate valuation  discountrate post t2x x  valuati

Balfour Beatty Capital 293 3 302 4 306 {93} 399 (67) 466
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DIRECTORS” REPORT
AND ACCOUNTS 2008

Balfour Beatty plc

DCF

Balfour Beatty's PPP concession portfolio has grawn both organically and
through acguisition to become a very significant part of the Group's business
and a rajor driver of shareholder value. At 31 December 2008, Balfour Beatty
had total committed equity and subordinatad debt of £516m across 47 projects
{23 UK, 17 US and 1 Singapore}, four of which were at prefemed bidder stage.
At that date, £302m had zlready been invested and £214m is due over the next
six years. The accounting book value of PPP investments at 31 December 2008
was £295m (2007; £209m).

In order to provide an indicator of valug, Balfour Beatty publishes its own
valuation benchmark for the Group's PPP investments, based on discounting
expected future cash flows ("DCF valuation™} but without taking into account
potential refinancing gains. The valuations do not incluce Balfour Beatty's
nan-PPP infrastructure investments in Barking Power, Exeter Intemational
Airport and Blackpoo! intemational Airport.

Directors’ valuation

The method used 1o value the PPP concession portfolia is discounted cash flow
{“DCF"). This is appied to the future forecast cash flows t which Balfour Beatty
as a shareholder and a holder of subordinated debt is entitled in order to create
a net present valug. DCF has been used on all the investments. For projacts
which have reached financial close, forecasi fuiure cash flows are extracted
from detailed financial models, updated in line with operational experience
and lendars’ requirements. For projects at preferred bidder stage, the curent
financial model has been used.

Discount rate

I order to simplify the valuation methodology, and to align the valuation more
readily with market benchmarks, the Directors have adopted a single discount
rate of B.0% nominal post shareholder tax to value the portiolio of closed

and preferred bidder projects. The Directors’ valuation of Balfour Beatty
Capital’s portfalio at 31 December 2007 of £299m restated for this approach

At 31 December 2008, the Diractors’ valuation of Batfour Beatty's PPP
concession portfolio stood at £556m, at a post-tax nominal discount rate of
8.0% (2007, £306m). The movement in value arises principally through the
“acquisition on 30 April 2008 of Batfour Beatty Communities (formerly GMH
Military Housing). In addition, shareholder cash inflows and outflows during the
year, acquisitions, project wins, operational performance gains and underlying
growth in the portfolio arising from the unwinding of the discount fiom year

to year also had an effect.

The Directors’ valuation incorporates all future distributions to equity
and repayment thereof, interest and principal payments on shareholder
subordinated debt and fees payable to shareholders frem projects that have
either reached financial close or are at the preferred bidder stage. The DCF
valuation does not take into accouns profits made by other Balfour Beatty
Group companies that perform the construction, maintenance or facilities
management sefvices associated with the projects.

Acquisition of Balfour Beatty Communities

consequently increases to £306m as at that date. The Directors’ vahuation
of Balfour Beatty's PPP concession portfolic is sensitive to the discount rate
adopted. The valuations for a range of discount rates are shown on page 8.

Shareholder tax

Balfour Beatty receives a number of cash flow streams from its investments.
Most, but not ali, of these cash flows are subject to tax upan receipt by the
Balfour Beatty Group. The Directors’ valuation iakes into account thes cash
flows after the imposition of taxation upan the Group and thus uses a post
tax discount rate. The post tax discount rate of 8.0% used in the Directors’
valuation equates to a discount rate of 10.3% (3.4% for Balfour Beatty Capital
and 12.5% far Balfour Baatty Communities} were the value of the cash flows
1o be reported before the imposition of Group taxation, 2 methodology alse
curently used in the marketplace.

Operational performance gains

Balfour Beatty acquired Balfour Beatty Communities an 30 April 2008 for
consideration of £177m ($350m}. This comprised working capital £7m ($13m),
the existing portfolio and preferred bidder projects £123m{$244m) {including
related tax benefit of £26m ($51m)), and £47m {333m] for the ability of the
management team 1o win future projects {the “Pipeling”). The Directors”
valuation of the Batfour Beatty Communities portfolio at 31 December 2008
of £196m ($286m) represants only the closed and preferred bidder projects
acquired, plus post acquisition movements. All projects involve the
simultaneous transfer of responsibility for existing housing stock and
commencement of construction activity at financial close and are therefore
classified as operations.

Balfaur Beatty Communities holds a market teading position in the US
military housing secior for married personnel {*MPH"} and derives its income
both from fees associated with managing construction and aperatians and from
retums on equity and debt capital. The value at acquisition attributed to the
future Pipeline projects, but notincluded in the Directors’ valuation, reflects
the company’s ability to secure further projecis in the MPH sector as well as
leveraging its market ieading position to secure projects in the developing
unaccompanied personnel militzry housing sector {"UPH"} and into the US PPP
market generally.

The valuation method

In 2008, aperational performance gains arise principally from operational
improvements identified leading to a revision of the futune cost and/or
revenue forecasts.

Translation gain

The USD exchange rate on 30 April 2008, the acquisition date of Balfour Beatty
Communities, was 1.98. At 31 December 2008 the exchange rate was 1.46,
generating an unrealisad gain on translation relating to the Balfour Beatty
Communities portolio valuation of £51m. (f the Balfour Beatty Capita! portfolio
of 30 projects, one project, ITE West in Singapore, has non GBP denominatad
cash flows. The unrealised translation gain on the value of [TE West is immateriat
and does not register in the movement analysis. The values of Batfour Beatty
Communities and the ITE West project are included in the Directors” valuation as
at 31 December 2008 at the exchange rates prevailing on that date.

The valugs shown as at 31 Decamber 2008 for equity committed of £516m
and equity invested of £302m include the acquired Balfour Beatty Communities
parfolio of £123m (S244m) together with equity contribwted during the year at the
exchange rate applicable at the acquisition date of 1.98, A further £27m ($39m] of
future equity commitments for Batfour Beatty Communities have been translated
into sterling at the 31 Decernber 2008 exchange rate of 1.46. Inaddition, the
rovement in value analysis for Balfour Beatty Communities between years has
been vanslated at an exchange rate of 1.98; the movement between that rate and

The valuation does not set out to estimate the market value of the investments
in the partiolio, but rather, through the application of a consistent methodology.
illustrates movements in urkierlying values between periods and highlights the
impact of intervening transactions. The valuation covers 43 contessions that
have reached financial close and a further four at preferred bidder stage.

the year-end exchanga rate is shown separately as FX sanstation.
Assurance

The calculations underpinning the valuation have been independently checked
to ensure that the valuation has been accurately carried out in accordance with
the specified methodology. Howeves, the detailed financial models have not
been audited.
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Directors’ valuation of PPP concessions
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Principal risks and risk management

The identificztion, assessment, pursuit and management of apportunities as to assass if the aggregation effect of lower-level fisks is material.
and the associated risks is an integra! and inseparable part of management  Such reviews identify the extent to which further initiatives are required,

skills and processes. These are a core element of activity throughaut the for examyple, to develop specific additional risk managemant capability

Group and, as such, are especially important for stakeholders. and mitigation measures. The output from these reviews is contained in
As referred to in the Directors’ report, under the heading “Risk reports to the Board and Audit Committee.

management” on page 15, a Group-wide risk management system underpins Furthermiore, senior managament at operating company and Group

and assists in the delivery of this principle, leve! review reguiarly the opportunity and risk management system and
The system is founded upon a process that drives perceived its application with a view to identifying potential improvements to the

opportunities and risks progressively, against formal impact and likefihood system and/or its application. The output from these reviews is capiured in
rating criteria, up through the management chain for review and challenge.  development plans, which are reviewed a1 Group level. Progress against the
In addition to a discrete review of each individual opportunity and risk,  plans is reported upon three times a year to Group senior management and

various exercises are carried out at Group fevel, three times a year, 10 the Board and Audit Committee. Occasionally, independent third parties are
identify key issues facing the Group as a whaole, the changing risk profile engaged to assist the Group with the identification and implemeniation of
facing the Group and emerging issues that may affect the Group, as well potential improvements.
Risk management process
Business Opportunities Benefits and risks Action plans Risk mitigation . .
P p i . Periodic reviews
objectives and risks are are assessed are developed delivery is reviewed o 1o Board level
are defined identified and quantified to mitigate risks on an ongeing basis P
Principal risks and risk management exposure to infrastructure markets mitigates the risk of changes in
government/regulaied entities’ expenditure policy in any one market.
The following tzble shows the key business risks, which are then The difficult economic environment has also seen increased
addressad below. competition n tenders for work in some private ma_rkets and has also
s T resulted in chafenges in complet!ng peoject financing.
Extemnal » Economic environment Increased customer expectations B )
* Increased customer expectations Customers are increasingty demanding the provision of an integrated
« Commercial counterparty solvency  approach to the dgllvery of infrastructure projects. Thg Gmup has specialist
» |egal and regulatory operating companies which support cross-Group activities and provide
Stategic « Bidding customers with management af the delivery of those services.
« Joint venture Commercial counterparty sclvency
= Acquisition The Group's financial exposure o any of its major customers, subconiractors
» Investmant and suppliers is mitigated by rigorous checks on their financial strength prior
Drganisation and management o Growth to the signing of contracts. To the extent possible, the Group seeks to ensure
e People that it is not over-reliant on any one counterparty.
. E\ufglr?:;tsigt? rt.ggtﬁ;ology Legal and regulatory o _ _
« Information security The Group operates in a diverse number of territaries and its businesses are
— - therefore subject to a number of complex, demanding and evolving legal and
Financial and treasury » Treasury risk management regulatory requirements. In addition to ensuring rigosous compliance with
. ?rgaagc?yagg 'r“?g;g;% existing regulations, the Group tontinually monitors and responds o legal
L] L ] .
and regulatory developments.
» Contract bonds guistory P
» Currancy L ,
 Interestrate Strategic risks
» Pension

The Group is particularly aware of the patential for importing risk into
Periormance the business by way of winning new contracts, forming joint ventures,
Supply chain ) acquiring businessas or investment, Rigorous processes are tharefore in
Health, safety and emvironmental  pjace far managing such exposure within a specified opportunity and risk

management framawork that applies 1o all operating companies and Group
External risks functions, as follows:
Bidding
The Group's oparating companies bid selectively for a large number of
contracis each year and a more Hmited number of concession oppostunities.
Tenders and invesiment appraisals are developed in accordance with
: thorough processes for estimating and risk identification and assessment,
Economic eavironment with particular attention to new or unique characteristics. They are subject
The Group has a broad exposure to infrastruciure markets across its various 1o formal review and approval by tender review and investment committees
operating corpanies. A significant proportion of the Group’s revenue flows  established at Board, sector or aperating company level depending upon the
from contracts founded upon government policy and/ar public funding. value and nature of the contract.
The current ecopomiq en\{ironment WY CAUSE S0ME Customers to delay Joint venture
goﬁgtg?é]: i?gg;ﬁgaé;gzE's;r(r;redr:atrabr:)%is%ﬁzrgfégzﬂaé}c;glgrrlusmlch Joini ventures are formed for contracts where to do so will strengthen the

’ quality of the bic and prospects of delivering a contract successiully.

Delivery and operational

The Group addresses continually the impact of the external business
environmen, updating as appropriaie its strategy and medium-term
planning, both at Group and operating company level. Areas of focus
includg the following:

w
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Principal risks and risk management

Procedures are in place o ensure that joint venture parters bring skills,
experience and resources that complement and add te those provided from
within the Group.
Acquisition
The Group seeks to identify, in afignment with its strategy, a small number
of acquisitions in defined sectors. Group management project manages the
due diligence, with operating companies drawing on their gwn resources
and thosa from other parts of the Group, in order to ensure that the most
appropriate personnel, with relevant experience and knowledge, conduct
the detailed due diligence. Where recessary, specialist extemal resources
are engaged.

Post-acquisiiion integration is closely managed, drawing on
the detailed due diligence material and integration tracker system for
each functional activity, with reviews conducted formally at prescribed
periods following the acquisition. As the Group grows, it recognises that
acquisitions may bring new approaches 10 opportunity and risk management
from which the Group can learn and these are considered as part of regular
improvement reviews.

Investment

The Group promotes and invests in @ number of privately-funded
infrastructure assets, in selected sectors, both in the UK and internationally.
The Group’s approach 1o such opportunities is on a limited recourse finance
basis in those business sectors where it has appropriate experience.

It uses this platform as a basis for moving incrementally inte new seciors
with appropriate partners. The degree of leverage associated with such
investments reinforces the need for the application of a rigorous risk
management precess drawing on standard aperating procedures.

Such activity is conducted by a discrete group of personnel with extansive
experience in the relevant fields of activity, The consequent delivery risk
arising on investment activities is managed and mitigaied by the careful
selection of delivery and service parners.

Organisation and management risks

Information technology

The Group is conscious of the reliance placed on IT systems as a platform
for efficient defivery of day-to-day operational activitizs and for knowledge
gathering and sharing. Following an intemal review, supporied by an
independent third-party review team, the Group has positioned itsalf to
respond more rapidly to increasing demands in this area, by augmenting
its central 17 team, to work with operating companies and Group functions
1¢ davelop and deliver further imarovements in line with the Group’s IT and
disasier recovery strategies.

Information security

In common with most large organisations, the Group is expased io potential
infarmation security threats and consequently takes active steps to protect
both its customers’, and partners’ as well as its own information and
systems from loss or compromise. The Group currently has an initiative

in progress 1o upgrade further its capabilities in this area, following an
independent third-party review to identify areas where already effactive
protection may be strengthened.

Financial and treasury risks

The Financial review from page 3, together with Note 21 to the accounts,
addresses the Group's financial and treasury risks.

Pension

The Group's pension deficit in respect of its defined benefit schemes

is subjact to changes in market conditions and incraasing fongevity
assumptions. The assets of the schemes are managed in the light of
updated liability assumptions. [n addition, specific steps have baen taken
during the year to restrict certain future increases in the pringipal defined
benefit scheme's liabilities and these are detailed on page 3 of the
Financial review and in Note 25 to the accounts.

Delivery and operational risks

As the Group grows, it responds to the challenges this brings to its
organisationat and management structures, in particular:

Growth

The recent and sustained pace of growth of the Group has acted as a
catalyst for a number of targeted reviews of the Group's organisation and
management structure. Where the resulis of such reviews indicate a need
for changes, these are made promptly, with the allocation of suitably
experienced and qualified stafi.

People

The retention and recruitment of staff is a key challenge for a business
which is growing bath organically and by acquisition. Defined recruitment
and remuneration processes exist at a local level and are centrally
co-ordinated to ensuse that the Group is competitive and continues to
atract the best candidates.

As part of its overall talemt management process the Group has well
developed succession planning procedures which have ensured that high
calibre managemeant is developed and successfidly retained within the
Group to fill key roles as they arise. In addition, where appropriate, the
Group seeks to complement and supplement its existing talent pool with
seltected strategic hires from outside the Group.

Business conduct

The Group expects the highest standards of integrity and conduct from

all its employees in their dealings with customers, suppiiers and othes
stakehalders. The Group's "Business Conduct Guidelines” and “Stakeholder
Codes of Practice” clearly set out a framawork of behaviour expected by the
Group of its employees and operating companies. The Group is carrying out
a review of its existing codes of practice to ensure they are consistent with
best practice. More details are given in the Corporate responsibility
statement on page 45 of the Annual review 2008.

The Group is engaged on a wide range of contracts e.g. asset creation, '
long-term maintenance, facilities management and asset management, :
with the successful discharge of ali contracts being controlled and managed

through the Group's operating structure. Indelivering these contracts,

rigorous processes are in place for managing the potential risk exposure:

Performance

The Group's procedures embrace regular and frequent reviews with an
aganda centred on heaith, safety and environmental performance, issues
affecting delivery and the impact on costs to completion and forecast
revenue, Where the Group provides services o manages the defivery of
such services on behalf of clients or manages assets, such reviews also
concentrate on key operational and performance measures. This approach
is underpinned by a continuing focus on assurance as to the effectivenass
of the relevant controls. Emphasis is also placed on ensuring that the
assurance mechanism respands to the challenges posed by the

Group’s growth.

Supply chain

The execution of a large number of the Group's contracts is dependant

on the availability of appropriately skifled subcontractors. An increasing
proportion of the Group's supply base is retained in long-term relationships
based on their alignment with the aims and ebjectives of the Group, in !
particular, in respect of adherence to health and safety, ethical standards
and financial stability. as well as product quality and price.

Health, safety and environmental

The Group has further enhanced the attention it gives to HS&E, along with
the continuing objective of improving its performance, as embraced in the
safety commizment, Zero Hamm, as reperted on in mose detail in the Chief
Executive's review on page 12 and Corporate responsibility statement from
page 44 of the Annual review 2008,




Directors’ report

Business and financial review
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The Chairman’s statement, the Chief Exacutive's review, the Operating
review and the Cosporate responsibility statement, included in the Annual
review 2008 and the Financial review from pages J 1o 5, which report on
the principal activities of the Group, its operations during 2008 and future
developments in its businesses arg incorporated by reference into the
Directors’ report and accounts 2008.

Results and dividends

The resulis for the year are shown in the audited financial statements
presented on pages 27 10 93 and are explained more fully in the Chief
Executive's review, the Operating review and the Financial review.
An interim dividend payment of 5.1p {net) per ardinary share was approved
by the Board an 12 August 2008 and a final dividend of 7.7p {net) per
ordinary share will be recommended at the Annual General Meeting
making a totat of 12.8p (net} per ordinary share. This compares with a total
dividend per ordinary share of 11.5p {net}in 2007. Preference dividends
totalling 10.75p (gross) per preference share have been paid for 2008
{2007 10.75p (gross) per preference share).

The Directors continued to offer the dividend reinvestment plan {DRIP}.

Research and development

The Group continues to be committed to investment in research and
development in all its areas of activity. This covers new products and
processes and innovation in areas such as infarmation technology and
asset management systems. A range of development initiatives is
undertaken throughout the businesses which is suppaorted by links with
selected universities.

A Graup innovation forum has been formed which is one of several
fora through which the Campany is enhancing the sharing of knowledge
and the encouragement of joint working between the various businesses.
The forum has representatives from each of the Group's operating
companies. Improving the ability to tap into the depth and breadth of
expertise and capability which exists within the Group, and sharing it,
is seen as a key enabler and caizlyst for innovation, as well as sesving
to identify where the Group can respond better to the needs of its
various stakeholders.

Details of the Group's 2008 research and development expenditure ars
given in Note 4.1 on page 40.

Share capital and shareholders

DIRECTORS  REPORT
AND ACCOUNTS 2008

At 31 December 2008, the Directars had authority, under the sharehalders”
resolutions approved at the AGM and separate Class meeting held in

May 2008, to purchase through the market 43,314,839 ordinary shares
and 16,775,968 preference shares at prices set out in thase resotutions.
This autharity expires at the conclusion of the separate Class meeting
which will follow the 2003 AGM. .

Thioughout the year, all the Company's issued share capital was
publicly listad on the London Stock Exchange and it remains so &s at
the date of this report. There are no specific restrictions on the size of 8
shareholding nor on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the
Articles of Association and the grevailing law. The Directors are not aware
of any agreements betwean holders of the Company's shares that may
result in restrictions on the transfer of shares of on voting rights.

Details of employee share schemes are set out in Note 31 on pages 79
and BD. Shares held by the Balfour Beatty Employee Share Ownership Trust
are not voted.

There is no person who has special rights of cantrol over the
Company's share capital and all issued shares are fully paid. A number
of the Company's significant banking, joint venture and contract bond
agreements include provisions which become exercisable by a counterparty
upon a change of control of the Company. These include the right of a
counterparty to request additional security and to terminate an agreement.

As at 4 March 2009, the Company had been notified in accordance
with the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the Financial Services
Authority of the following interests in its ordinary share capital:

Nurrer Percentage
of orcinary  of ordinary shares
shares held held

Standard Life Investments Limited 42,849,463 8.96%
Lioyds Banking Group plc 33,370,340 6.98%
Legal & General Group plc 32,807,704 6.86%
Prudential ple 25,285,102 5.28%
Schroder Investment Management Limited 22 (057 837 461%

Directors

Details of the share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2008,
including the rights attaching to each class of share, are set out in Note 28
on pages 73 and 74. During the year to 31 December 2008 no ordinary
shares were repurchased for cancellation and 300,017 preference shares
{representing 0.27% of the preference share capital) were repurchased for
cancellation for 2 total consideration of £407,337 at an average price of
135.8p. 1,266,053 ordinary shares were issued following the exercise of
options held under the Company's savings-related share option scheme
and 334,927 ordinary shares were issued following the exercise of options
held under the Company’s executive share option schemes.

On 15 May 2008, a total of 43,320,411 new ordinary shares in the
Company were placed with institutions at a price of 430p per ordinary share
raising £182m after issue costs. This placing represented an increase of
approximately {but less than) 10% of the issued ordinary share capital.
These placing shares were issued fully paid and ranked pari pass in all
respects with the existing ordinary shares.

The names of the Directors ai the year-end are shown on pages 52 and 53 of
the Annual review 2008 together with brief biographica! details. Full details
of Directors’ sarvice agraements, emoluments and share interests, ¢an be
found in the Bemuneration report on pages 18 to 23.

Sir David John and Hans Christaph von Rohr retired from the Beard on
15 May 2008 and 9 September 2008 respectively and Hubertus Krossa was
appointed as a non-executive Direcior on 9 September 2008.

Duncan Magrath and Andrew McNaughton were appointed as
executive Directors an 31 March 2008 and 1 January 2009 respectively, and
Graham Roberts was appointed as a non-executive Director with effect from
1 January 2009,

Steve Marshall, lan Tyler and Peter Zinkin are due to retire by rotation
as Directors at ihe forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election. Hubertus Krossa, Andrew McNaughton and Graham Roberts,
who have been appointed by the Board since the date of the last AGM, will
offer themselves for election in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association.

Non-executive Directars are appointed for specific three-year terms
and it is part of the terms of reference of the Nomination Commiiteg io
review all appointments of non-executive Direciors at three year intervals,
or as near 1o that as is practicable and make recommendations 1o the
Board accordingly.

The Board consigers that all the non-executive Directors continue
to be independent.

"
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Details of the number of meetings of, and attendances a1, the Board
meetings and meetings of the Audit, Busingss Practices, Nomination and
Remuneration Committees during the year are sat out in the table following.

Bresiness
Fractees Nomiratron  Resmuneration

Mame ! Direclor Board Audd
M J Donovan 10010) 34 343 34) -
S L Howard 910} 23 22 414) 33}
Sir David John® 55} - - 1{1) -
G EH Krossa™ 4(4) o[ 111} - -
D J Magrath* 7 - - - -
S Marshall 10{10} 44 22) 44) A3}
AL P Rabin 910 - - - -
~ HC von Rohr® 57} 33 22 - 33
G H Sage 1010} 24) - 34 33}
P Tyler 1010) - - 4(4) -
R J W Walvis 10{10} 11} 22) 34 33)
P J L Zinkin 9410} = - - —
Notes:

(1) The number shown in brackets is the total number of meetings the
Direciors could attend either following their appointment during the year,
or as a resuit of changas to Commiitee memberships.

{2} Retired on 15 May 2008.

{3} Appeinted on 9 Septamber 2008.

{4} Appointed on 31 March 2008.

{5} Retired on 9 Septermber 2008.

Owing to the changas in the compasition of the Board, the membership
of each of the Company’s Board Commitiees has been reassessed.
As a1 4 March 2009, the membership of the Commitiees is as follows:

Auda Business Fractices Nor:naton Remuneration

Steve Marshall  StephenHoward  Steve Marshall  Robert Walvis
{Chairman}® {Chairman| {Chairmany {Chatrman}

Mike Donovan  Mike Donovan  Mike Donoven  Stephen Howard

Hubertus Krossa  Hubertus Krossa  Stephen Howard  Hubertus Krossa

Directors’ indemmnities

The Company grants an indemnity t0 all of its Directors to the extent
permitiad by law. Thess indemnity ameunts are uncapped in refation 10
centain losses and liabilities which Directors may incur to third parties, in
the course of acting as a Director of the Company, or in any affice where
such dutias are perfarmed at the request of the Board, or as a result of their
appointment as Directors.

Directors’ training

Directors receive a significant induction programme and a rangs of
information about the Company when they join the Board. This includes
considerable background information on Balfaur Beatty, its codes of
business conduct and ethics, processes for dealing in Balfous Beatty shares
and Board procedures. In addition, they also take part in a series of one-to-
one mesatings with other members of the Board and senior executives which
include briefings on the Company's business strategy, financial procedures
and business development. The training programme is supplementad
throughout the year by a series of intemnal and extemnal updates, including
visits 10 operating companies to meet local management and visiis 10
Balfour Beatty projects both in the UK and overseas. Normally, day-long
meetings take place for each non-executive Director four timas each year.
Presenitations on ad-hog topics are then arranged as appropriate, for
example, on new material laws or regulations as they affect the Group or
the Directars. In addition, each Director has been enrolled in an external
facility which provides a wide-ranging programeme of technical briefing,
education and training.

Auditors

Graham Roberis? Steve Marshall  Gordon Sage Steve Marshall
Gordon Sage Graham Roberts  1an Tyler Gordon Sage
Robert Walvis Robert Walvis

Notes:

{1} Steve Marshall coniinues as chairman of the Audit Committee until
5 March 2009,

(2} On 5 March 20089, Graham Raberts will assume the role a5 chairman of
the Audit Committee and has been designated the member with recent
and relevant financial experience.

Directors’ interests

No Director had any matarial interest in any contract of significance with
the Group during the period under review. The Direciors have put in place
procedures to ensure the Board collectively and the Directars individually
comply with the disclosure requirements on conflicts of interest introduced
on 1 October 2008 under the Companies Act 2006. The interests of Directors
in the share capital of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings and their
interests under the long-tesm incentive schemes (the Performance Share
Plans 2001 and 2006}, the deferrad bonus plan and in respect of share
options, are set out in the tables in the Remuneration repori commenting

on page 18.

Deloitte LLP {previousty Delaitte & Touche LLP, the firm having changed its
name on 1 December 2008) have indicated their wallingness to continue
as auditors to the Company and a resolution for their appointment will be
proposed at the AGM.

Corporate governance and the Combined Code

Overview

The Company is committed 1o high standards of corporate governance.
The UK Listing Authority requires listed companies to disclese, in relation
to Section 1 of the Combined Coda issued by the Financial Reporting
Council which is appended to the UK Listing Rules, how they have applied
its principtes and whether they have complied with its provisions through
the accounting period. The Company has complied with the requirements
of the UK Listing Authority refating to the provisions of the Combined Code
throughout the accounting periad other than in two respacts:

{i) Code provision C.3.1 — The chairman of the Audit Committee: following
Steve Marshall's appointment as Chaimman of the Company, the Board
decided that he should continue as chairman of the Audit Committee
temporarily pending the appointment ef a successor. Graham Roberts
was appointed non-executive Directoron 1 January 2009 and he will
assume the chairmanship of the Audit Committee on 5 March 2009.

{ii} Code provision C.3.4 — Whistleblowing arrangements: the effectivenass

of the Group's whistleblowing pracedures is kept undes review by the

Business Practices Committee {BPC) and not by the Audit Commitiee.

The principal reason for this is that the BPC, in particular, focuses on the

Company's business conduct, its ethics and values and whistleblowing

is an integral element within this overall remit. In addition, from the

Company's experience, whistleblowing-type complaints often relate

to non-financial matters and, in particular, employment issues.

Honorary President

Viscount Weir is Honorary President of the Company, having been
appointed to this position in May 2003, following his retirement
as Chaiman.



Chairman

Steve Marshall became Chairman in May 2008, having joined the Board in
November 2005. Steva Marshall spends an average of two days per week
on the business of the Company. He has other commitments as non-
exacutive chaimman of Delta pic and as a non-execurive director of
Southern Water. The Board considers that these other commitments are
not of such a nature as to hinder his activities as Chairman of the
Company or Committess.

The Board
The Board cumently comprises 12 Directors, of whom seven, including the
Chairman, are non-executive. Details of the changes during the year ¢an be
found under the heading “"Directors” on page 11. The Directars believe that
the Board continues to include an appropriate balance of skills and retains
the ability to provide effective leadership to the Group.

Sir David John retired as Chairman following the AGM on 15 May
2008 whereupon Steve Marshall became Chairman. Throughout 2008,
lan Tyler has been Chief Executive and the Senior independent Director
has been Robert Walvis.

The Board is collectively rasponsible for the success of the Company
and has a formal schedule of matters reserved for its decision. Its role is
to determine the strategic direction of the Company within a framework
of prudent and effective controls which enables risks to be assessed and
managed; to approve annual budgets, financial reporting, major acquisitions
and disposals and significant capital expenditure, 1o ensure that the
necessary financial and human resources are in place for the Company 1o
achieve its objectives and to review management perfarmance. in addition,
the Board sets the Company's values and ethical standards, including
matters relating to coiporate sacial respansibility and ensures that its
obligations to its shareholders and others are understood and met.

The Board reviews its list of reserved matters from time to time, most
recently in October 2008. The terms of reference of the Board and the

Board Commitiees are available on request from the Company Secretary
and are also displayed on Balfour Beatty's website www balfourbeatty.com.
Descriptions of the specific responsibilities which have been delegated

1o the principal Board committees are also provided on pages 13 to 15.

Mast meetings of the Board during 2008 were held in London, with
two meetings held e!sewhere. On the evening preceding a Board meeting,
the Directors will meet and focus their discussion on a pre-determined
developmental theme, led by one of the executive Directors, other senior
managament or a specialist external speaker.

In addition, the Board dedicates particular meetings to certain key
business themes, for example health and safety, strategy, or succession
plartning. In Sepiember, a meeting was held on the site of the new A3
Hindhead tunnel, which is in the course of construction by the Group.

In Novemnber, the Board held its meeting outside London and focused on
the Group's “Zero Harm™ safety programme.

Procedures for Board meetings remain unchanged from previous years.
Papers are generally sent out at least three business days in advance of
the meeting. The papers include a written report from each of the Chief
Executive, the Finance Directar, the director of Safety, Health and the
Environment, and the Group managing directors. At the meetings, oral
repans are made on issues arising from the written reports and both those
and other matters of immediate interest or concern are discussed by the
Board, for example mergers and acquisitions activity. Apart from the
mestings that approve the interim and final results respectively, and the
meeting prior to the AGM, a separate presentation on a topic of imerest or
concern, such as the operations of a particular business, is normally made
1o the Board. Each meeting lasts three to four hours, but can be longer,

The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board on
approgriate govemance matters, ensuring good information flow and
for ensuring that Board procedures are foltowed. He is also available
to individual Directors for advice on these procedures.

Balfour Bearty plc
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Evaluation

Formal evaluation of the perfarmance of the Board and of the principal Board
Committees, as well as individual assessments of the Directors themselves,
are normafly carrigd out by an axtemal consultant tri-annuaily, with intemal
assessments carried out in the intervening two years. The last extemal
evaluation was completed in Octaber 2007.

In the intervening years, an evaluation process is carried out by the
Company Secretary, at the request of the Chairman. This comprises an
assessmant questionnaire covering the effectivenass of the Board and
its Committees including composition, arrangements for and content
of meetings, access to information, and administrative procedures.

The findings are then reported back to the Board by the Chairman and
an action plan addressing any areas of concem is established.

Following Steva Marshall's appointment as Chairman on 15 May 2008,
an internal evafuztion process commenced in January 2009. As a result
of the feedback, the Board has concluded that both it and the Directors
operate effectively.

eouewanch inQ

Board Committees

The Board has established several Committess, each with defined terms

of reference, procedures, responsibilities and powers. In accordance with .
the requirements of the Combinad Code, the Board reviewed the terms of

reference of each Committes during the year and these were adopted by

the Board in October 2008. The principal Committees’ tems of reference

are displayed on the website www balfourbeatty.com. The minutes of the

Commitiee meetings are sent {0 all Directors and oral updaies are given

at Board meetings. Committee membership is shown on page 12.

— Audit Committee

The terms of reference for the Committee are based on the Guidance on
Audit Committees issued by the Financial Reporting Cauncil {formerly “Smith
Guidance™) which was updated in Octeber 2008. The terms of reference
were approved by the Board in October 2003 and updated most recently in
October 2008. The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee remain as
stated in previous reports. In summary they are:

{1} to monitor the integrity of the financial statemenis of the Group and any
formal announcements relating 1o the Group's financial performance;

{2) 10 review the Group’s intemal financial controls esiablished to
identify, assess, manage and monitor risks, and receive reports from
management on the effeciiveness of the systems they have established
and the conclusions of any testing carried out by the internal and
external auditors;

{3) o monitor and review the effectiveness of the internal audit function
including its work programme;

(4} to make recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment
of the external avditor and to approve the remuneration and tarms of
engagement of the extenal auditor; :

{5} to assess the independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the extemal
auditor and to develop and implement policy on the engagement of the
external auditor 10 supply non-audit services: and

{6) to review arrangements by which staff may, in confidence, raise
concems about possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting.
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The Committze has been chaired by Steve Marshall pending the
appoimtment of Graham Roberts as Audit Committee chairman foflowing
publication of the 2008 preliminary resuits on 5 March 2009. Members’
attendance at Committee meatings is shown on page 12. The Committeg is
supported by the Company Secretariat. All members of the Commitiee have
extensive experience of management in large international organisations.
The incoming chairman, Graham Roberts, is & chartered accountant and is
finance director of The British Land Company PLC. Graham Aoberts has been
identified by the Board as having recent and relevant financial experience.

Appointments to the Committee are made by the Board for a period
of up to three years, extendable by no more than twe additional three year
periods, so long as members continue 10 be independent. At the Board
meeting following each meeting of the Committee, the Comimittee chairman
provides an oral report on the work of the Committee and any significant
issues that may have arisen. The minutes of Committee meetings are
circulated to alt members of the Board.

Four meetings of the Committee were held in 2008, At the invitation
of the Committee, partners from the external auditor, the Head of Group
Risk Management and Assurance, the Deputy Chief Executive and the
Finance Director regularly attend each meeting. In addition, any independent
non-executive Director who is noi a Committee member has an open
imvitation to attend maetings.

In 2008, as in previous years, the main purpose of the February and
August meetings of the Committes was to consider the final and interim
results respactively, a process which is well established, At each of these
meetings, the Committee reviewed significent accounting palicies, financial
reporting issues and judgements and reports from internal financial
management and intenal and extemal auditors.

The May and November meetings of the Committee are not driven by
financial results and at these maetings the Committee was able to review
a wider range of matters in addition to its usuat business. For example,
in May, the Commitiee carried out an assessment of the audit process
followed in the preceding financial year whilst also considering the
proposals for the 2008 audit plan and in November, the Committee reviewed
the draft internal audit plan far 2009 and considered proposals on intemnal
control and assurance.

Throughout 2008, the Committee has continued to review the Group's
risk management processes. This review has included reports from the Head
of Group Risk Management and Assurance on the Group's internal controls
and on the work of the internal auditors, a consideration of the effectiveness
both of the internat audit function and of the extemal audit process,

a review of the resources of the external and intemnal auditor, and a
considleration of the extemal auditar’s management letter in respect of
atcounting procedures and internal financial controls. As a result, the
Committee felt able to recommend ta the Board that it might properly
conclude that the Company continued te maintain a sound system of internal
financial control and that a proper review of the effectiveness of the
Company's systems of internal financial conirols had been completed.

The Committee has also considered the independence of the external
auditor and received confirmation that, in its view, it remained independant
of the Company. Consideration of the indepandence of the external auditor
included the non-audit work carried out by the external auditor during the
year, which continues to be covered by the policy approved by the Board in
June 2003 {an analysis of non-audit fees incumed is set out in Note 4.2 on
page 40). All requests to engage the external auditor for non-audit work
are subject to the approval of the Finance Directar and reviewed at each
Committee meeting. The external auditor also complies with the Accounting
Practices Board (APB] Ethical Siandards applying to non-audit services.
There is no inconsistency between these APB siandards and the Company's
policy. The Committee has carrigd out a review of the proposal mada by the
external auditor in respect of the audit fees and terms of engagement for the
2008 audit and has recommended that the Board proposes to shareholders
that Deloitte LLP continue as the Company's extemal auditor.

The administrative procedures of the Committee were unchanged through
the year. The Head of Group Risk Managemen: and Assurance continues @
have direct access to the chaimman of the Committee. Separate meetings
between the Committee, and the Finance Diractor, the Head of Group Risk
Management and Assurance and the extemal auditor respectively, took
place after the February and August meetings.

— Nemination Commitiee

The Committee is chaired by Steve Marshall angd members” attendance

at the meetings of the Committee is given on page 12. The Commitiee is
supported by the Company Secretariat. The Committee, which meets as and
when required {2008: four meetings), keeps under review the composition
and balance of the Board and makes recommendatiens 1o the Board on all
new appoiniments and re-appointments of non-executive Directors. During
the 2008 financial year, extemal search consultancies were engaged to seek
candidates to join the Board as non-executive Directors, one with financial
experience and one with business experience gained predominantly in
Europe and internationally. The Committee reviewed candidates as
presented by the consuttancies and Committee members were invalved in
the interview process before making their recommendations to the Board.
Ml members of the Board were given the opportunity to meet Graham
Roberts and Hubertus Ksossa prior to their appointments.

— Remuneration Committee

The Committee is chaired by the Senior Independent Director, Robert Walvis
and members” atiandance at the meetings of the Committee is given on
page 12. The Committee met three times during 2008.The Committee is
supparted by the Company Secretariat. Information about the waorkings of
this Committee during the financial year is set out in the Remuneration
repart commencing on page 8.

— Business Practices Committge
The Committee is chaired by Staphen Howard and members’ attendance
at the meetings of the Committee is given on page 12. The Committee is
supparted by the Company Secretariat. .

The Committez met three times in 2008, The main topics cansidered

by the Commitiee during the year related to health, safety and sustainability,

and ethics, values and business conduct In light of the settlement with the
Serious Fraud Office in October 2008, this Commitise will focus significant
attention on values, the Group's Codes of Conduct (which are being revised}
and on the training which will ensure that the Group’s business principles
are properly embedded throughout the business. The Committee discussed
the delivery of health and safety in the long term. Recognising the ambitious
aims of the Group's Zero Harm campaign, it reviewed the leadership,
resources and actions required for delivery. A particular challenge was to
ensure that tha Zero Harm initiative could be adopted and implemented in
rultiple jurisdictions and cuttures around the world. The Committee noted
early indications that Zero Harm was eagerly embraced by businesses both
inside and ouiside the UK. Regular reports were received by the Commitiee
on the Group’s charitable activities, on its whistleblowing procedure and
practice and on specific whistieblowing incidents.

— Group Tender and Investment Committes

This Coramittee comprises the exacutive Directors and the Group managing
directors and is chaired by the Chief Executive, or in his absence, one of the
other executive Directors. Its main purpose is to review all major propased
contracts with projected contract values above a specified level delegated
1o it. The Committee also has authority to approve capital expenditure
applications and any proposed investments or divestments up to certain
specified limits determined by the Board. The Commitiee met on numesous
occasions throughout the year and minutes of its meetings are circulated to
all the Directors. The Committee is supported by the Company Secretariat,




— Finance and General Purposes Committee

The Committee comprises the executive Directors and the deputy finance
director and is chaired by the Chief Executive, or in his absencz, one of the
executive Directors and is supported by the Company Secretariat. lts main
purpose is 1o approve various rawuting banking and treasury matters, share
aption grants under the Company's incentive schemes and other matters
relating to share capital {eg allotments}. The Commitlee mat several times
thraughaut the year and a surmmary of the business conducted at the
mestings is provided to all the Directors.

Relations with shareholders

The Board attaches great importance to maintaining good relationships
with all shareholders and ensures that sharehalders are kept informed
of significant Campany developments.

The Company has therefore continued its lang-established programme
of communication with institutional investors and brokers throughout 2008.
Presentations of the half-year and full-year results were made in accordance
with the practice of previous years. Agproximately 100 meetings have been
held at regular intervals through the year with institutional shareholders,
brokers and analysts. This programme witl continue and be expanded where
appropriate, subject to the constraints of regulation and practice.

Whilst the Chairman attends as many meetings with institutional
shareholders as possible, senior executives, led by the Chief Executive and
Finance Director, hotd meetings with the Company's principal institutional
shargholders to discuss the Cormpany's strategy, financial performance and
specific major investments. The Chairman has atso met with a number of
these institutional sharehalders and the other non-executive Directors are
invited to do so whenever they wish, Care is exercised to ensure that any
price sensitive information is released to all shareholders at the same time
in accordance with UK Listing Authority requirements.

Reports to the Board an meetings or other contact with shareholders
or their representatives are made by executive Directors an a regular basis.
The non-executive Directors continue 1o believa that, through their direct
and ready access o, and contact with, the Chairman, and Robert Walvis
{the Senior independent Director) and through the regutar reports to the
Board, they are kept fully aware of the views of the larger shareholders in
the Company and the investment community gengrally.

The Board regards the Company's general meetings as an opportunity
1o communicate directly with private investors and actively ancourages
participative dialogue with al! the Company’s sharehaiders. The chairman
of the Beard Committees attend the AGM each year as well as the ather
Directors and are available to answer questions from shareholders.

The website wwaw.balfourbeatty.com is a primary source of
information on the Group, including financial press releases, shareholder
documentation, annual and interim results presentations and the terms of
reference of the principa! Board Commitiees.

Risk management

The Board takes ultimate responsibility for the Group’s systems of risk
management and iniernal control and reviews their effectiveness.

The Group's principal risks and how they are mitigated are summarised an
pages 9 and 10. As for previous years, the Board has continued to assess
the effectiveness of the risk management processes and intarnal controls
during 2008 and 1o the date of this report. Such assessment is based on
reports made to the Beard, the Audit Committee and the Business Practices
Committee, including:

- the results of intemal audit’s reviews of internal financial controls;

- a Group-wide certification that effective intemal controfs had baen
mainiained, or, where any significant non-compliance or breakdown
had occumed with or without foss, the status of corrective action; and

- & paper prepared by management on the nature, extent and mitigation
of significant risks and on the systems of internal controls.

Baffour Beatty plc el

The Group’s systems and controls are desigred to ensure that the Group's
exposure to significant risk is properly managed, but the Board recognises
that any system of intemal control is designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can

only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or 1oss. In addition, not all the material joint ventures in
which the Group is involved are treated, for these purposes, as part of

the Group. Where they are nat, systems of internal control are applied

as agreed between the parties to the venture.

Central to the Group's systems of internal control are its processes and
framewaork for risk management. These accord with the Tumnbull Guidance
on internal controls and were in place throughout the year and up to the
date of signing this report.

The Group's systems of internal control operate through & number of
different processes, some of which are interlinked. These include:

~ the annual review of the strategy and plans of each operating company
and of the Group as a whole in order to identify, inter alia, the risks
to the Group's achievement of its overall objectives and, where
appropriate, any relevant mitigating actions;

- monthly financial reporting against budgets and the review of results
and forecasts by executive Directars and line management, including
particular areas of business or project nsk. This s used to update
both management's understanding of the environment in which the
Group operates and the metheds used to mitigate and contrel the
risks identified;

- individual tender and project review procedures commenging a1
operating company level and progressing to Board Committes level
if value, or perceived exposure, breaches certain thresholds;

- regular reporting, monitoring and review of health, safety and
environmental matiers;

- the review and authorisation of proposed invesiment, divestment and
capital expenditure through the Board's Committees and the Board itszli;

— the review of specific material areas of Group-wide risk and the
formulation and moniiosing of risk mitigating actions;

- the formulation and review of properly documented policies and
procedures, updated through the free and regular flow of information
10 address the changing risks of the business;

- specific policies set out in the Group Finante Manual, covering the
financial management of the Group, including arrangements with the
Group's bankers and bond providers, contrals on foreign exchange
dealings and management of currency and interest rate expasures,
insurance, capital expenditure procedures, application of accounting
policies and financial controls; .

- aGroup-wide risk management framework which is applied to all
functions in the Group, whether operational, financial or support.
Under it, the key risks facing each part of the Group &re regularly
reviewed and assessed, topether with the steps taken to avoid or
mitigate those risks. The results of those reviews are placed on risk
registers and, where necessary, specific action plans are developed;

- reviews and tests by the intemal audit team of critical business
financial processes and controls and spot checks in areas of perceived
high business risk; and

- the Group’s whisteblowing policy.

15
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These systems are extended, as soon as possible and as appropriate,
to all companies joining the Group.

Following an intemal regrganisation at the end of 2008, the separate
roles of Group Risk Management and Internal Audit were amalgamated
under a Head of Group Risk Management and Assurance, who is responsible
for developing a comprehensive framework of assurance (including internal
audit) and co-ordinating the risk management activities across the Group.

No significant failings or weaknesses have been identified by the
Board in carrying out its review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and intemal control systems.

Political donations

At the AGM held on 15 May 2008, shareholders gave authority for the
Company and its UK subsidiaries to make donations to patitical
organisations up to a maximum aggregate amount of £25,000. This approval
18 a precautionary measure in view of the broad definition of these terms in
the Companies Act, No such expenditure or donations were made during
the year and shareholder authority will be sought again at the 2009 AGM.

Corporate responsibility

A full description of our approach to corposate responsibility appears in the
Annual review 2008. This includes more information about the Group's
charitable activities, which are described briefty below.

Written repornt

For the eighth year, the Company is publishing a separata corporate
responsibility report incfuding safety, social and envirgnmental issues.

A copy will be available to shareholders attending the AGM and to
preference shareholders atiending the separate Class meeting. The repart
will also be displayed on the Company's website www, balfourbeatty.com

Group policies

The Group's published policies on health and safety, the environment,
business conduct and ethics and human rights remain in place and are
subject to regular reviews. Most racently, the business conduct and
ethics palicy is in the process of being reviewed and updated. Progress in
these areas is described in the separate corparate responsibility report.

Employment

As the Group operates across a number of business sectors in different
emvironments, it has evolved a decentralised management structure, with
employment policies designed 1o suit the needs of individual businesses.
However, each employing company is expected to comply with certain
key principles in its design and practice of employment policy.

These are:
- to provide an open, challenging and participative environment;

- to enable all employees to utilise their talents and skills to the full,
through appropriate encouragement, training and development;

- to communicate a full understanding of the objectives and performance
of the Group and the opportunities and challenges facing it;

- to provide pay and other benefits which reflect good local practices
and reward individual and collective performance;

- toensure that all applicants receive equal treatment regardless of age,
origin, gender, disability, sexual orientation, marital status, religicn or
belief; and

- W er'l_s_:.ure that all employees similarly receive equal treatrment and
specifically in refation 10 training, development, and career progression,

Individual businesses use a variety of methods to communicate key business
goals and issues to employees and also consult and involve their employees
through local publications, briefing groups, consultative meetings, training
programmes and working groups 1o assist the process of continuous
improvement in the way they operate and do business. Regular publications
inform employees of major business and technice! achievements. Most of
the UK-based businesses have either attained or have committed to attain
the UK Investors in People standard.

Regular communication is maintained with the in-service and
pensioner members of the Group’s pension funds.

Charitable activities

During 2008, the Group has continued to help raise funds for charity and

has also continued to pravide donations in cash and kind to charitable

organisations. The total amount of funds both raised by employees and

donated by the Company and its UK subsidiaries during the year was

£415,000. ‘

As in previous vears, the Group’s main efforts have been directed i
to a small number of charities. The Company's charities committee decided 1
that support should be provided to a child-based charity and Action for \
Children was duly selected as the main focus for the Group's UK charitable
fundraising efforts for 2008 and 2003. During the year, through a wide
variety of fundraising events and efforts, employees raised a total of
over £150,000 for Action for Children, a sum which was increased by a
further £28,000 donated directly by the Company under a matched
funding agreement.

The Company’s ather main charity, The Prince’s Trust — Building Better
Lives, received a donation of £10,000 during the year. At the beginning
of 2009, the Company established The Balfour Beatty Charitable Trust.
Through this, the Company wiil be warking in partnership with Action for
Children and The Prince’s Trusi to deliver a series of programmes aimed at
helping disadvantaged young peaple.

Support for other charities including Engingers Against Poverty, RedR
which provides emergency engineering help particularly in remote locations,
and Marie Curie Cancer Care has continued. The Company is also a patron
of CRASH, the construction charity and has continued its membership of the
charities Business in the Community and the Institute of Business Ethics.

In addition, the Group’s UK subsidiaries have paid a further
aggregate sum of £190,000 to & very wide variety of other UK charitable
causes in 2008.

As in previous years, the Group continues to enable UK employees to
donate to charities of their choice through the Give As You Earn scheme.

The Company has decided to continue its sponsorship of the annual
London Youth Games, Europe’s largest youth sports programme. in 2008,
the Company donated £250,000 for the 2008 Games. As tite sponsor,
the Company has committed a further £1.45m to the Games in the period
0 2N3

Further information on the Group's activities is given in the Corporate
responsibility section of the Annual review 2008 on pages 50 and 51.

Post balance sheet events

Details of past balance sheet events are set out in Note 35 on page 82.

Contractual arrangements

The Group has contractual arangaments with numerous third parties

in support of its business activides. The disclosure in this report of
information about any of those third parties is not considered necessary
for the undarstanding of the development, performance or position of
the Group's businesses.
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The Disectors consider that they have met these requirements in greparing
these financial statements. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper

The Group's bank facility agreements contain provisions that, upon

30 days’ notice being given to the Group, the lender may exercise its
discretion to require prepayment of the loans on a change of control and
cancel all commitments under the agreement concesned. There are no
agreements providing for compensation for the Directors or employees
on a change of control.

Paymemt of creditors

accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and the Group and are reasonably directed
at satequarding the assets and detecting and preventing fraud and other
irregularities. The Directors are also responsible for the preparation of
a Directors’ report and a Remuneration repart which comply with the
requirements of the Companies Act 1985.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
the Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom goveming the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from

in the UK, the Company’s policy is to settle the terms of payment with
suppliers when agreeing the terms for each transaction or series of
transactions; to seek to ensure that suppliers are aware of the terms of
payment; and to abide by these terms of payment as and when satisfied
that the supplier has provided the goods or services in accordance with the
agreed terms. At 31 December 2008, the yaar-end creditors’ days of the
Company were 24 (2007; 19}

Financial instruments

legislation in other jurisdictions.
The Directors confizm that to the best of their knowledge:

{i} the financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted
by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit or foss of the Company and the undertakings included
in the consolidation taken &s a wholg; and

{ii} the Business and financial review, which is incorporated into the
Directors’ report, includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Company and the

aauewsncB Ingy

The Grougp's financial risk management ebjectives and policies and its
exposure to the foilowing risks — foreign exchange, interest rate, price
anc credit — are described in the Financial review on pages 4 and b
and detailed in Note 21 on pages 54 to 60. '

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, togethar
with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties they face.

Statements of Directors as to disclosure of information to auditors

Each of the Directors at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

The following statement, which should be read in conjunction with
the Independent Auditors’ report on page 26, is made with a view to
distinguishing for shareholders the raspectiva responsibilities of the
Directors and of the auditers in relation to the financial statements.

The Birectors are required to prepare financial statements for the
Group in accordance with International Financial Reparting Standards {IFRS)
adopted by the European Union and have also elected te prepare financial
statements for the Company in accordance with IFRS. Company law requires
the Directors to prepare such financial statements in accordance with IFRS,
the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the Iniemational Accounting
Standard (IAS) regulation.

1AS 1 requires that financial statements present the Company’s and
the Group's financial position, financial performance and cash flows faidy
i.e. give a true and {air view for each financial year). This requires the
faithful representation of the effects of transactions, other events and
conditions in accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria
for assets, liabilities, income and expenses set out in the IAS Board's
“Framework for the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements”.
In nearly all circumstances, a iair presentation will be achieved by
comptiance with all applicable IFRS. Directors are also required t0:

(1) properly select and apply accounting policies;

{2} present information, including accounting policies, in a manner which
provides relevant, reliable, comparable and comprehensible information;
and

{3} provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements in IFRS is insufficient to enable users to undersiand the
impact of particular transactions, ether events and conditions on the
Company’s and the Group's financial position and financial performance.

- so far as the Diractor is awars, there is no relevant audit information
of which the Company's auditors are unaware; and

— the Director has 1aken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a }
Director to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and 1o !
establish that the Company’s auditors ars aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the
provisions of Section 2347A of the Companies Act 1985. :

Directors’ report
By order of the Board

C D Vaughan General Counse! and Company Secretary
4 March 2009

Registered Office;
130 Wilton Road
London SW1V 1LQ
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Remuneration report

Introduction

This report has been prepared in accordance with schedule 7A 1o the
Companies Act 1985. The report also meets the relevant requiraments of
the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority and describes how
the Board has applied the principles relating to Directors’ remuneration in
the Combined Code. As required by the Act, a resolution to apprave the
report will be proposad at the AGM of the Company at which the financial
statements witl be approved,

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Board {“RemCo”) is primarily
responsible for determining the remuneration pelicy and conditions of
service for executive Directors and the Chairman of the Company. It alsc
reviews and monitors the level and structure of remuneration for certain
senicr managers immediately below the level of the Board. The terms of
reference of the RemCo, which were reviewed in October 2008, can be
found on the Company's website www batfourbeatty.com.

The RemCo has been chaired by Robert Walvis since November 2003.
Its other members during the year were Stephen Howard, Steve Marshal,
Gordon Sage, Christogh von Rohr until September 2008 and, from
September 2008, Hubertus Krossa. Sir David John, the former Company
Chairman, attended meetings by invitation. No member of the RemCo
has conflicts of interest arising from cross-irectorships and no member
is involvad in the day-to-day executive management of the Group.

During 2008 the Chief Executive, lan Tyler, was invited to join mestings
of the RemCo, when apprepriate. Paul Raby, the human resources director,
acted as secretary of the RemCo until September 2008 at which point
this role transferred to the Company Secretariat. No Director has any
invelvement in discussions relating t his gwn remungration.

The RemCa is responsible for appointing external independent
consultants to advise on executive remuneration matters. This advice and
assistance has been provided throughout the year by Hewitt New Bridge
Street LLP {"HNBS") and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ("PwC"). The human
resources director has also provided advice to the RemCo. During the year,
PwC also provided other tax and consultancy services to the Company.
The RemCo is satisfied that no conflict of interest arises from the provision
of this advice.

Executive Directors’ remuneration

PwC provide data and indapendent advice on remuneration levals in
companies considered to be comparable interms of annual sales, market
capitalisation and industry sector. The RemCo sets basic salaries arund
mid-market evels, but also takes into accaunt its own judgement of the
performance of the Group's businesses and the performance of individual
Directors. The RemCa intends to continue to use this approach in the
foreseeable future.

The basic salaries for the executive Directors are reviewed annually
at 1 July. The salary for Duncan Magrath was set at £340,00C efiactive
fram his appointment as Finance Director on 31 March 2008 and was
not reviewed again during the year. The basic salaries of the other three
executive Directors, following the review at 1 July 2008, are shown in the
table below. The average increase was 9.0% based on a review of personal
performance, market position and recognition of new responsibilities for

Anthony Rabin.

Salary al
Name of Duector 1.juty 2203
ALP Rabin £425,000 i
P Tyler £630,000 |
P JL Zinkin £405,000 3

General policy

It is the policy of the RemCo to establish an overall remuneration package
that is competitive and which facilitates the recrvitment and retention of
high calibre management. The annual and long-term incentive plans make
upan important part of each executive Director's remuneration and are
structured 50 as Lo motivate senior managers te deliver high standards of
performance, without encouraging excessive risk taking. It is intended that
the share-based elemenis of the package will not only drive performance
over the long-term but will also assist in aligning the interests of senior
management with those of sharehalders.

The structuze of executive Directors’ remuneration was similar in
2008 to that in 2007 and no significant changes to the existing policy are
currently envisaged for 2009. Under the current arrangements, if target
performance is achieved, basic salary will represent around one-half of
total eamings. if maximum is achieved, which would involve a superior
level of performance substantially in excess of business plan, basic salary
will represent around one-third of total eamings.

The executive Directors are eligible to be members of the Balfour
Beatty Pension Fund and the ganeral pensions policy is described below.

Basic salaries

It is the policy of the RemCo 1o set basic salaries at levels which it believes
are competitive given the size and complexity of the Company, as well as
the broad business sectors in which it operates. To assist in this, HNBS and

Annual incentive plan

Each executive Director paricipates in an annual ingentive plan, under
which pre-determined financial targets must be achieved before any
payment 1s eamed. The maximum potential bonus which cauld have been
earned by executive Directors for 2008 was 80% of basic salary and the
performance indicator chosen was profit before tax, exceptional items and
amortisation of intangible assets {"profit”). A bonus of 40% of basic salary
would have been earned for the achievement of perfermance in fine with
1arget. Two-thirds of any bonus achigved is payable in cash, whilst the
remaining one-third is deferred in the form of ordinary shares in the
Compary under the Deferred Bonus Plan{the "DBP"}. These shares, along
with shares awarded in lieu of dividends paid during the deferral period,
will be released to the Directors after three years, providing they are still
employed by the Company at that time (unless specified leaver conditions
are met, in which case early vesting may be permitted under the rules of
the DBP). Bonuses are non-pensionable. The actual profit for the year ended
31 December 2008 resulted in a maximum bonus of 80% of basic salary
for each exesutive Director. Details are shown in the table on page 21.

It is currently intended that the annual incentive plan for 2008 will
operate in the same way and at the same level as for 2008 and the RemCo
will continue to review the competitiveness and structure of the annual
incantive plan in future years.

Long-term incentive scheme

The RemCo believes that performance related Jong-tesm incentives which

align exacutives with both business strategy and shareholders’ interests are

an important component of overall executive remuneration arrangements.
The Company operates a Performance Share Plan {the “PSP”) under

which conditional awards of shares in the Company are made to executive

Directors and other selected operational and functional senior managers,

The maximurn market value of any award, at the award date, wilt be 150%

of basic salary, other than in exceptional circumstances, where the limit

is 200% of basic salary. It is currently the intention of the RemCo that an

award of 150% of salary will only be made to the Chief Executive, with

the other executive Directors and selected senior managers receiving

conditional awards over shares with a market value of 125% of basic salary.
The awards will vest, subject to the achieverment of performance

conditions, three years after the date of grant, together with shares

in lieu of dividends payable. There is na provision for the re-testing of these |

performance conditians. For the 2008 award, there are two performance

conditions, each applying to separate parts of the award.



50% of an award is linked 1o an adjusted earnings per share {"EPS™) growth
target, and will vest as shown in the table below.

Balfour Beatty plc

S growh over b yexs roporian of awart vesung
Less than RPI + 15% Zero

RPI+ 15% 25%

RP! + 45% 100%

Between RPl + 15% and APi + 45% _ Between 25% and 100% pro-rata

Growth in EPS will be determined following independent verification of the
caleulations made internally.

The performance condition attached to the other 50% of an award is
linked to total shareholder retun {“TSR") performance, measured against
a group of UX listed companies operating in comparable markets to the
Company. The companies used for the 2008 award were as follows:
Aggreko, Atkins (WS), Babcock International, Capita, Carillion, Costain,
Interserve, Keller, Kier, MITIE, Morgan Sindall, Serco, SIG, Travis Perking
and Wolseley.

The TSR performance of all companies will be measured over the three
year parformance period, with the TSR of Balfour Beatty compared to the
TSR of the other companigs, This part of an award will vest in part if Balfour
Beaty's TSR is equivalent to tha company whose TSR performance is at the
median, with full vesting if Balfour Beatty's TSR is equtvalent to, or above,
that of the company whose TSR performance is at the upper quartile.

The precise scale of vesting is shown in the table below:

Tota! sharcholder um Sroporion of award vesting
Below median Zerg

Median 25%

Upper quartile 100%

Between median and unoer guartile  Betwean 25% and 100% pro-rata

TSR wilk be independently calculated and approved by the RemCo.

The RemCo considers that the EPS and TSR performance conditions
provide a good blend of performance metrics, with EPS growth rewarding
strong fancial performance and TSR rewarding stock market performance,
which aligns with investors” interests.

It is the intention of the RemCo 1o make awards under the PSP in 2009.
For the TSR element of the award, it is currently anticipated that a similar
peer group of companies will be used. The RemCo is currently reviewing
the EPS targets and individual levels of award, to ensure these continue
10 remain stretching and approgriate given curient market conditions and
business autlook.

The PSP and other share schemes contain provisions relating to a
change of control. Quistanding awards and options would normally vest
and become exercisable on a change oi control, subject 1o the satisfaction
of any performance canditions at that time.

Pensions

The Company provides pensian benefits to UK employees principally
through the Balfour Beatty Pension Fund (the "Fund”}, which has bath
defined benefit (“DB") and defined contribution {"DC") sections. The DB
section provides for the buitd up of pension benefits based on different
accrual rates (as determined by job position) and has life cover, disability
and spouse/dependants pension arrangements.

Following the changes to the taxation of pensians which wera
introduced in April 2006, a Fund-specific earnings cap has heen maintained
for those members who were previously subject to the HMRC eamings
cap. This cap also applies 10 members of the DC section of the Fund.

A discretionary cash supplement is paid in lieu of pension provision above
the earnings cap. The Company is not compensating any member of the
Fund {or any other pension scheme operated by the Company] for any
additional tax which is payable as a result of the April 2005 legis'ation.

If members choose to opt out of the Fund as a result of their benefits
reaching or exceeding the lifetime gllowance, a cash supplement will

be paid to them,

The specific pension arrangerents for executive Directors are outlined
in more detail in the Directors’ pensions section on pages 24 and 25,

During 2008 the Company announced new measures to limit the
growth of liabilities in the DB section of the Fund. These will, in effect, imit
future increases in basic satary which will count for DB purposes io a ievel
set by the Company each year. This figure will ordinarily be APl up 10 a cap

DSRECTORS REPORT
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of 5%. Any increase in basic salary above that limit will be eligible for BC
benefits from the Fund.

Share ownership guidelines

To further align the interests of senior management with those of
sharehalders, executive Directors and certain ather senior managers are
subject to share ownership guidelines. Executive Directors are required to
accumulate a holding of ordinary shares in the Company to the value of
100% of their basic satary at a reference date. In order to achieva this,
they will be expected to retain at least half of the shares (after payment of
any taxes due) which vest from awards made under the PSP and the DBP.

Share options
No grants of options have bean made under the Executive Share Option
Scheme 2001 since 31 Decembar 2004 and it remains the intention of the
RemCa that no further grants will be made under this scheme to any level
of management, other than in exceptional circumstances.

Executive Directors are eligible to participate in a HMRC approved
savings-refated share option scheme.

Service contracts

It remains the Company’s policy and practice to include in executive

Directors’ contracts a 12 months’ rolling notice period from the Company

and six months’ notice an the part of the Director. This policy wilt continue.
Details of the service contracts of the executive Directors are shown

in the table below.

Notce period hrom
Nare of Duecton Date of comrast Cormany (morths}
DJ Maarath 31 March 2008 12
AL PRabin 28 August 2002 12
| P Tyler 22 December 2004 12
P J L Zinkin 10 December 1991 12

Service contracts of executive Directors do not include provision for specific

_payment in the event of early termination, nor do they provide for extended

notice periods or compensation in the evens of a change of control. It is not
the RemCo's intention 1o introduce such provisions. If any existing contract
of employment is breached by the Company in the event of terminaticn, the
Company would be liable to pay, as damages, an amount approximating
to the net less of salary and contractual benefits for the unexpired notice
period. The RemCo would seek to ensure that the Director fulfils his
obfigation to misigate his losses and would also give consideration to
phased payments whare appropriate.

Andrew McNaughton was appointed to the Board as Chief Operating
Officer on 1 January 2009, with the same notice and termination provisions
as the other executive Directors.

External appointments

The RemCo recognises that benefits can arise fram allowing executive
Directors to {ake a non-executive directorship elsewhere. With approval

of the Board in each case, executive Directors may therefore accept one
external appoiniment and retain any related fees. lan Tyler was appointed
as a non-executive director of VT Group plc on 12 May 2008. The fees
received for this sole are set out in the notes to the Directors’ remuneration
table on page 21.

Non-executive Directors

Non-executive Direciors are appointed by the full Board following
racommendations from the Nomination Committee. The Chaimman’s
remuneration falls within the remit of the RemCo operating within the broad
policy recommended by the RemCo and approved by the Board. The Board
determines the terms on which the services of other non-executive Directors
are provided. All non-executive Directors are elected for a term of three
years and musi retire and, if eligible, seek re-election at the AGM in the
third calendar year following the year in which they were elected {or last
re-elected). They are not eligible io join any pension scheme operated by
the Company and cannot participate in any of the Company’s share option,
annual incentive or tong-tarm incentive schemes. None of the appointment
latters for non-executive Directors contain provision for specific payment in
the event of termination for whatever cause.
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The dates of the letters of appointment or last election (or last re-election) of the non-executive Directors are shawn in the table below.

N of Do e ot 31 Decemiag 208 o
M J Donovan 10 May 2007 17
St Howard 10 May 2007 17
Sir David John® 10 May 2007 -
G E H Krossa® 9 September 2008 33
S Marshal @ 11 May 2006 5
G H Sage 10 May 2007 17
Dr H C van Rohr™ 10 May 2007 -
R JW Walvis 10 May 2007 17
Notes

(it retired on 15 May 2008

li} appointed on 9 September 2008

(iii} appointed as Chairman on 15 May 2008
(v} retired on 9 September 2008

The fees of the non-executive Directors are reviewed from time to time with the [ast review having taken effect from 1 July 2008, when the Board agreed
an increase in the annual fees {excluding the Chairman} from £42,000 to £48,000 and for Steve Marshall as Chairman to £240,000 per annum. The annual
fee for chairing Board Committees was increased from £7,000 to £8,000 with effect from 1 July 2008. During the year, the RemCo was chaired by Robert
Walvis, the Audit Committee by Steve Marshall, and the Business Practices Committee by Sir David John up to May 2008 and Stephen Howard for the

remainder of the year.

A fee of £30,000 was paid to Christoph von Rohr for his chaimmanship of the supervisory board of Baifour Beatty Rall GmbH until 31 December 2008,
Huhertus Krossa joined the supervisory board of Balfour Beatty Rail GmbH an 1 December 2008 and was appointed chairman on 1 January 2008.

He received fees of £2,000 for his services to the supervisory board in 2008.

Performance graph

The graph below shows Balfour Beatty's TSR performance compared to the FTSE 250 Index {excluding investiment trusts) TSR over the five financial years

ended 31 December 2008.

As in previous reports, the RemCo has elected to compare the TSR on the Company's ordinary shares against the FTSE 250 Index (excluding investment

trusts) principally because this is a broad index of which the Company was a constituent member during the year.

The values indicatad in the graph show the share price growth plus reinvestad dividends from a £100 hypothetical holding of ordinary shares in Balfour

Beatty plc and in the index, at the start of the period and have been calculated using 30 trading day average values.
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The detailed information about the Diractors’ remuneration, set out on pages 21 1o 25 has been auditad by the Compary's independent auditors,
Delgitte LLP.

Directors’ remuneration earned in 2008

Annual Total Toal
Pension Bansfits cash remuneration rerrmeration
Name o Dvecir Basic sy o S g bo % i
M J Donovan - 45,000 - - - 45,000 42,000
S | Howard - 49,000 - - - 49,000 42,000
Sir David John - Nn372 - - - 1312 130,000
G EH Krossa - 16,540 - - - 16,540 -
D J Magrath 256,308 - 33,531 12008 181,333 483,160 -
§ Marshall - 162,273 - - - 162,273 49,000
AL P Rabin 402,500 - 0,236 20,852 226,667 720,255 653,951
G H Sage - 45,000 - - - 45,000 42,000
| P Tyler 605,000 - 71934 20187 336,000 1,040,121 949,428
Dr H C von Rohr - 54,092 - - - 54,092 62,548
R JW Walvis - 52,500 - - - 52,500 43,000
P JL Zinkin 352,500 - - 17.8%0 216,000 626,350 587.290
Former Directors - - - - - - 50,208
Toual 1,656,308 495,717 175,71 71937 960,000 3365723 2717425
Notes:

{it Basic salary and fees were those paid in respect of the period of the year during which individuals were Directors.

{ii) lan Tyler, Anthony Rahin and Duncan Magrath received taxable cash supplements in lieu of pension provision on their salary above the Balfour Beatty
Pension Fund specific eamings cap.

(iii} The parformance iarget for annual bonus was profit before tax, exceptional items and amartisation of intangible assets (“profit™). The profit for the year
ended 31 December 2008 resulted in a maximum bonus of 80% of basic salary for each executive Director. Two-thirds of this bonus is payabfe incash
and these are the amounts shown in the table above. The sernaining ene-third is deferred in the form of ordinary shares in the Company which will be
released to the Director on 31 March 2012, providing he is still employed by the Company at that time. The number of shares comprising the deferred
element will be determined based on the share price at the award date of 31 March 2009.

(iv] Christoph von Rohr received an additional fee of €30,000 for his chairmanship of the supervisory board of Balfour Beatty Rail GmbH.

(vl Hubertus Krossa received an additianal fee of €2,000 related to his membership of the supervisory board of Balfour Beatty Rail GmbH,

(vi) Inaddition, lan Tyler received a fee of £24,577 for his services as a non-executive director of VT Group ple.

(vii} Benefits in Xind are calculated in terms of UK taxable values. All executive Directors receive private medical insurance for the Direcior and his
immediate family. lan Tyler, Asithony Rabin and Peter Zinkin receive a fully expensed car and a fuet card. Duncan Magrath receives a car allowance
of £14,600 p.a.

{viii} No Director receives any expense allowance.

(i} Awards made under the Performance Share Plan in 2005 1o lan Tyler, Anthony Rabin, and Peter Zinkin vested during the year. At the date of vesting on
18 April 2008 the closing market price was 463p and the total values of the shares which vested were £546,354, £378,720, and £403,555 respectively.

{x) lan Tyler, Anthony Rahin, and Peter Zinkin exercised savings-related share options during the year, The closing market prices on the dates of exercise
ranged between 411.25p and 400.0p and the values realisable on exercise were £4,184, £1,826, and £3,450 respectively.
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The interests of the Directors and their immediate families in the ardinary share capital of Balfous Beatty plc and its subsidiary underiakings during the year
are set out below.

Directors’ interests

Number of ordinary shazes

At At
tlawary 3 Decentber
2008 008

Name of Direcior

M J Dongvan 5,000 5,000
S L Howard 5,045 5045
GE HKrossa - 5,000
0 J Magrath 6,000 16,000
S Marshall 5.000 5,000
AL P Rabin 101,728 142172
GH Sage 5,000 5,000
1P Tyler 133005 154,051
RJW Walvis 10,000 10,000
P J L Zinkin 122,11 148,686
*or date of appointment, if later.

Notes:

{i} Allinterests at the dates shown are beneficial and are in respect of 50p crdinary shares in Balfour Beaity plc. There were no changes between
31 December 2008 and 4 March 2009.

{it Peter Zinkin was also interested at 1 January 2008 and 31 December 2008 in 325 cumulative convertible redeemable preference shares of 1p each
in Balfour Beatty pic.

Directors’ long-term incentives: the Performance Share Plan

Masanum nuber of shares subrect 1o awand
At Awarded Lapsed Vested At
1 January during during during 31 December .

Mame of Director Date awarded 2008" the year the year the year 2008 Exercisable from
D J Magrath 13 June 2006 64,847 - - - 64,847 June 2009
17 April 2007 43,125 - - - 43,125 April 2010
¥5 April 2008 - 94,618 - - 94,618 April 2011

AL P Rabin 18 Apnil 2005 99,863 - 18,066 81,797 -
13 June 2006 1707 - - - 131,721 June 2009
17 April 2007 90,269 - - - 90269 April 2010
15 April 2008 - 105,750 - - 105,750 April 2011

| P Tyler 18 April 2005 144,085 - 26,062 118,003 -
13 June 2006 228 586 - - - ZI8586 June 2009
17 April 2007 157,755 - - - 15755 April 2010
15 Agril 2008 - 193,690 - - 193,690 April 2011

P JLZinkin 18 April 2005 106,411 - 19,250 87,161 -
13 June 2006 135,989 - - - 136,989 June 2009
17 Agril 2607 99,269 - - - $0,269 Aprtl 2010
15 April 2008 - 105,750 - - 105,750 April 2011

"or date of appointment, if later,




Baliour Beatty plc i

Notes:

{i) Allawards are granted for nil consideration and are in respect of 50p ordinary shares in Balfour Beatty plc. Itis the Company’s cument intention that
awards will be satisfied by shares purchased in the market.

{il For the awards made in June 2006, April 2007 and Apsil 2008, the performance periods are the three years ending 31 December 2008, 31 December
2009 and 31 December 2010 respectively. 50% of each award is subject to an EPS growth target. The maximum number of shares subjact to this
performance condition will only vest if EPS growth exceeds the retail prices index {"RPI™) by 45% over the performance period. If EFS growth exceeds
RPI by $5% then 25% of this part of the award will vest. For growth in EPS between these points, vesting will be on a pro-rata basis. No shares will
vest from this part of the award if EPS growth exceeds RPI by less than 15%. The ather 50% of each award is subject to a total shareholder retumn
{"TSR") target under which the TSR of the Comypany is compared 1o that of a comparator group of similar companies listed in the UK at the start of the
performance period. The maximum number of shares subject to this performance condition wili only vest i the Company's TSR is at the upper quartile
of the comparator group. If the Company’s TSR is equal to that of the median of the comparator group then 756% of this part of the award will vest.

No shares from this pari of the award will vest if the Company's TSR is below that of the median of the comparator group. For TSR performance
hetween median and upper quartile, vesting will be on a pro-rata basis. There is no provision for re-esting of either of the performance conditions.

(i) The average mitdle market price of ordinary shases in the Company for the three dealing dates before the award dates, which was used for calculating
the number of awards granted, was 305.417p for the 2005 award, 308.417p for the 2006 award, 491.583p fos the 2007 award and 449.17p for the 2008
award. The closing middle market price of ordinary shares on the date of the awards was 290p, 301.25p, 480.75p and 450p respectively.

{iv) The perfarmance period for the awards made in June 2006 was completed on 31 December 2008. The growth in EPS for this peried exceeded AP
by more than 45%. The Company’s TSR for this period ranked between sixth and seventh of the 14 remaining companies in the comparator group.

The combined effect of these performance measures is that 69.6% of each participant's conditional award will vest on 13 June 2009. Each participant
will also receive shares equal in value to the dividends, which would have been payable on the shares which vest.

{vi The perfarmance period for the awards mads in April 2005 was completed on 31 December 2007. The growth in EPS for this pariod was 58.37% and
as a result, 81.91% of each participant's conditional award vested on 18 April 2008. The ctosing middle market price of ordinary shares on the vesting
date was 463p.

Directors’ Deferred Bonus Plan awards

Nurnber of shares awarded
Awarded puing the year

3 oo n mcznfmbnds o Lap‘f: dui ng 3 Dmmbz
Name of Diretior Qe of umal pward ar;ﬁg. memg Sz‘gg 0 Dec% umﬁvear "myeal 2008 Vestng date
D J Magrath 30 March 2007 7814 - 133 117 - - 8,064 30 March 2010
31 March 2008 - 11,865 202 178 - - 12,245 31 March 2011
AL P Rabin 31 March 2006 14,168 - nm 213 - - 14,622 31 March 2009
30 March 2007 16,775 - 286 252 - - 12,313 30 March 2010
31 March 2008 - 21,268 362 320 - - 21,950 31 March 2011
| P Tyler 31 March 2006 20,49 - 349 308 - - 21,148 31 March 2009
30 March 2007 24,430 - 216 368 - - 25214 30 March 2010
31 March 2008 - 32462 553 489 - - 33,504 31 March 2011
PJ L Zinkin 31 March 2006 14,735 - 751 222 - - 15209 31 March 2009
30 March 2007 16,774 - 288 252 - - 17,313 30 March 2010
31 Maich 2008 - 21,268 362 320 - - 21,950 31 March 2011

* or date of appointment, if later.

Notes: ’

{i) Allawards are granted for nil consideration and are in respect of 50p ordinary shares in Balfour Beatty pic. It is the Company's current intention that
awards will be satisfied by shares purchased in the market.

(i) The awards made in 2006, 2007 and 2008 will vest on 31 March 2009, 30 March 2010 and 31 March 2011 respeciively, providing the Director is siifl
employed by the Company at the vesting date {unless specified leaver conditions are met, in which case early vesting may be permitted).

(i) The shares awarded on 31 March 2006, 30 March 2007 and 31 March 2008 were purchased at average grices of 374.641p, 474.983p and 476.454p
respectively.

{ivi The shares awarded on 3 July 2008 and 10 December 2008 in lieu of dividends payable were allocated at average prices of 404.502p and 324.24%p
respectivaly.
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Directors’ Savings-Related Share Option Scheme grants

Numbet of oguons.
Al Gramed Exercised Lapsed a
1.damsary dring conng Gumg 31 Decembar o
Name of Dwector Date gramed 008* the vear the year the year 208 £xerise pwe  Exercrsable Iom ErenTisable to
D JMagrath 2 May 2007 1,138 - -~ - 1,136 3830p July2010 December 2010
7 May 2008 - 35 - - 935 3620p July2013  December 2013
AL P Rabin 7 May 2003 444 - 444 - - 1330p July2008 December 2008
5 May 2004 903 - - - 903 2100p  July2009 December 2009
4 May 2005 1031 - - - 103 2500p July 2010  December 2010
3 May 2006 g7 - = - - m 305.0p July2011  December 2011
2 May 2007 993 - - - 993 3890p July2012 December 2012
7 May 2008 - 3N - - n 3620y  July 2011 December 2011
IP Tyler . 4 May 2005 1,048 - 1,046 - - 2500p July2008 December 2008
2 May 2607 825 - - - 825 3830p July2010 December 2010
7 May 2008 - 664 — - 664 3620p July201t  December 2011
PJLZinkin 7 May 2003 839 - 839 - - 133.0p July2008 December 2008
5 May 2004 716 - - - fal: 2100p July 2009 December 2009
4 May 2005 687 - - - 687 2500p July2010 December 2010
3 May 2006 n7 - - - m 3050p July2011  December 2011
2 May 2007 1.178 - - - 1,178 3890p July2012 December 2012
7 May 2008 - 701 - - m 3620p July2013 December 2013
* or date of appointment, if later.
Notes:

{ii Al options are granted under the savings-related share aptian scheme, for nil consideration on grant and are in respect of 50p ordinary shares in
Balfour Beatty plc.

fiiy The closing market price of the Company's ordinary shares on 31 December 2008 was 329.25p. During the vear the highest and lowest closing market
prices were 497.25p and 224.25p respectively.

Directors’ pensions

The executive Directors participate in the Balfour Beatty Pension Fund (the "Fund”). The Fund provides for a pension at a normal retirement age, for pension
purposes, of 62 and each Director pays an annual contribution equal ta 5% of pensionable salary. Tha pension for a Director who can complete 20 or more
years' pensionable service at narmal retirement age is targeted at two-thirds of final pensionable salary, subject to HMAC limits. With effect from B April
2005, HMRC limits were changed, with one of the changes being to no fonger use the eamings cap, when determining the maximum permissible benefits.
However, the Fund has retained a Fund specific eamings cap for pension purposes. The salaries of lan Tyler, Anthony Rabin and Buncan Magrath are
subject to the Fund-specific eamings cap for pension purposes and details of the Company’s contributions to additional arrangements for them are shown
in the Directors’ remuneration table on page 21.

The table below sets out the accrued defesred pension which would be paid annually from the Fund at normal retirement age based on each exetutive
Director's service to 31 December 2008 as well 25 the additional pension benefit secured in respect ef service during the year.

Transter valus

earrssponding

to incrasse

" ahaion o

inerease i accrues determerd

Pensionabis e e e e 1o proiees B+

Agenm sanvice it nension al ncrease pension it less Director's

M December 31 Docamber 31 Decomber exess N December  contributions

2008 2008 007" Inflatin of piftation 208 (Nota i}

Name of Dwector Yaars Years £pa 1] foa fpa £

D JMagrath 4 2 1788 226 3059 11,073 20,755

AL P Rabin {Note ii) 53 15 54,194 2114 3201 59,589 33,001

| P Tyler 48 12 32,430 1,265 3976 ar6n 35524

P JL Zinkin 55 27 183,469 7,155 12,987 203,611 176,033
* or date of appointment, if later.

Notes:

{il  The wransfar value of the increase in accrued deferred pension is the present value of the increase in excess of inflation in the deferred pension and
associated benefizs during the period, less the Director’s contributions. Transfer values before 1 October 2008 were cakulated on the basis of actuarial
advice in accordance with Actuarial Guidance Note GN11. Transfer values with effective dates after 1 Ociober 2008 are calculated using the ransfer
value basis as determined by the Fund Trustee in accordance with the new transfer value regulations.

{ii) Anthony Rabin's pensionable service inctudes nine yaars of transferrad-in service from previous pensien anangements.

.
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The table below sats out the transfer value at 31 December 2008 of each executive Direcior's acerued deferred pension at that date as well as the
mavement in that transter value over the period. The transfer values reprasent the cash equivalent values that would have been payable from the Fund

had the Directors left service on the dates shown, and raflect the age of the Directar, his period of Fund membership and his pensionable salary.

Transter Contributions va:slervah:\ Transfer

Pensionable vake at rade by ing the year value st

Age at sennice at 31 Decenber Dractor less Unectar's 31 Decentber

i December 31 December 07" during coniisutions 2008

2008 2008 {MNate il the yea Nore i) {Nota i}

Name of Direcier years years £ £ £ £

D J Magrath 4 2 48,527 4528 37,208 90,263

A LP Rabin {Note iii} 53 15 677084 6,037 108,569 192,460

| P Tyler 48 12 311,330 6,037 71,493 388,860

P J L Zinkin 55 27 2,590,734 20,361 415,035 3,025,680

* or date of appointment, if later.

Notes: ‘

{it The transfer value is the present value of the accrued deferred pension and associated benefits at the relevent date, calculated using the transfer
basis then in force, Transfer values before 1 October 2008 were calculated on the basis of actuarial advice in accordance with Actuarial Guidance
Note GN11. Transfer values with effective dates after 1 October 2008 are caleulated using the transfer value basis as determined by the Fund Trustee

in accordance with the naw transfer value regulations. -

{il The figure is the difference between the transfer value of the accrued benefits at the start and end of the period, less the Directos's contributions during

the period.

{iii) Anthony Rabin's pensionable service includes nine years of transferred-in service from previous pension arangaments.

Remuneration report
By order of the Board

R J W Walvis Senior [ndependent Director and chairman of the Remuneration Committee
& March 2009
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Balfour Beatty pic

We have audited the Group and Company financial statements (the
“financial statements”} of Balfour Beatty pic for the year ended
31 December 2008 which comprise the Group and Company income
staternents, the Group and Company balance sheets. the Group and
Company cash flow statements, the Group and Company statements
of recognised income and expense and the related notes 1 to 37.
These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting
policies set ous therein. We have also audited the information in the
Directors’ remunaration report that is described as having bean audited.
This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in
accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters we are required to state o them in an auditors’ report and for no
other purpase, To the fullest extent permitted by faw, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

Basis of audit opinion

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual repart, the Directors’
remunesation report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Financial Reparting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the furopean Union are set out in the Statement of Directors’
responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements and the part of
the Directors’ remungration report 10 be audited in accordance with relevant
legal and regulatory requirements and Iniernational Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland),

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements
give a true and fair view and whether the financial statements and the part
of the Directors” remuneration report to be audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. We atso report
to you whether in our opinign the information given in the Directars’ report
is consistent with the financial statemants. The information given in the
Directors’ report includes that specific information presented in the
Operating review and Financial review that is cross referred from the
Business and firancial review section of the Directors’ report.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not
kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law
regarding Directors” remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the
Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the 2006 Combined Code
specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services
Authority, and we report if it does not. We are not required to consider
whether the Board's statements on iniemal control cover all risks and
controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate
govemance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

We read the other information contained in the annual repert as
described in the contents section of the Directors’ report and accounts
2008 and the contents section of the Annual review 2008, and consider
whether it is consistent with the audited financial statements. We consider
the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements,
Our esponsibilities do not extend to any further information ottside the
annual report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK and lreland] issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit
includes examination, on a iest basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements and the pan of the Directors’
remuneration report to be audited. It also includes an assessment of

the significant estimates and judgements made by the Directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the Group’s and Company's circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to abtain all the information
and explanations which we cansidered necessary i order to provide us
with sufficient evidence w0 give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irreqularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements and
the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited.

Dpinion

In our apinion:

— the financial statemenits give a true and fair view, in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the state of the Group's and
the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2008 and of the Group's profit
and the Company’s loss for the year then ended;

— the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration
report to be audited have been properly prepared in accardance with
the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the Group financial statements,
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation; and

— the information given in the Directors’ report is consistent with the
financia statements.

Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Landon, United Kingdom

4 March 2009
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
Group income statement
208 2007
Before Excaptional Before Exceptioral
axcaptionzl items* jonal e
iteom® Neae By Total ems " INote 8) Totalt
Notes £m Lm fm Em m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue including share of joint ventures and associates 9,486 - 9486 7488 - 7.488
Share of revenue of joint ventures and associates 16 (1.225) - {1,225) {1,022 - (1,022
Group revenue 2 8261 - 8261 6,466 - B,466
Cost of sales {7.628) - (7628)  (5958) {33) (5.992)
Gross profit - 633 507 (33) 474
Net aperating expenses
— amortisation of intangible assets - (1) i27) - (9 19)
— other {478} 51 (427} (394) {6) {400)
Group operating profit 155 2 173 13 {48) €5
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 16 75 {3} 72 65 6 7
Profit from operations 8 230 P 251 178 {42) 136
Investment income 5 43 - 43 42 - 82
Finance costs 7 {24) - {24) {19} 2 21}
Profit before taxation 249 2 20 20 (42} 157
Taxation 9 (66) {8) (74) (53) 65 12
Profit for the year from continuing operations 183 13 196 148 2 169
Loss for the year from discontinued operations 10 — - - 2 120} 18)
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 183 13 1% 150 1 151
* and amortisation of intangible assats (Note 14},
# Re-presented {Note 1.28 and Note 6).
2008 2067
Nates panca pence
Basic earnings per ordinary share
— continuing operations 1 429 393
— discontinued oparations 1 — (4.2}
429 35.1
Diluted earnings per ordinary share
— continuing operations i 427 390
— discontinued operations 1 - 42
427 318
Dividends per ordinary share proposed for the year 12 128 115
For the year ended 31 December 2008
Group statement of recognised income and expense
2008 2007
Notes tm m
Actuarial {losses)/gains on retirement benefit obligations (76) 2
Cash flow hedges - fair value revaluations (1} -
PPP cash flow hedges — fair valuz revaluations (107} {7
- reclassified and reported in net profit - 7
PPP financial assets — fair value revaluations 102 {26)
- reclassified and reported in net profit - {3
Changes in fzir vales of net invesiment hedges (105} {4)
Currency tranglation differences 217 7
Tax on items taken directly to equity 5 5
Netincome/(expense) recognised directly in equity 55 {19)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 196 169
Loss for the year from discontinued aperations - {18}
Total recognised income for the year attributable to equity shareholders 21 251 132
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
Company income statement

208 067
Befom  Excepiional Before Exestion]
exceptional items exeptional REems
items {Note B} Total items# {Nore 8 Totalé
Notes fm £ fm £m £m
Revenue 2 28 - 28 56 - 56
Net oparating expenses {14) 1 (13) (14} 82 68
Profit from operations 14 1 15 a2 82 124
Investment income 5 24 - 24 29 - 29
Finance costs 7 {83) - (83) {53} {24 {55}
{Loss)/Profit before taxation {45) 1 (94) 18 80 98
Taxation ] 17 L] 16 8 - 8
{Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (28) - (28) 26 80 106
# Re-presented (Note 1.28 and Note 6).
For the year ended 31 December 2008
Company statement of recognised income and expense
o] 2007
Nates £m {m
Actuarial loss on retirement benefit obligations (1} {1
Tax on items taken directly to equity 1} -
Net expense recognised directly in equity 2) {1}
{Loss)/Prafit for the year (28) 106
Total recognised {expense)/income for the year attributable to equity shareholders 82 {30) 105




Baltfour Beatty plc m
At 31 December 2008
Balance sheets
Group Company
008 20 xm 2007
Nates fm [4::1 im 3]
Non-current assets
Intangible assets - goodwill 13 975 694 - -
— gther 14 3 59 - -
Property, plant and equipment 15 29 215 1 -
Investments in joint ventures and associates 15 459 ki) - -
Investments 17 55 57 1,738 1,448
PPP financial assets 18 151 62 - -
Deferred tax assets 25 132 125 - 1
Derivative financial instruments 21 3 3 3 2
Trade and other receivables 22 74 77 3 32
2378 1673 1,113 1,481
Current assets
Inventories 13 125 72 - -
Due from customers for contract work 0 383 338 - -
Derivative financial instruments 21 2 1 68 7
Trade and other receivables 2 1183 B8i 587 610
Current tax assets - - 23 6
Cash and cash equivalents — PPP subsidiaries 2 2 3 - -
— other b1 461 391 50 80
2,166 1686 728 703
Total assets 4544 3,359 2,5Mm 2184
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables n {2.168) {1,718} {1,460 {1,268)
Due to customers for contract work b {540) {415} - -
Derivative financial instruments 71 {66) {6} {68} {7)
Current iax liabilities (23) 7 - -
Borrowings — PPP non-recourse lpans 2 - (3) - -
- othar 24 12} {16) {51) {95)
(2809) {2,165} {1,579) {1,370}
Non-current liabilities
Tsade and other payables 3 {152) (135) (25) {26)
Derivative financial instruments bal {40} (6} {3) 2)
Borrowings - PPP non-recourse loans 2 (145) {61} - -
- other 24 {9) {1} - -
Deferred tax liabilities % {10} {7 (1} -
Liahility component of preference shares 28 (87} (87} (87} (87)
Retirement benefit abligations b {261) (286} 7 {9)
Provisions 2z {166} {128) {11) {10}
(870) {7111) {134} (133)
Total liabilities {3,679) 12.876) (1,713 {1,503}
Net assets 865 483 788 681
Equity
Called-up share capital i Fx:] 2i6 39 216
Share premium account bat 54 52 54 52
Equity component of preference shares i 16 18 16 16
Special reserve » 139 164 138 ° i64
Share of joint ventures” and associates’ reserves ] 0 178 - -
Other reserves n by g9 64 48
Retained profits/{accumulated losses) n 104 {152) 216 185
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 851 483 788 681
Minority interests b 1 - - -
Total equity 865 483 788 681
On behalf of the Board
Steve Marshall Director Duncan Magrath Director
4 March 2009
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
Cash flow statements

Group Company
o0 207 208 07
Notes im {m m £m

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from/{used in) operations 3.1 297 7 9 {3}
Income taxes paid {18} (24) (1) (2)
Net cash from/{used in) operating activities 219 253 {10} (5)
Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends received from joint ventures and associates 53 83 28 52

Dividends received from subsidiaries - - - 3

Interest received 27 26 2 29

Acquisition of businesses, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired (302) {198) - -

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (93) {80) 4)] (1)
Purchase of investments - 11 - -

Investment in and loans made to joint ventures and associates {9) (50) - 1

Investment in and loans made to subsidiaries - - (64) {231)
Investment in PPP financial assets (81) {39) - -
Settlement of financial derivatives {48) 4 - -
Disposal of businesses, net of cash and cash equivalents disposed - a2 - -
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 17 9 - -
Disposal of invesiments 2 - - 84

Net cash used in investing activities (434) {164) {13) {63)
Cash flows from financing activities

Procaads from issue of ardinary shares 185 5 186 5

Purchase of ordinary shares (13) 4) {13) {4)
Proceeds from new loans 81 42 - -
Repayment of loans 18) m - -
Repayment of finance leases {2) - - -
Buy-back of preference shares - (83 - it
Ordinary dividends paid (54) {42) {54} {42}
Intarest paid (12) (7 {71} {an)
Preference dividends paid (1) {11} (1} {11}
Net cash from/{used in) financing activities 157 {26} 37 (101)
Netincrease/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2 63 14 (169)
Eftects of exchange rate changes 2 ] - -

Cash and cash equivatents at beginning of year kL) 308 (15} 154

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 32 453 379 {1 15)




Notes to the accounts

1 Principal accounting policies

Batfour Beatty plc

1.1 Basis of accounting

The annual financial staiements have been prepared on a going concem
basis as discussed on page 5 and in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRS) adopted for use in the European Union and
therafore comply with Article 4 of the EU {AS Regulation and with those
parts of the Companies Act 1985 that are applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS. The Group has applied all accounting standards and
interpretations issued by the Intemational Acgounting Standards Board and
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee and adopted by
the Europaan Union relevant 1o its operations and effective for accounting
periads beginning on 1 January 2008.

IAS 1 Presantation of Financial Statements {Revised 2007); IAS 23
Borrowing Costs (Revised 2007); IFRS 3 Business Combinations {revised
2008} {FRS 8 Operating Segments; IFRIC 12 Service Concession
Arrangements; IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes; IFRIC 14 1AS 19—
The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimuin Funding Requirements and
their Interaction; IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construstian of Real Estate;
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation; IFRIC 17
Distributions of Non-Cash Assats to Owners; [FRIC 18 Transfers of Assets
from Customers; Amendment te IFRS 2 Share-based Payment: Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations; Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 27 Cost
of Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly-Contrelted Entity or Associate;
Amendments to IAS 32 and IAS 1 Putteble Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liguidation; Amendments to 1AS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements; Amendment to IAS 39 Financia! Instruments:
Recognition and Measurament: Eligible Hedged ltems and Amendment to
IAS 39 Reclassification of Financial Assets: Effective Date and Transition
were either in issue but not yet effective or not yet endorsed by the
European Union at 4 March 2009.

IAS 1 (Revised 2007} and IFRS 8 affect presentation and disclosures
and therafore arg not anticipated to have any material impact on the
financial statements of the Group. IFRIC 12 relates to the accounting for the
Groun’s PPP concessions and would require certain assets constructed by
certain of the concessions currently accounted for as "available-for-sale”
financial assets to be accounted for as intangible assets. IFRIC 12 1s not
yet adopted for use by the European Union. IAS 23 {Revised 2007), IFRS 3
{revised 2008}, IFRIC 13, IFRIC t4, IFRIC 15, IFRIC 16, IFRIC 17, IFRIC 18
and the emendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 1, 1AS 27, 1AS 32 and IAS 39 listed
above, are not expected to have & significant impact on the Group's
financial statements,

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except as described under Note 1.19. The principal accounting
policies adapted, all of which have been applied consistently throughout the
year and the preceding year, are set out below,

The functional and presentational currency of the Company, and the
presentational currency of the Group, is sterling.

1.2 Basis of consclidation

The Group accounts includz the accounts of the Company and its
substdiaries, together with the Group's share of the results of joint ventures
and associates drawn up to 31 December each year.

a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which tha Group has control, being the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of the investes entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities. The results of subsidiaries acquired

or sold in the year are consolidated from the effective date of acquisition
or to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

DIRECTORS' REPORT
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The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition
of subsidiaries by the Group. On acquisition, the assets, liabilities and
contingent Habilities of a subsidiary are measured at their fair values at the
date of acquisition. Any excass of the fair value of the cost of acquisition
over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as
goodwill. Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the fair values of
the identifiable net assets acquired {discount on acquisition} is credited to
the income statement in the period of acquisition. The interest of minority
shareholders is stated at the minority's proportion of the fair value of the
assets and liabilities recognised.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries are adjusted where necessary
1o ensure consistency with those used by the Group. All intra-group
transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on
consolidation,

b} Joint ventures and associates
Joint ventures are those entities aver which the Group exercises joint
control through a contractual arrangement. Associates are entities over
which the Group is in a position to exercise significant influence but not
control or joint control, through participation in the financial and operating
palicy decisions of the investee. The results, assets and liahilities of joint
.ventures and associates are incorporatad in the financial statements vsing
the equity methed of accounting except when classified as held for sale.
The equity return from the military housing jeint venturas of Balfour Beatty
Cormunities is cantractually fimited to a maximum pre-agreed level of
return, beyond which Balfour Beatty Communities does not share in
any increased return. Investrments in joint ventures and associates are
initially carried in the balance sheet at cost (including goodwill arising on
acquisition) and adjusted by post-acquisition changes in the Group's share
of the net assets of the joint venture or associate, less any impairment in
the value of individual investments. Losses af joint ventures and associates
in excess of the Group’s interest in those joint ventures and associates
are only recognised to the extent that the Group is contractually liable for,
or has a constructive obligation to meet the obligations of the joint ventures
and associates.

Unrealised gains and losses on transactions with joint ventures and
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
relevant jaint venture or associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's sharg of the
fair values of the identifiable net assets of the associate or joint venturg
entity at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. Any deficiency
of the cost of acquisiticn below the Group's share of the fair values of
the identifiable net assets of the joint venture or associate at the date of
acquisition {discount on acquisition) is credited to the income statement
in the period of acquisttion.

¢} Jointly controlled operations

The Group’s share of the results and net assets of contracts carried out in
conjunction with another party are included under each relevant heading in
the income statement and balance sheet.

1.3 Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange at the balance
sheet date.

In order to hedge its exposure ta certain foreign exchangs risks,
the Group enters into forward exchange contracts (see below for
details of the Group's accounting policies in respect of such derivative
financial instruments).
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Notes to the accounts

1 Principal accounting policies centinued

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the results
of overseas subsidiaries, associates and joint venture entities are translated
at average rates of exchange ior the year, unless the exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates
at the date of transaciions are used. Assets and liabilities are translated at
the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Goodwill and fair
value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date.

Exchange differences arising are transfered to the Group's foreign
currency transtation reserve, These exchange differences are recognised
in the income statement an disposal of the underlying net investment.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated as hedges of net
investments in foreign operations are recognised directly in equity, to the
extent that they are effective, with the ineffective portion being recognised
in the income statement.

1.4 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for goods and services provided, net of trade discounts, value
added and similar sales-based taxes, after eliminzting sales within the
Group. Revenue is recognised as follows:

— revenue from construction and service activities represents the value of
work camied out during the year, incfuding amounis not invoiced;

— revenue from manufacturing activities is recognised when title has
passed; and

— interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
eutstanding and the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected fife of the {inancial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.
Dividend income ts recognised when the shareholder’s right to recaive
payment is established.

1.5 Segmental reparting

Segmental information is based on two segment formats, of which the
primary farmat is for business areas in accordance with the Group's internal
réporting structure and the secondary format is for geographical areas.
Further infarmation on the business activities of each segment are set out
in the Annual review 2008. Segment results represent the contribution of
the different segments directly attributable to corporate overheads and
the profit of the Group. Transactions between segments are conducted

at arm's length market prices. Segment assets and liahilities comprise
those assets and liabilities directly attributable to the segments, including
the subordinated loans to PPP investments. Corporate assets and
liabilities include cash balances, bank borrowings, tax batances and
dividends pavable.

1.6 Construction and service contracts

When the outcome of individual contracts can be foreseen with reasonable
certainty and can be estimated reliably, margin is recognised by reference
1o the stage of completion, based on the lower of the percentage margin
earned to date and that forecast at completion. The stage of completion

is normally measured by the proportion of coniract costs incurred for work
performed to date to the estimated total contract costs or the propartion

of the value of work done to the total value of work under the contract,
except where these would not be representative of the stage of completion.
Full provision is made for all known or expected losses on individual
contracts immediately once such losses are foreseen. Margin in respect of
variations in contract work, claims and intentive payments is recognised

if it is probable they will result in revenue. Gross profit for the year
includes the benefit of claims settled on coniracts completed in prior years.

Pre-contract costs are expensed as incurred untl it is virtually certain that

a contract will be awarded, from which time further pre-contract costs are
recognised as an asset and chamed as an expense over the period of the
contract. Amounts recovered in respect of pre-contract costs that have been
written off are deferred and amortised over the life of the contract.

1.7 Profit from operations

Profit from operations is siated after the share of the posi-tax results of
equity accounted joint venture entities and associates, but before
investment income and finance costs.

1.8 Finance costs

Finance costs of debt, including premiums payable en settlement and direct
issue costs, are charged 1o the income statement on an accruals basis over
the term of the instrument, using the effective interest method.

1.9 Research and development

Research expenditure is written off in the period in which it 1s inturred.
Internally-generated intangible assets arising from the Group's

development are recognised only if all the fallowing canditions are met:

— anasset is created that can be identified;

— itis probable that the asset created will generate fulure economic
benefits; and

— the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably. .

1.10 Exceptional items

Material and non-recurring items of income and expense are disclosed in
the income statement as "Exceptional items”. Examples of items which

may give rise to disclosure as “Exceptional items” include gains or losses an
the disposal of businesses, investments and property, plant and equipment,
costs of restructuring and reorganisation of existing businesses, integration
of newly acguired businesses, premium paid on the repurchase of
preference shares, litigation and regulatory seitfements, asset impairments
and pension scheme settlements and curtailments.

1.11 Taxation

The tax charge is composed of current tax and deferred tax, calcutated using
1ax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date. Current tax and deferred tex are charged or credited to the
income statement, except when they relate to items charged or eredited
directly to equity, n which case the relevant tax is also dealt with in equity.

Current tax is based on the profit for the year.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary
difterences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax on such assets
and liabilities is not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or from the initia} recognition {other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temparary
differences can be utilised, The cairying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture entities, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temparary difference can be
controlled and it 1§ probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
1o settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis,




Balfous Beatty plc

1 Principal accounting policies continued

1.12 Intangible assets

a) Goodwisl

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of consideration over the
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired, arising on the
acquisition of subsidiaries and other business entities, joint ventures and
associates. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidizries and other business
entities is included in non-current assets. Goodwill on acguisitions of
joint ventures and associates is included in investments in joint ventures
and associates.

Goodwill is reviewed annually for impairment and is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwil ts included when determining
the profit or loss on subsequent disposal of the business to which it relates.

Goodwitl arising en acquisitions before the date of ransition to IFRS
{1 January 2004} has been retained at the pravious UK GAAP amounts
subject to being tested for impairment. Goodwill written off or negative
goodwill credited to reserves under UK GAAP prior to 1998 has not been
reinstated and is not included in determining any subsequent profit or
loss on disposal.

b) Other intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. The cost of intangible assets is amortised over their
expected useful lives, which range from one to eight years, except for
intangible assets inrespect of military housing contracts, which are
amortised on 8 basis matching the returns eared over the life of the
underlying contracts which have a duration of up to 50 years.

1.13 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cast less accumulated
depreciation and any recognised impairment lass. Cost includes expenditure
associated with bringing the asset to its operating focation and condition.

Certain land and buildings were revalued under UK GAAP,

On transition to IFRS, the Group has efected to use the revalued amount
as deemed cost.

Except for land and assets in the course of construction, the costs of
property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their expected useful
lives, on a straight-line basis at rates of 2.5% for buildings or over the lifa
of the lease and on a straight-ling basis at rates of 4% to 33% for plant
and equipment,

1.14 Leasing

Leases which transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee are classified as finance leases. All other leases are classified
as operating leases,

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group
at their fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each determined at the inception of the lease, and depreciation
ts provided accordingly. The corresponding lizbility to the lessor is included
in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
appartioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation
50 as 1o achizve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability.

Aentals payable under opsrating leases are charged 1o income on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are also spread
on a straight-ling basis over the lease term,

DIRECTORS” REPORT
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1.15 Impairment of assets

Goodwill arising en acquisitions and other assets that have an indefinite
useful life and are not subject to amortisation are reviewed at least annually
for impairment. Other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for impairment whenever there is any indication that tha
carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, an impairment koss

is recognised.

Recoverahle amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. Valus in use is assessed by discounting the estimated future
cash flows that the asset is expectad to generate. For this purpose assets,
including goodwill, &re grouped into cash generating units representing the
lowest level at which they are monitored by the Group's Board of Directors
for intemal management purposes. Impairment losses for goodwill are not
reversed in subsequent periods. Reversals of other impairment losses are
recognised in income when they arise.

1.16 Investments
tnvestments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where a
purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms require
delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at cost, inctuding transactian costs.
From 1 January 2005, investments are classified as either available-
for-sale or held to maturity, Available-for-sale investments are measured
at subseguent reporting dates at fair value. Gains and lgsses arising from
thanges in the fair value of available-for-sale investments are recognised
directly in equity. until the investment s disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is included in the net
profit or loss for the period. Held to maturity investments are measured at
subsequent reporting dates at emartised cast.

1.17 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and groups of assets to be disposed of are classified
as held for sale if their carmying amount wil! be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. Held for sale assets are
measured at the lower of carrying amounit and fair value less costs to sell.

1.18 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the iower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost, where appropriate, includes a proportion of manufacturing overheads
incurred in bringing inventories to their present location and condition

and is determined using the first-in first-out method. Net reafisable value
represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

1.18 Financial instruments

financial assets and financial tiabilities are recognised on the Group's
balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

a} Cumulative convertible redeamable preference shares
The Company’s cumulative convertible redeemahle prefersnce shares are
regarded as a compound instrument, consisting of a liability component and
an equity companent. The fair value of the Hability component at the date of
issue was estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for a similar
non-convertible instrument. The difference between the proceeds of issue of
the preference shares and the fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the embedded option to coavert the liability inte the Company’s
ardinary shares, is included in equity.

The interest expense on the liability component is calculated
by applying the market interesi rate for similar non-convertible debt
prevailing at the date of issue to the liability component of the instrument.
The ditference between ihis amount and the dividend paid is added to the
carrying amount of the fiability component and is included in finance
charges, together with the dividend payable, in the income statement.
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Notes to the accounts

1 Principal accounting policies continued

b} Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage interest rate

risk and io hedge exposures to fluctuations in foreign eurrencies. The Group
does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

A description of the Group’s objectives, poficies and strategies with regard
to derivatives and other financial instruments is setout in Note 21 and in the
Financial review on pages 310 5.

Derivatives are initially recognised on the balance sheet at fair value
on the date the derivative transaction is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair values.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify
as fair value hedges are recognised in the income statement together with
any changes in the fair value of the hedged item that are attributable to
the hedged risk.

Changes in the fair value of the effective portion of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in equity.
Changes in the fair value of the ineffective postion of cash flow hedges are
recognised in the income statement. Amounts accumulated in equily are
transferred to the income statement when the underlying transaction occurs
or, if the transaction results in a non-financial asset o liability, arg included
in the inival cost of that asset o liability.

Changes in the fair value of the effective portion of derivatives
that are designated and qualify as hedges of ret investments in foreign
operations ara recognised in equity. Changes in the fair value of the
ineffective portion of net investment hedges are recognised in the income
statemnent. Amounts accumudated in equity are ransferred to the income
statemnant when the foreign operation is disposed of.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that do
not qualify for hedge accounting are recognisad in the income statement
as they arise.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. At that time, any cumulative gain o loss on the hedging
instrument recognised in equity is retained in equity until the forecasted
transaction occurs. If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur,
the net cumulative gain of loss recognised in equity 18 transferred to net
profit or loss for the period.

Berivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host
coniracts are treated as separate derivatives and recorded on the balance
sheet at fair value when their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the hast contract. Changes in the fair value of those
embedded derivatives recognised on the balance sheet are recognised in
the income statement as they arise.

¢} PPP concession companies
Assats canstructed by PPF concession companies are classified as
“avatlable-for-sale financial assets™.

Income is recognised by allocating a proportion of total cash projected
to be received over the life of the project to service costs, by means of
a deemed constant rate of retum on those costs. The residual element
of projected cash is allocated to the financial asset, using the effective
interest method, giving rise to interest income which is recognised in
the income statement.

The fair value of the financial asset is measured at sach balance sheet date
by computing the discountad fuiure value of the cash flows allpcated to the
financial asset. The movement in the fair value of the financial asset since
the previous balance sheet date is taken 10 equity.

1.20 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are initially recorded at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost as reduced by appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts.

121 Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are stated at their nominal
value.

1.22 Bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank Joans and overdrats are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, including premiums
payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are charged io
income on an accruals basis using the effectiva interest method and are
added to the carrying amount of the instrument {o the extent that they are
not settled in the period in which they arise.

1.23 Retirement benefit costs
The Group, through trustees, operates a number of defined benefit and
defined contribution pension sthemes the majority of which are of the
defined benefit type and are funded. Defined benefit cantributions are
determined in consuliation with the trustees, after taking actuarial advice.
For defined benefit retirement benefit schemes, the cost of providing
banefits recagnised in the income statement and the defined benefit
cbligations are determined at the balance sheet date hy independent
actuaries, using the projected unit credit method, The Tiability recognised
in the balance sheet comprises the prasent value of the definad benefit
pension obligation, determined by discounting the estimated future cash
flows using the rate of intgrest on a high quality corporate bond, less the
fair value of the plan assets, Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in
full outside the income statement in the period in which they occur in
the statement of recognised income and expense.
Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are charged
to the income statement as they fall due.

1.24 Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, legal claims, onerous leases and
other onerous commitments are recognised at the best estimate of the
expenditure required 1o settle the Group's liability. Provisions are recognised
when the Group has a present [agal or consiructive obligation as a result

of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be

required io settle the obligatior; and the amount of the ebligation can

be estimated reliably.

1.25 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabifities and equity instruments are classified according o

the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into. An equity
instrument is any contract thai evidences aresidual interest in the assets
of the Group after deducting all of its liabilitias. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recorded &t the proceeds received, net of direct

{SSUE COSts.
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1.26 Share-hased payments

Employee services received in exchange for the grant of share options,
performance share plan awards and deferred bonus plan awards since

7 November 2002 are charged in the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the fair values of the aptions

or awards at the date of grant and the numbers expected to become
exercisable. The credits in respect of the amounts charged are included
within separate reserves in equity until such time as the options or awards
are exercised, when the proceeds received in respect of share options
are credited to share capital and share premium or the shares held by the
employee trust are transferred 1o employees in respect of performance
share plan awards and deferred bonus plan awards.

1.27 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of consolidated financial statements under IFRS requires
management to make estimates and assumptians that affect amounts
recognised for assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and the
amounts of revenue and expense incurred during the reporting period.
Actual outcomes may therefore differ from these estimates and
assumptions. The estimates and assumptions that have the most significant
impact on the carrying value of assets and habilities of the Graup within

the next financial year are discussed below and in the Financial review.

a} Revenue and margin recognition

The Group's revenue recognition and margin recagnition policies, which
are set out in Notes 1.4 and 1.5, are ceniral to the way the Group values
the work it has carsied out in each financial year. These policias require
forecasts to he made of the outcomes of long-term construction and
service contrasts, which reguire assessments and judgements to be
made on recovery of pre-contract costs, changes in wark scopes,
contract programmes, maintenance liabilities and changes in costs.

b} Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
valug in use of the cash generating units to which the goodwill has been
allocated, The valug in use calculation requires an estimate to be made of
the timing and amount of future cash flows expected 10 arise {rom the cash
generating unit and the application of a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The discount rates used are based on the
Group's weighted average cost of capital adjusted to reflect the specific
economic environment of the relevant cash generating unit. The carrying
vatue of goodwill at 31 December 2008 was £975m.

c) Avaifable-for-sale financial assets

Assets constructed by the Group’s PPP subsidiary, joint venture and
associate companies are classified as “available-for-sale financial assats™
and at 31 December 2008 had a valut of £1,814m. The fair value of these
financia! assets is measured at each balance sheet date by discounting
the future value of the cash flows allocated to the financial asset. A range
of discount rates, varying from 6% to 9%, is used which refiects the
prevailing risk-free interest rates and the different risk profiles of the
various concessions. A £102m gain was taken to equity in 2008 as a
resuit of movements in the fair value of these financial assets.

d} PPP derivative financial instruments

The Group's PPP subsidiary, joint venture and associate companies use
derivazive financial instruments {principally swaps) to manage the interest
rate and inflation rate risks to which the concessions are exposed by their
long-term contractual agreements. These derivatives are initially recognised
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as assets and liabilities at their fair value and subsequently remeasured
at each balance sheet date at their fair value. The fair value of derivatives
constantly changes in response to prevailing market conditions.

At 31 Decamber 2008, a cumulative fair value loss of £159m had arisen
on these financial instruments and a loss of £107m was taken 1o equity
in 2008.

&} Retirement benefit obligations
Details of the Group’s defined benefit pension schemes are set out in

- Note 26, inctuding a table showing the sensitivity of the pension scheme

obligations and the prospective 2009 charge to the income statement o
different actuarial assumptions. At 31 December 2008, the defined benefit
liabiiity recognised on the Group’s balance sheet was £261m {2007, £286m).
Effects of changes in the actuarial assumptions underlying the benefit
obligation, discount rates and the differences between expacted and actual
returns on the schemnes’ assets are classified as actuarial gains and losses.
During 2008 the Group recognised net actuarial losses of £76m in equity
{2007: £2m gain), including its share of the actuarial gains and losses arising
in joint ventures and associates.

f} Taxation
The Group is subject to tax in a number of jurisdictions and judgement
is required in determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.

The Group provides for future fiabilities in respect of uncertain tax
positions where additional tax may become payable in future periods, and
such provisions are based on management’s assessment of exposures.

As set out in Note 1.11 above, deferved tax is accounted for an
temporary differences using the liability method, with deferved tax liabilities
generally being provided for in full and deferred tax assets being recognised
to the extent that it s probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Note 25.2 details
the unused tax losses for which deferred tax assets have not been
recognised and the undistributed reserves of subsidiaries for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been provided, together with the judgements which
the Group has made at 31 December 2008 in respect of these matters.
These judgements may change in the future and they will be reviewed at
each balance sheet date.

1.28 Change in classification of retirement benefit costs

In order to better reflect the operating performance of the Group, certain
pension refated income and costs have been reclassified within the income
statement in the current year as permitted by |AS 19. The net amount of the
interest cost for the unwind of the pension obligations and the expected
return on scheme assets has been reclassified out of net operating expenses
to investment income. 2007 comparative amounts have been re-presented to
reflect this change.

1.29 Exchange rates
The following exchangs rates were applied in the preparation of
these accounts:

Average rates

£1 boys 2008 2007 Change
ust 1.86 2.00 {71%
EUR 1.26 1.46 {14}%
Closing rates

£1 buys 20 o Charge
usp 1.46 1.99 {271%
EUR 1.05 1.36 {231%
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2 Revenue
Group Groug Company Comparny
s 2007 2008 2007
fm £m fm £m
Revenue from contracting activities — tonstruction 1475 2753 - -
— services 643 602 - -
Revenue from manufacturing activities 143 110 - -
Praceeds from sale of development land - 1 - 1
Dividends from subsidiaries - - - 3
Dividends from joint ventures and associates - - 3 52
8,261 6,466 28 56
3 Segment analysis — continuing operations
3.1 Total Group
Building, Livil and Corporate
buildisg speciafist Rail costs, assets
and zervi and s ices Ii-biﬁu.‘:: Total
0 2008 208 208 2008 200
fm m m fm £m £m
Performance by activity;
Results
Revenue including share of joint ventures and associates 4,635 3243 1,055 553 - 9,486
Share of revenue of joint ventures and associates {137) {656} (39) (393) - {1,225)
Group revenue 4,498 2587 1016 160 - 8,261
Group operating profit B4 85 kL] {19) {(34) 155
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 1 19 2 50 - 75
Profit from operations before exceptional items and amartisation 88 104 # k) (34) 30
Exceptional items m (5) - {5) 59 48
Amortisation of intangible assets {14) {3) 1) {9) - (27)
Profit from operations 73 9% 40 17 25 251
Investment income 43
Finance costs {24)
Profit before taxation 210
Assets and liabilities
Intangible assets — goodwill 477 243 204 51 - 975
- other 60 8 4 151 - 223
Investments in joing ventures and associates 6 6% 9 85 - 469
Other assels 921 534 178 614 2871
Total assets 1,464 950 P 765 614 4,544
Total liabilities {1,769) (845) (553) {105) (407) (3.579)
(305) 105 198 6560 207 865
Other information
Capital expenditure 10 1] 3 1 1 93
Depreciation 8 38 16 1 2 65
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3 Segment analysis - contineing operations continued
3.1 Total Group continued
T wm @
fm £m £m m
Performance by geographic origin:
Group revenue 558 2216 64 8.261
Profit from operations befare exceptional items and amortisation 147 59 24 230
Exceptional items 1 3) - 48
Amotisation of intangible assets {10} {17) - (27}
Profit from operations 188 33 24 251
Segment assets (net) 18 9 61 561
Liability companent of preference shares (87}
Net cash 297
Tax and dividends 9
Net assets 865
Capital expenditure 80 12 1 93
* Other principally comprises the Group’s operations in Dubai and Hong Kong.
Beilding, Crvil and . Corporate
buiiding specialist Fai COSIS, ASSETS
"a?d:am ;?m m lmli?: Toal
2004 20074 0 20074 2074 204
£m fm m m m £m
Performance by activity:
Results e
Hevenue inctuding share of joint ventures and associates 3640 2,668 785 394 1 1,488 §
Share of revenue of joint ventures and associates {113) {556} {10} (343 - (1.022})] §
Group revenue 3,527 YALY: 715 51 1 6,466 5
Group aperating profit 70 59 39 (25) (30) 3
Share of resuits of joint veniures and associates - 23 1 L)l - 65
Profit from aperations before exceptional items and amortisation 70 82 40 16 {30 178
Exceptional items {26} {9 - - {33}
Amortisation of intangible assets {6} {3) - - - {9)
Profit from operations B 70 42 16 {30 135
Investment income 42
Finance costs (21}
Profit before taxation 157
Assets and liabilities
Inangible assets — goodwill 330 213 51 - - 694
—qther 47 9 K| - - 5% —
Investments in joint ventures and assaciates 3 75 4 299 - 381
Other assets 745 538 37 123 462 2,225
Total assets 1,125 835 515 Ly 462 3,359
Total liabilities {1,315) (677} (403} (123) {358} {2,876)
(190} 158 12 299 104 483
Other information
Capital expenditure 1 45 19 i 4 80
Depreciation 5 27 15 1 2 50

# Re-presented (Note 1.28 and Note 6).
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3 Segment analysis — continuing operations continued

3.1 Total Group cnnﬁnued

Ewope  MuthAmenca Diher® Total
0074 20074 2007 20
fm Em £m £m
Performance by geographic ongin;
Group revenue 4,958 141 37 6,466
Profit from operations hefore exceptional items and amaortisation 132 18 28 178
Exceptional items 27} {6} - {33)
Amortisation of intangible assets {4 {5) - {9)
Profit from operations 101 7 28 136
Segment assets {net] 43 42 67 152
Liability component of preference shares {87}
Net cash 33
Tax and dividends 105
Net assets 483
Capital expenditure 67 13 - 80
* Other principally comprises the Group's operations in Dubai and Hong Kong.
# Re-presented (Note 1.28 and Note 6).
3.2 Investments (Balfour Beatty Capital and Balfour Beatty Communities)
The Investments segment includes the Group's PPP activities, infrastructure investments and US military housing.
Share of joint Shave of jomt
ventures and veniures and
Group s3EoCines Total Group assaciaes. Towl
208 2008 2008 207 Fivi] o0
Em £m fm £m £m Em
Revenue
PPP
- joint ventures and associates [Note 16.2) - 293 293 - 275 275
— subsidiaries {Note 3.3) %5 - 95 51 - 51
Millitary housing 63 - 63 - - -
158 293 451 51 275 326
Infrastructure
— jaint ventures and associates (Note 16.2) - 100 100 - 68 68
- subsidiaries 2 - 2 - - -
160 33 553 51 343 394
Share of joim Share of ot
vertures and vemees and
Group associstes Total Group associates Total
2008 2008 2008 207 2007 07
fm £m [ £m i £m
Profit from operations - before exceptional items
and amortisation of intangible assets*
PPP
- joint ventures and associates (Note 16.2) - k]| Ki| - 29 29
— subsidiaries {Note 3.3) 1 - 1 1 - 1
— bidding costs and overheads {27} - n (26} - 26)
Military housing
— joint ventures and associates (Noie 16.2) - 2 2 - - -
— subsidiaries 10 - 10 - ~ -
{16) 1 17 {25) 29 4
Infrastructure
— joint ventures and associates (Note 16.2} - 17 17 - 12 12
— subsidiaries (3} - (3} - ~ -
{19) 50 3 {25] 41 16

* Profit from operations before exceptional items and amortisation of intangible assets includes the Group's share of profit sfier taxation of joint ventures

and associates {excluding exceptional items and amortisation of intangible assets),
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3 Segment analysis — continuing operations continued
3.2 Investments {Batfour Beatty Capital and Balfour Beatty Communities) continued
Share of joim Share of jomt
ventures and ventures Bnd
Group associstes Total Groug associates Toal
208 208 203 07 2007 2007
fm fm Em £m Em fm
Net assets
PPP
— joint ventures and associates {Note 16.2 and 16.3} - 253 253 - 212 12
— subsidiaries {Note 3.3} 18 - 118 58 - 58
— Reimbursed pre-contract ¢osts and development fees (27) - (27 (33) - {33}
— loans from joint ventures and associates (25) - {25) (25) - (25}
Military housing
— joint ventures and associates {Note 16.2) - 48 48 - - -
- subsidiaries 199 — 199 - - -
265 n 566 - 212 212
Infrastructure
— joint ventures and associates {Note 16.2) - 84 83 - 87 87
- subsidiaries 10 - 10 - - -
215 385 660 - 299 299

3.3 PPP service company concession subsidiaries

The Group has a 100% interest in four PPP concessions through its shareholdings in Connect Roads Sunderland Holdings Ltd, Connect Roads South Tyneside
Holdings Ltd, Connect Roads Derby Holdings Ltd and Transform Schools (Knows'ley) Holdings Ltd. Fhe performance of the wholly-owned PPP concessions

and their balance sheets are summarised below:

2000 207
i £m
Income statement
Group revenue 95 9
Profit from operations 1 1
investment income 7 2
Finance cosis {6) {2)
Profit before taxation 2 1
Taxation (n -
Profit for the year 1 i
Cash flow
Profit from operations 1 i
Decrease/{increase) in working capital 3 {3)
Income taxes paid = -
Net cash inilow/{ousftow) from operating activities 4 {2
Net cash outflow from investing activities {80} (36)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (6} {2)
Net cash outilow {82) (40}
Nei borrowings at beginning of year {61) {21)
Net borrowings at end of year {133} {61)
Balance sheet
PPP financial assets {Note 18} 151 62
Derivative financial instruments (39} {5)
Other net current assets 6 1
Cash and cash equivalents 2 3
Non-recourse term loans {145) {B4)
Net liabilities (25) {3
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4 Profit from operations

4.1 Profit from operations is stated after charging/{crediting):

2008 o
£m fm
Research and development costs ] 3
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 65 50
Amortisation of other intangible assets 27 9
Impairment of trade receivables 5 ]
Profit on disposat of property, plant and equipment (4) {3
Cost of manufacturing inventory recognised as an expense 9 72
Auditors’ remuneration 5 4
Hire charges for plant and equipment 120 15
Other operating lease rentals 59 45
4.2 Analysis of auditors’ remuneration:
2008 07
£m m
Services as auditors 0.7 06
(Other services - auditing of accounts of subsidiaries 29 21
Group audit fee 36 27
QOther sarvices — independent review of interim report 02 0.2
~taxservices - compliance 01 0.1
— atvisory 1 0.2
—other services — acquisition due diligence 20 04
—other 01 0.2
6.1 38
Acruisition due diligence fees capitalised 11 0.2
Fees in relation to audit and other services recognised within expenses 50 K]
5 Employee costs
5.1 Group
Employee costs during the year amounted to:
2008 2067
£m Em
Wages and salaries 1416 1,200
Redundancy 8 2
Social security costs 133 116
Pension costs (Note 26.1) nI 7
Share-based payments (Note 31.1} 9 7
1,639 1.396
* Re-prasenied (Note 1.28 and Note 6).
The average number of Group employees {including executive Directors) was:
Mmﬁ Nur%l?:g
Building, buiding management and services 18114 15,398
Civil and specialist engineering and sarvices 14,264 13412
Rail engineering and services 6121 5,642
lnvestments 13 232
Corporate 13 95
39,525 34,719

At 31 December 2008, the total number of Group employees was 41,030 {2007: 36,080}
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5 Employee costs continued

5.2 Company

Tha average number of employses of Balfour Beatty plc was 104 {2007: 80). Total employes costs of Balfour Beatty plc were £23m {2007: £19m).
Total employae costs comprise wages and safaries £16m (2007; £13m), social security costs £1m {2007: £1m), pension costs £2m {2007: £2m) and
share-based payments £4m (2007: £3m).

6 Investment income

Grovp Group Company Comparny

s Fao ot he 2008 2007

£m Im fm fm

PPP subordinated debt interest receivable 12 i1 4 3
PPP interest on financial assets 7 2 - -
income arising from derivatives designated as hedges of et investments in foreign operations 6 - - -
Interest receivable from subsidiaries - - 18 2
Net invastment income on pension scheme assets and liabilities (Note 26.1) 5 13 - ]
Other interest receivable and similar income 13 16 2 4
L k] 42 24 29

* Investment income has been re-presented io include the interest cost for the unwind of the pension abligations and the expected return on scheme assets,
which have been reclassified out of net operating expenses. Refer to Noie 26.1 for a breakdown of the Group pension related net investment income
recognised.

7 Finance costs

Group Group Company Compary

i uﬁiﬁ fm
Preference shares —finance cost 12 12 12 12 o
PPP non-recourse ~ bank loans and overdrafts 6 2 - - DE,
Finance costs arising from derivatives designated as hedges of net investments in foreign operations - 1 - - §
Interest payable 10 subsidiaries - - 65 B 5
Other interest payable — bank loans and overdrafts 5 3 6 ° i o

- other loans 1 1 — -

2 19 83 83

Exceptional items — premium on buy-back of preference shares - 2 - 2

24 21 83 55

A preference dividend of 5.375p gross (4.8375p net) per cumulative convertible redeemable preference share of 1p was paid in respect of the six months
ended 30 June 2008 on 1 July 2008 to holders of these shares on the register on 30 May 2008, A preference dividend of 5.375p gross (4.8375p net}

per cumulative convertible redeemable preference share was paid in respect of the six months ended 31 December 2008 on 1 January 2009 te hofders
of these shares on the register on 21 November 2008.
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8 Exceptional items and amortisation of intangible assets

Group . Broup Company Company
208 2008

i) 07
£m im £
8.1 Credited to/{charged against) profit from operations
Net operating expenses — reduction in pension past service liabifities . 60 - 2 -
— post-acquisition integration, reorganisation and other costs (6) {6} m -
— sale of investment - - - 82
— adjustment to Birse Group goodwill {3) - - -
Cost of sales — Metronet — contract losses - (33} - -
Share of joint ventures
and associaies —Metronet — contract profits - 6 - -
- 1ax adjustments 3) - - -
a8 {33} 1 82
8.2 Charged against finance costs
— premium on buy-back of preference shares - {2) - {2}
8.3 Credited toficharged against) profit before taxation 48 {35} 1 80
—tax on items above {15) i {1 -
— tax credit on recognition of Birse Group losses 3 - - -
— industrial buildings allowances {3} - - -
— recognition of US deferred tax assets - 51 - -
Credited to profit from continuing operations 33 7 - 80
8.4 Credited toficharged against) profit from discontinued operations
— profit on sale of operations - 57 - -
— Metronet — impairment of investment - {87) - -
— tax thergon - 0 - -
Exceptional items credited to profit for the year 3 7 - 80
Amortisation of intangible assets {27) (9} - -
Tax thereon . 7 3 — -
Credited to profit for the year 13 1 - 80

8.1 In 2008 the Group has implemented measures to limit the increase in pension benefits of ceriain groups of in-service members of the Balfour Beatty

Pension Fund giving rise to a reduction in past service lizbilities of £60m {2007: £nil), of which £2m was recognised within the Company accounts.
Reorganisation and integration costs of £6m (2007: £6m) have been incurred, £3m relating to Balfour Beatty Commurities (formerly GMH Military

Housing), £1m of which was bome by the Company, and £2m reiating to Dean & Dyball. Further costs of £1m have been incurred in the US on the

reorganisation of the central division of Balfour Beatty Infrastructure Inc {formerly Balfour Beatty Construction inc} (2007: £1m). The 2007 exceptional items
also included costs incurred on the reorganisation and iniegration of Balfour Beatty Construction Group Inc {formerly Centex Construction) {2007: £3m) and

the reorganisation of Baifour Beatty Rail Inc {2007: £2m).

On the acquisition of Birse Group, tax losses were acquired which did not satisfy the criteria for recognition in the balance sheet at the date of
acquisition. A portion of these losses is now recognisable and the benefit is recorded as part of the Group’s tax charge in exceptional items. IAS 12
stipulates that in addition to recognising the iax benefit the carrying amount of goodwill recognised on the acquisition is reduced, with the reduction
treated as an expense,

1In 2007, as a result of the request by Metronet Rail BCV Ltd to the Arbiter for an Extraordinary Review of the incurred and forecast costs, his
subsequent interim award, and the consequent appointment to both Metronet Rail BCV Ltd and Matronet Rail SSL Lid {collectively “Metronet”) of a PPP
Administrator, provision was made for an estimate of the costs resulting from the administration of Metranet, including the impact an its contract with

Transdm Ltd, in which the Group owns 25% of the ordinary share capital and with which certain Group subsidiaries contracted, and other direct contracts

with Group subsidiaries. These costs included, whese relevant, provision for winding down contracts, outstanding receivables and settlement of ather
trading items,

Fellowing enactment of the UK Finance Act 2008, tax depreciation allowances on industrial buildings are being reduced to nil on a phased basis.
Joint ventures and associates of the Group have recognised a £4m deferred tax charge (2007: £nil} which is required under (AS 12 1o establish a
deferred tax liability. This liability will be released to the income statement as the relevant assets are depreciated for accounting purposes. In addition,
a £1m defemed tax credit{2007: £nil) has been recognised following agreement with HMRAC as to the basis of taxing ceriain PP concessions.
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8.2 The exceptional items charged against finance costs are the premium of £0.1m {2007: £2m) arising on the repurchase for cancellation of 0.3m
(2007: 5.0m} preference shares at a cost of £0.4m {2007; £8m).

8.3 The exceptional items credited to/{charged against) profit from operations have given rise to a net tax charge of £12m (2007 £11m ¢redit). In addition,
subsidiaries of the Group have recognised a £3m deferred tax charge {2007: £nil} to establish a deferrad tax liability, in relation to industrial building
allowances which is required under [AS 12. This liability will be released to the income statement as the relevant buildings are depreciated for
accounting purposes.

In 2007, as a result of the acquisition of Balfour Beatty Construction Group Inc {formerly Centex Construction), the benefits of tax losses and other tax
a?sfets ansing from temporary differences in the US crystallised and were recognised in full in accordance with 1AS 12, giving rise to an exceptional gain
of £51m.

8.4 In 2007, approva! o the sale of the Group's 24.5% interest in its associate, Devonpost Management Ltd, was obtained from the Ministry of Defence
on 26 June, at which time this investment became held for sate. On 2B June 2007, the Group completed the sale of this investrent for a total cash
consideration of £86m, resulting in 2 gain on disposal of £57m, which was credited to profit from discontinued aperations. The carrying value of this
investment at the date of sale was £27m. Costs associated with the disposal amounted to £2m. As a result of the appointment to Metronet of a PPP
Adminisizator, the Group’s investments in the Meironet concessions, including profits recognised in previous periods, were written down to £nil.

9 Taxation

9.1 Taxation charge

Group
Betors Excaptional
- C - B e T

£m tm fm fm fm
UK current tax
— corporation tax for the vear at 2B.5% (2007: 30%) Fx) {3) .t 22 {1 {6)
- double tax relief 2) - 2 {6} - -
— ACT write off 4 - [ - - -
— adjustments in respect of previous periods - — - {2) - {1

25 {3) 2 14 {17} {7
Foreign current tax
— foreign tax on profits for the year 13 b 1] 12 n - -
—adjustments in respect of previous penods - - - 2 - -

13 ] 12 13 - -
Total current tax 38 {4) kL] 27 17 7
Deferred tax
-UK 7 17 pi ] 5 1 )]
— foreign tax 2 {5) 16 (44} - -
Total deferred tax Y] 12 40 (39} 1 (1)
Total tax charge/{credit) 66 8 7 (12} (16) (B}

* and amortisation of intangible assets.

The Group tax charge above does not include any amounts for joint ventures and associates (see Note 16.2) or discontinued operations {see Note 10),
whose resulis are disclosed in the income statement net of tax,

In addition to the Group tax charge above is £25m of tax credited {2007 £5m credited) directly to equity, cemprising a current tax credit of £6m
(2007: £im credit), a deferred tax evedit of £23m {2007 £3m charge), and a charge in respect of joint ventures and associates of £4m (2007: £7m credit).
Further, in 2007 there was a credit of £10m which related to tax on discontinued operations as disclosed in Note 10.

[n addition 1o the Company 1ax credit above are amounts charged disectly to equity for deferred tax of £1m (2007: £nil).

The weighted average applicable tax rate is 32% [2007: 33%) based on profit before taxation, exceptional items and amortisation of intangiblz assets,
excluding the reswuits of joint ventures and assogiates.
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9 Taxation continued

9.2 Taxation reconciliation

mow W B
tm En £m £
Profit/{Loss) before taxation from continuing operations n 157 (44) 98
Less: share of results of joini ventures and associates {72) {71} - -
Profit/{loss) before taxation 198 86 - {84) 93
(Less)/add: exceptional items* {credited)/charged excluding share of joint ventures and associates (24) 50 (1) {80)
Profit/{loss) before taxation, exceptionzl items and amortisation of intangibie assets excluding the
results of joint ventures and associates 174 136 (45) 18
Tax on profit/{loss) before taxation at standard UK corporation tax rate of 28.5% (2007: 30%) 56 26 (12) 29
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes including amartisation of goodwill 6 5 1 2
Dividend income taxable/{nat taxabig) 5 - (8) {17)
Preference shares finance costs not deductible 3 4 3 4
Losses not available for offset 2 - - -
Higher tax rates on foreign eamings 1 3 - -
Disposal of investments and other assets not taxable - - - (25)
Adjustments in respect of ather periods {5) - - (i}
Recognition of |osses not previously recognised ) {52) - -
fmpact of change in UK tax rate on deferred tax balances - 2 - -
Withdrawal of industrial buildings allowances 3 - - -
Advance corporation tax write off 4 - - -
Toial 1ax charge/{credit) an Group/Company prafii/(loss) from continuing operations L {12) (16} {8}
{Less)/add: tax {charge)/credit on exceptional items and amortisation of intangible assets (8) 65 (1} -
Tax on Group/Company profiy/{loss) before exceptional items and amortisation of intangible assats b6 53 {17} {8}
* and amortisation of intangible assets.
10 Discontinued operations
Total EDAL DML Metronet Total
2008 200 2007 07 2007
£m £m £m m £m
Group revenue - 3 - - 3
Group share of revenue of joint ventures and associaies - - 55 142 197
Group operating profit - m — Z m
Group share of results of joint ventures and associates - - 3 - 3
: - {n 3 - 2
Profit on sale of cperations - - 57 - 57
Impairment of investment - - - {87 {87)
Taxation thereon - - - 10 10
(Loss)/profit for the year from discontinued aperations - {1} 60 (77} (18)

0On 5 January 2007, the Group acquired a 100% indirect interest in Exeter and Devon Airport Ltd {"EDAL") with the intent of selling on a 40% equity interest.
Consequently, from 5 January 2007 to 4 April 2007, when the 40% equity interest was sold, EDAL has been treated as an asset held for resale, and its
results (£1m loss) shown under discontinued operations. The Group’s 24.5% interest in Devonport Management Ltd {"DML"), sold on 28 June 2007 and
previously included in Civil and specialist engineering and services, has been classified as discontinued. The results of Metronet Rail BCV Holdings Ltd

and Metranet Rail SSL Holdings Ltd {"Metronet”™) previously included in Investments have been classified as discontinued &s 2 result of the appointment

of a PPP Administraior to the concession companies on 18 July 2007.

In 2007, DML contributed £2m to the Group's cash generated from investing activities, excluding net proceeds of sale. Cash used in investing activities
during 2007 in respect of Metronet was £32m. EDAL used £1m cash from operating activities and £1m cash in financing activities during 2007.
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11 Earnings per ordinary share
Basic Diluted Basic Diksted
o 2008 2007 2007
fm fm fm £m
Earnings
— continuing operations 1% 196 169 169
—discontinued operatians - - (18) {18)
19% 136 15 151
Exceptional items {33) n
Amortisation of intangible assats i) 6
Adjusted earnings 183 150
Comprising:
—continuing operations 183 148
— discontinued operations - 2
183 150
Besic Diluted Basic Diluted
i it i i
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 457.6 4595 430.0 4337
Penca Pancs Pente Pence
Earnings per ordinary share
— continuing operations 429 42.7 393 39.0
— discontinued operations - — {4.2) 4.2}
' ' 429 427 351 48
Exceptional items {1.2) {1.6)
Amartisation of intangible assets 42 15
Adjusted earnings per ordinary share 3.9 350
Comprising:
— continuing operatians 398 344
—discontinued operations - 08
199 35.0

The caleu'ation of basic earnings is based on profit for the period attributable to equity sharehaldars. The calculation of the weighted average number of
crdinary shares was affected by the issue of 43,320,411 ordinary shares gn 20 May 2008, and has been adjusted for the conversion of share options for
the calcutation of diluted eamings per ordinary share. No adjustment has been made in respect of the potential conversion of the cumulative convertible
redeemable preference shares, the effect of which would have been antidilutive throughout each period. Adjusted earnings per ardinary share, before
exceptional items and amgriisation of intangible assets, and including the pre-exceptional results of discontinued eperations in 2007, has been disclosed
to give a clearer understanding of the Group’s underlying trading performance.

12 Dividends on ordinary shares

Per thare Amott Per share Amourt
208 2008 2007 2007
pence fm pence Em
Proposed dividends for the year:

Interim — current year 51 24 45 20
Final — current year 11 37 6.9 30
128 61 115 50

Recognised dividends for the year; ]
Final — prior year 30 22
tnterim — current year 24 20
L 42

An interim dividend of 5 1p {2007- 4 6p} per ordinary share was paid on 10 December 2008. Subject to approval at the Annual General Megtzing on 14 May
2009, the final 2008 dividend will be paid en B Juty 2003 to holders of ordinary shares on the register on 24 April 2009 by direct credit or, where no mandate
has been given, by cheque posted on 3 Joly 2009 payable on 6 July 2009. These shares will be quoted ex-dividend on 22 April 2008.
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13 Intangible assets — goodwill
Accomulated
impairmen Camving
Cost losses amaund
£m £m Em
At 1 January 2007 464 {37) 427
Exchange and other adjustments 3 1 4
Businesses acquired 263 - 263
Al 31 December 2007 730 {36} 694
Exchange and other adjustments 150 {13) 137
Businesses acquired (sze Note 30} 144 - 144
At 31 December 2008 1024 {49) 975
The carrying amounts of goodwill by business segment are as follows:
North Narth
Europa America Total Europe America Total
2008 2008 2008 2007 2007 2007
£m tm fm £m fm £m
Building, building management and services 155 322 477 132 198 330
Civil and specialist enginearing and services 23 - 23 3 - 213
Rail engineering and services 19 10 204 143 8 151
Investments 5 46 51 - - -
Group 597 3718 975 488 206 694

The recoverabla amaunt of goodwill is based on value in use. Cash flow forecasts have been based on the expected workload of each cash generating unit
(CGU} giving consideration to the current level of confirmed orders and anticipated orders. Cash flow forecasts for the next three years are based on the
Group's 2009 budget and medium-term plan. Thereaiter the key inputs in assessing the CGU are its revenue growth rate and discount rate. This growth rate
has been applied to cash flows after three years into perpetuity and reflects published GDP growth rates for the econamies that each CGU operates in.
The cash flows assume a residual value based on a multiple of eamings befare interest and tax. ]

The cash flows have been discounted vsing a pre-tax discount rate in the range of 10.6%—12.2% (2007: 12.4%—14.9%). The discount rates are revised
annually applying updated market inputs to the standard capital asset pricing madet.

[ 67

North Mainland Noxth Mainland

UK Amarics Europe UK America Furope

Inflation rate 2.2% 2.3% 1.9% 22% 2.3% 1.9%
GDP growth rate 1.1% 1.9% 1.0% 24% 2.5% 21%
Nominal long-iem growth rate applied 3.3% 4.2% 2%% 456% 4.8% 4.0%

Sensitivities
The Group's impairment review is sensitive to changes in the key 2ssumptions used. The major essumptions that result in significant sensitivities are the
revenue growth rate and the discount rate.

Given the Group's sensitivity analysis, a reasonable change in a single assumption will not cause impairment in any of the Group's CGUs. However,
a significant adverse change in our key assumptions could result in an impairment in our Balfour Beatty Communities CGU as its fair value currently exceeds
its carrying vatue only by approximately 20%. The carrying value of the goodwill of Balfour Beatty Communities is £45m.
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14 Intangible assets —other

Customer Eustomer N

mvag; reimimhaéz B«andnang lng:
Cost
At 1 January 2007 3 4 3 10
Businesses acquired 28 26 5 59
At 31 December 2007 3 30 8 69
Exchange adjustments 82 7 1 60
Businesses acquired (Note 30) 127 7 3 137
At 31 December 2008 210 44 12 266
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2007 {1 - - {1
Charge for the year {6} {2) in {9)
At 31 December 2007 1] {2) m (10}
Exchange adjustments {5 (1} - {6}
Charge for the year {20} (4} 3} {27)
At 31 December 2008 {32) b] ()] {43)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2008 178 37 8 223
At 31 December 2007 24 28 7 59

Intangible assets are amortised cn a straight-line basis over their expected usaful lives, which are one to four years for customer contracts, three to eight

years for customer relationships and up to five years for brand name, except for intangible assets in respect of military housing contracts, which are
amortised on a basis matching the returns earned over the life of the underlying contracts, which have a duratien of up to 50 years.
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15 Property, plant and equipment

15.1 Movements

Growsy Company
1and and Pamand  Assew incourse Plam and
buikings equEpment of construzuian Towl eguipteal

£m £m fm £m £m
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2007 45 378 - 424 1
Exchange adjustments : - 2 - 2 -
Additions 9 70 1 80 1
Disposals (1 {26} — {27 -
Businesses acquired 4 3 - 7 -
Transfers 1 (1} - - -
At 31 December 2007 59 426 1 486 2
Exchange adjustments | 6 4 - 50 -
Additions 1" B2 - a3 1
Dispesats (5} (48} - (53) -
Businesses acquired 28 b - 49 -
Transfers - 1 {1 - -
At 31 December 2008 99 526 - 625 3
Accumulated depreciation
AL 1 January 2007 12 278 - 41 1
Exchange adjustments - 1 - 1 -
Charge for the year 3 47 - 50 1
Disposals - {21) - {21} -
At 31 December 2007 15 256 - N 2
Exchange adjustments 2 k)] - n -
Charge for the year 3 62 - 65 -
Disposals - {a0) - {40) -
At 31 December 2008 2 309 — 7] 2
Carrying amount -
At 31 December 2008 79 217 - 2% 1
At 31 December 2007 44 170 1 215 -

The carrying amount of the Group's property, plant and equipment held under finance leases was £6m (2007 £1m). The Company has no land and buildings
and no property, plant and equipment held under finance lgases.

152 Analysis of carrying amount of land and buildings

Group Grovp

2007

£m

Freehold 65 3
Long leasehald — aver 50 years unexpired 2 1
Short leasehold 12 10




Balfour Beatty plc Pl
16 lnavestments in joint ventures and associates
16.1 Movements
et assets Loans Provisions Total
m £m fm frm
At 1 January 2007 373 110 {25} 458
Income recognised — continuing operations 7 - - "
— discontinued operations 3 - - 3
Impairment of investment - - {90} (90}
Actuarial gains an retirement benefit obligations 3 - - 3
Fair value revaluation of PPP cash flow hedges (2) - - {2t
Fair value revaluation of PPP financial assets {26) - - {26)
Tax on items taken directly to equity 7 - - 7
Dividends {83) - - {83}
Additions 1 - - 1
Loans granted - 43 - 49
Business acquired 3 14 - 17
Business sold {27) - - {27
At 31 December 2007 323 173 {135) K
Income recognised - continuing operations 2 - - 2
Actuarial losses on retirement benefit obligations (13) - - (14)
Fair value revaluation of other cash flow hedges {3 - - (3)
Fair value revaluation of PPP cash flow hedges {13) - - (73}
Fair value revaluation of PPP financial assets 100 - - 100
Exchange ditferencas i - - 21
Tax on items taken directly to equity (4 - - ()
Dividends {53) - - {53)
Additions n - - 1
Loans repaid - {2) - (2}
Business acquired 7 - - 27
At 31 December 2008 13 17 {115) 469

Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are shown in Note 37(b). The original cost of the Group's investments in joint ventures and associates

was £165m {2007: £127m). The Group's share of barrowings of joint ventures and gssociates is shown in 16,2 beiow, The amount of these which was
supported by the Group and the Company was £13m (2007: £nil), refating to the Group's share of guaranteed horrowings. The borrowings of Barking
Power Ltd, Regional & City Airports (Exeter) Ltd and the PPP joint venture and associate companies are repayable over periods extending up to 2040.
As disclosed in Nate 32, the Company has committed to provide its share of further equity funding of joint ventures and associates in PPP projects and

military housing concessions. Further, in respect of a number of these investments the Group has committed not to dispose of its equity interest until the
relevant construction has been completed. As is customary in such projects, dividend payments and other distributions are restricted unt!l certain banking

cavenants are met.
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Balfour Beatty plc

16 Investments in joint ventures and associates continued

*16.2 Share of results and net assets of joint ventures and associates

Building, Civil and : Investments.
building specialist Rail —
and services  sndservices  end ssrvices PPP  Infrastructure 2".,'.1-,“;.- Total Total
2008 2008 2008 2008 2008 o 008 08
£m £m m £m Em £m £m fm
Revenue 137 656 39 293 100 - 393 1225
Operating profit before exceptional items 5 20 3 7 26 2 35 63
fnvestment income - 1 - 125 - - 125 126
Finance casts - - - (87) {3) - (s0) (s0)
Profit before taxatien and exceptional items 5 2 3 45 3 2 0 9
Taxation {1 (2) {1} (14) {6} - (20} {24)
Exceptionz items - - - n {2} - {3} (3)
Profit after taxation — continuing operations 4 18 2 30 15 2 47 72
Non-current assets
Intangible assets — goodwill - 29 3 - 24 - 24 56
— gther - - - 2 - - 2 2
Property, plant and equipment 1 ki 4 - 109 - 109 145
PPP financial assets - - - 1,663 - - 1,663 1,663
Military housing projects - - - - - a8 48 48
(Other non-current assets 1 - - 72 1 - 13 L
Current assets
Cash and cash eguivalents L} 152 5 113 16 - 129 250
(Other current assets 20 ast 17 145 21 - 166 584
Total assets 26 593 29 1,995 m 48 2214 2,862
Current liabilities
Borrowings - (22) - {41) 7} - {48) (70)
Other current iiabilities {18} (345) {18} {88} {19) - (107} {488)
Non-current liabilities -
Borrowings {2) {3) - {1,440} {29) - {1,469) {1,474}
Other non-current tabilities - {154) 2) {173) (32) - {205} {361}
Total liabilities {20 (524) {20) {1,742) 87 - {1,829) {2,393)
Net assets 6 69 9 253 83 48 385 469

* The Group's investment in military housing projects is recognised at the initial equity investment ptus the value of the Group’s accrued preferred return

for the underlying projects.

Capital expenditure authorised and contracted which has not been provided for in the account® of the joint ventures and associates amountad to £7m

{2007: £2m).

The military housing joint ventures and associates have total non-recourse net borrowings of £1,114m. Note 37(f) details the Group’s military

housing projects.
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16 Investments in joint ventures and associates continued
162 Share of results and net assets of joint ventures and associates continued
Building. Crvil and Investments
building specizlist Rail
Codsvces  andsvees  and sevees B infestenee Toal Totad
07 0 207 2007 2007 2007
im £m £ o fm £m fm
Revenue 13 556 10 275 69 343 1,022
Operating profit before exceptional items - 23 1 5 18 23 47
{nvestmens income - 3 - 13 2 115 118
Finance costs - - - {78) (5} (83) {83}
Profit before taxation and exceptional items - 26 1 40 15 55 82
Taxation - {3 - (11 (3) (14} {17}
Exceptional items - 6 - - - - )
Profit after taxation — continuing operations - 29 1 3 12 41 n
Profit after taxation - discontinued operations 3
Profit after taxation 74
Mon-current assets
intangible assets —goodwill - 22 2 - 24 24 48
- ather - - - 2 - 2 2
Property, plant and equipment V7 1 - 12 112 132
PPP financial assets - - - 1315 - 1,375 1.375
Other non-current assets - 13 - 177 - 177 190
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 106 5 87 21 108 219
Other current assets 16 199 4 202 9 n 430
Total assets 18 357 12 1,843 166 2,009 2,396
Current liabilities
Borrowings 12} {13) - 89) 1y {100} {115)
Dther current liabilities {11} (252) (8l 175} {1 (86} {357}
Non-current liabilities
Boriowings (2} {1} - {1,355) {34) {1,389) (1.392)
Other non-current liabilities - {16 - (12} {23) {139) {151
Total liabilites (15} {282) {8) {1631) 79 {1.110) (2,015
Net assets 3 75 4 212 87 299 381
16.3 PPP investments
The Group's investment in PPP joint venturas and associates comprises:
Net investment Resarves Totl  Netswestment Reserves Tewl
08 08 0t 207 207 2007
m tm tm £m £m £m
Roads (.} 9 137 43 €8 m
Hospitals 60 21 1] 60 6 66
Schools pal n 18 18 7 25
(Other concessions 3 14 17 2 8 10
13 12 53 123 89 212
Military housing 47 1 48 - - -
178 13 30 123 89 212
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16 Investments in joint ventures and associates continued

Balfour Beatty plc

16.4 Gash flow from/(to) joint ventures and associates

Nei cash flow fram/{to) joint ventures and associates comprises:

PFP  Infrastructurs mnrz Other Total laid Infrastrucivre Other Toial
2003 2008 2008 2008 2008 2007 2007 2007 707
fm £m £m £m i £m £m £m fm
Cash flows from investing
activities
Dividends from joint vertures
and associates 17 13 2 21 53 58 13 12 83
Investment in and loans made
to joint ventures and associates {7) - {8) 5 {10} {38} - (12} {50}
Acquisitions of joint ventures
and associates - - (27} - (27) - - - -
Total cash flows from investing
activities of jpint ventures
and associates n - {35) 5 {37) {38) - {t2) {50)
— Equity - - {35) (3} {38) - - m 1}
— Subordinated debt )] - - - 7) {40) - - {40}
— Subordinated debt repaid - - - - - 2 - - 2
~Qther lpans - - - 8 8 - - (1 {11}
Cas_h'(lows from financing
activities
Subordinated debt
interest received 12 - - - 12 8 - - 8
Net cash flow from/{io) joint
ventures and associates 22 13 (33} 26 28 28 13 - 41
16.5 Share of joint ventures’ and associates’ reserves
Currency
Accunulated Hedging PPPfinancial transfation
profit/loss) reserve assets rasefve Total
£m fm m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2007 200 (30} 76 {3 243
income recognised — continuing operations 71 - - - 7
— disgontinued cperations 3 - - - 3
Actuarial gains on retirement benefit obligations 3 - - - 3
Fair value revaluation of PPP cash flow hedges - {2} - - (2)
Fair value revaluation of PPP financial assets - - {26) - (26}
Reclassified and reported in net profit - 7 (3} - 4
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - 7 - ?
Dividends paid {83} - - - (83)
Transfers (42 - - - (42}
Balance at 31 December 2007 152 {25} 5 3 178
Income fecognised - continuing operatians 12 - - - 12
Actuarial loss on retirament benefit obligations (14} - - - (149)
Fair value revaluation of ather cash flow hedges - (3} - - (3)
Fair value revaluation of PPP cash flow hedges - {13} - - {73}
Fair value revaluation of PPP financial assets - - 100 - 100
Tax on items taken directly to equity 3 2 {28) - {4}
Dividends paid (53) - - - (53}
Exchange adjusiments T - - — 27 27
Balance at 31 December 2008 160 (80) 126 23 230
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17 Investments

17.1 Group

Group investments comprise £55m {2007; £57m} held to maturity bonds held by Delphian insurance Company Ltd, the Group's captive insurance company.
These investments comprise fixed rate bonds or treasury stock with an average interest rate of 5.15% (2007: 5.41%) and weighted average life of

357 years (2007: 3.96 years}. The fair value of the bonds is £54m (2007: £57m), determined by using the market price of the bonds at the balance sheet
date. The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2008 is the carrying amount.

17.2 Company
i i
Investment in subsidiaries 1,882 1618
Investment in joint vemtures and associates 14 14
Provisions {158) {186)
1,738 1,446
18 PPP financial assets
Sireet
Schools lighting Total
£m Im Em
Balance at 1 January 2007 - 22 22
Cash expenditure 26 15 4
Cash received - {3i (3)
Interest - 2 2
Balance at 31 December 2007 26 36 62
Cash expenditure 72 19 91
Cash recsived - {11} {11}
Interest 4 3 7
Fair value movement - 2 2
Balance at 31 December 2008 102 49 151

Assets constructed by PPP subsidiasy concession companias are classified as available-for-sale financiat assets. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
the balance sheet date is the fair vaiua of the PPP financial assets. PPP financial assets are denominated in sterling. There were no disposals or impairment
provisions in 2008 or 2007.

19 Inventories

2007
£m £m
Unbilled work in progress 54 27
Development and housing land and work in progress 2 6
Manufacturing work in progress 9 12
Raw materials and consumables B 22
Finished goods and goods for resale 7 5
125 72
20 Construction contracts

2008 007
£m £m

Contracts in progress at balance sheet date:
Due from customers for contract work 383 338
Due to customers for contract work {540) {415)
(157) {77

The aggregate amount of costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised losses) for all contracts in progress that had not reached praciical
comgletion at the balance sheet date was £13,061m (2007: £10,829m).
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21 Financial instruments

Balfour Beatty plc

Accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adapted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which
income and expenses are recognisad, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are set out in Note 1.

Capital risk management

The Group and Company manage their capital to ensure theis ability to continue as a going concem and to maintain an optimal capital struciure to reduce
the cost of capital. The capital structure of the Group and Company comprises equity astributable to equity holders of Balfeur Beatty ple consisting of issued
capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in Notes 28 and 29, preference shares as disclosed in Note 28 and cash and cash equivalents and

borrowings as disclosed in Note 24.

The Group and Company maintain or adjust their capital structure through the payment of dividends to shareholders, issue of new shares and buy-back
of existing shares and issuing new borrowings or repaying existing borrowings. The Group’s and Campany's policy is 1o cany ne significant net deb, other
than the non-recourse borrowings of companies engaged in PPP projects and infrastructure investments.

The Group's and Company's overall capital risk management strategy remains unchanged fram 2007,

.

21.1 Group
Categories of financial instruments
Loans and Loans and
receivables st recesvables at
amortised amortised
cost inchudin Financial Held to cost including Financial Held 10
cash & liabilities at maturity cash and liahilities at matwrity
cash ised fi ial Derh tash amartised Rvailable financial Dernatives
equivalents cost for zale assets Nota i} equivalents cost jor sale assels Note (i}
2008 208 2008 2008 2008 007 2007 2007 2007 2007
Group £m fm £ £m £m m £ £m £m £m
Financial assets
Bonds ~ fixed rate honds
and Treasury stock - - - 55 - - - - 57 -
PPP financial assets - - 159 - - - - 62 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 463 - - - - 394 - - - -
Trade and other receivables 1,186 - - - - 972 - - - -
Derivatives - - - - 5 - - - - 4
Total 1,649 - 151 55 5 1,316 — 62 57 4
Financial liabilities
Liability component of
preference sharas - {87) - - - - (87) - - -
Trade and other payables - {2107 - - - - (1,646} - - -
Unsecured borrowings - (12)° - - - - (16) - - -
Secured borrowings - {9 - - - - m - - -
PPP non-recourse term loans - {145) - - - - {64} - - =
Derivatives - - - - (106} - - - - (12)
Total - {2,360} - - {106) - {1,814) - - (12}
Net 1,648 {2,360} 151 b5 {101) 1,316 {1,814} 62 57 {8)
Naote:
{i} Derivatives
Financial assats. Financial [isbilities Financial assets Fnancial liabiltties
Non- Noa- Norr Nerr
Current current Total Curent current Total Currem cumenl Toral Current cument Taal
p) 2008 2008 2008 20 2008 2007 2007 007 2007 2007 o
fm £m £m £m £m £m £m £m im m £m fm
At fair value through profit and
loss — forward contracts in respect
of currency transactions —
heid for trading 2 - 2 (5) - {5) - - - - - -
Designated as net invesiment
hedging instruments —
forward contracts - - - (61) - (61} 1 2 3 (8) - (6)
Designated as cash flaw hedges —
forward contracts - 3 3 - (1 ] - - - - - -
Designated as cash fiow hedges —
interest rate swaps - - - - {39) (39) - 1 1 - {6l {6}
2 3 5 {66) {40) (106} 1 3 4 (6} 8l (12)
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21 Financial instruments coatinued

Non-derivative financial liabilities gross maturity
The follawing tahle details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial liabilities including interest that will accrue to those liabilities except where the Group is entitled 1o and

intends to repay the liability before its maturity. The discount column represents the possible future cash fiows included in the maturity analysis, such as
future interest, that has not been included in the carrying value of the financial liability.

The maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities at 31 December was as Tollows:

PPP e nondert Total
project Dthar financis) Bnencla! Total Carrying
rance  borwings Gabiliins tiabifktins discount vatu
2008 20008 2008 2008 2000
tm tm m £m [ m
Due on demand or within one year {4) {12) {1,996} {(2.012) 15 {1,997}
Que within one to two years {18) 1 {52) {7 20 (81}
Due within twa to five years {33} (8} (46) (93} 58 (35)
Due after more than five years (3200 - (263} (583) 306 277)
{381) 21 (2357) (2,759) 399 (2.360)
Discount 236 - 163 399
Carrying value {145) 1) {2,194) (2.360)
PP Towl
noMHECOUSE Orher noc-derivatve
project Cther fnancal fingneial Total Carrving
finance Do liatwiies liabilmes discount vatue
207 i 0 207 007 207
£m £ im £m £ £m
Due on demand or within one year (8] (16 {1,524 {1,548} 16 {1.532)
Due within one to two years {10} (3 {57} {58) 2 {47
Due within two to five years (63} - (61) (124} 9 (33)
Due after more than five years (365) - {258} (623) 421 {202}
{446} (17) {1,900) {2.363) 549 11,814}
Discount 382 - 167 549
Carrying value (64) {17) {1,733} (1,814

Derivative financial liabilities gross maturity

The following table details the Group’s expected maturity for its derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted net
cash inflows/loutflows) on the darivative instruments that settie on a net basis {interest rate swaps} and undiscounted gross inflows/{outflows} for thase
derivatives that require gross settlement {fareign exchange contracis). When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the amaunt disclosed has been
determined by reference to the projected interest rates, using the yield curves existing at the reporting date.

The maturity profile of the Group's derivative financial liabilities at 31 December was as follows:

Peyable Rocaivably Net payable Fayahie Recenvabile het payable

2008 008 2008 2007 2007 20067

fm £m im Em £m £m

Due on demand or within ong year {288) = {67} {175} 173 2}
Due within one to two years {12} 5 (7 7} 17 -
Due within twa to five years (20) 2 (18) 2 - 2}
Bue after more than five years (29} - {29) {3 1 {2)

Total {349) (121) {197} 191 )]
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21 Financial instruments continued

Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Graup's financial risk management strategy seeks
10 minimise the potential adverse impact of these risks on the Group's financial performance.

Financial risk management is carried out centrally by Group Treasury under policies approved by the Board. Group Treasury liaises with the Group's
operating companies to identify, evaluate and hedge financial risks. The Board provides written principles for overall financial risk management, as well
as written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-
derivative financial instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity. Compliance with policies and exposure {imits is monitored through the Group’s
internal audit and risk management procedures. The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures. The Group does not trade
in financia! instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

{a} Market risk
The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foraign currency exchange ratas and interest rates. The Group enters into !
a variety of desivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk, including:

— farward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange raze risk arising on contracting activities ransacted in a curency that is not the functional
currency of the operating company;

— forward foreign exchange contracts to manage the foreign currency risk associated with the Group's investments in foreign subsidiaries. associates and
joint ventures; and

— interest rate swaps to mitigate the risk of rising interest rates on PPP concessions.

Thare has heen na maierial change to the Group’s exposure to market risks and with the exception of the change in the net investment hedging palicy
outlined below there has been no change in how the Group manages those risks from 2007.

{i} Foreign currency risk management

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from exposure to vasious currencies, primarily to US dollars, Hong Kong
dollars and the Euro. Foreign exchange risk arises from future trading transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations.

Group policy requires operating companies to manage their transactional foraign exchange risk against their functional currency. Group Treasury,
on behalf of operating companies, enters into forward conitracts to cover 100% of foreign exchange risk above pre-set materiality levels determined
by the Finance Director whenever a current or future foreign currency exposure is identified. Hedge accounting is applied to these ransactions above
a predetermined materiality level.

Details of forward foreign exchange contracts outstanding at the balance sheet date in respect of foreign currency transactional exposures are set out
on page 4.

As ai 31 December 2008, the notional principal amounts of foreign exchange contracts in respect of foreign currency transactions where hedge
accounting is not applied was £74m {2007: £13m). The period during which the cash flows are expected to occur is up to two years. This will affect the
income statement throughout the same periods.

In the current vear the Group has designated forward exchange contracts against highly probable capital expenditure and inventory sales which are
expected to oceur in up to four years with a notional principal amount of £24m (2007: £nil) as cash flow hedges. Fair value movements of £2m (2007 £nil)
have been taken to hedging reserves within equity in relation to these contracts in the current year and these amounts represent the cumulative amount
of gains defersed in the hedging reserves relating to cash flow hedges.

The Group's investments in foreign operations are exposed o foreign currency translation risk which has been managed by matehing significant net
assets denominated in currencies other than sterling principally using forward foreign exchange contracts.

The hedging palicy is reviewed periodically. Management have amended the policy 1o reduce the level of net assets hedged taking account of the .
potential cash effect of the hedging programme against the potential effect of movements in currencies on the Group's net assets. At 31 December 2008 ;
approximately 45% of the US dollar dznominated net assets were hedged while in 2007 approximately 90% of US dollar, Euro and Hong Kong dollar net '
assets were hedged. :

The effect of a 35% (2007; 5%) strengthening/weakening in US doliar exchange rates against sterling would be an £87m (2007: £11m}
reductionfincrease in the fair value of the financial instruments used to hedge the Group's net assets in US dollars. As derivative financial instruments
are no longer held for Euro and Hong Kong daltar denominated assats, only 2007 comparative figures are provided in respect of Evro and Hong Kong
dollar movements. In 2007, the effect of a 5% strengtheningAweakening in Hong Kong dollar exchange rates against sterling would have been a £2m
reduction/increase in the fair value of the financial instruments used 1o hedge the Group's net assets in Hong Kong dollars. In 2007, the effect of a 3%
strengthening/weakening in Euro exchange rates against sterling would have been a £1m reduction/increase in the fair vaive of the financial instruments
used to hedge the Group’s net assets in Euros. These movements would be aken directly to equity and would partially offset appasing gains/lasses in the
net assets denominated in foreign currencies.

The percentage change applied to US dollars in 2008 has been based on the greater of the average movement in the previous five repacting periods
or the actual movement in the last 12 months. For 2007 the percentage change for each currency was based on the average movemant in the previous five
reporting perniods,

The ntional principal amounts of forward foreign exchange contracts designated as hiedges of net investments in forsign operations at 31 December
2008 was £188m {2007: £314m). The gains and lossas in equity on hedges of net investments in fareign operations will ba released 1o the income siatement
on the disposa! of the underfying net investment.
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21 Financial instruments continued

Financial risk factors continued

{ii} Interest rate risk management
Interest rate risk arises in the Group's PPP concessions which bormow funds at both floating and fixed interest rates and hold available-for-sale
financial assets.

Floating rate borrowings expose the Group ta cash flow interest rate risk. Group policy is to swap floating rate interest to fixed rate, using interest
rata swaps, to hedge the cash flow variability of the interest.

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees Lo exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts calculated on
agreed notiona! principal amounts. Such contracts enable the Group to mitigate the risk of changing inierest rates on the cash flow exposures on the issued
variable rate debt. The fair value of interest rate swaps at the year-end is determined by discounting the future cash flows using the applicable year-end
yield curve. The net impact of a movement in interest rates on income would therefore be immatarial.

During 2008 and 2007, the Group's PPP borrowings at variable rate were denominated in sterling.

The notional principal amounts of the ouistanding PPP subsidiaries’ interest rate swaps outstanding at 31 December 2008 were £142m (2007: £68m)
with maturities that match the maturity of the underlying borrowings ranging from ang year to 26 years. At 31 December 2008, the fixed interest rates range
from 4.6% to 5.1% (2007: 4.6% to 5.1%) and the principa! floating rates are LIBOR.

A 50 basis point increase/decrease in the interest rate of each currency in which financial instruments are held would lead to a £14m {2007: £10m)
increase/decrease in amounts taken directly by the Group to equity. This is attributable 1o the Group's exposure to interest raies on the available-for-sale
financial asseis and cash flow hedges of its PPP subsidiaries.

Interest rate risk also arises on the Group's cash and cash equivalents, term deposits and non-PPP borrowings. A 50 basis point increase/decrease in
the interest rate of each currency in which financial instruments are held would fead 1o & £2m {2007: £1m) increase/decrease in the Group's net investment
income.

{iii} Price risk management

The Group's principal price risk exposure arises in its PPP concessions. At the commencement of the concassion an element of the unitary payment by the
client is indexed to offset the effect of inflation an the eoncession's costs. To the extent that inflation differs from the index used, the Group is exposed to
a price 7isk.

(b} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the countesparty will default on its contractual obligations, resulting in financial loss. Credit risk arises fram cash and cash
equivalents, derivative financial instruments and credit exposures 1o customars, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions. The Group
has a policy of assessing the creditwarthingss of potential customers before entering into transactions.

Far cash and cash equivalents and derivative financial instrumenits the Group has a palicy of depositing funds only with independently rated
counterparties with a minimum long-tem credit rating of A. At 31 December 2008 £2m did not meet this criterion due 10 the unprecedented decline
during 2008 in credit ratings generally and operational and relationship difficulties in transferring certain balances. No losses are anticipated from
non-performance of these counterparties. The credit rating of a financial institution will determine the amount and duration for which funds may be
deposited under individual risk limits set by the Board for the Group and subsidiary companies. Managemani monizors the utilisation of these credit
limits regularly. At 31 December 2008 £30m did not meet this policy due 1o operational reasons.

For tradg and other receivables credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable using independent ratings where
available or by assessment of the customer's credit quality based on its financial position, past experience and other factors. The Group's most significant
custamers are public or quasi public sector entitias which generatly have high credit ratings or are of a high credit quality due to the nature of the customes.

The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the above 2t 31 December is the carrying value of financial assets recorded in the financial
statements, net of any allowance for losses.

{c} Liquidigy risk

The Group manages liguidity risk hy mainiaining adequate ieserves and banking facilities, continuousty monitoring forecast and actugl cash flaws and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Details of undrawn commitied bosrowing facilities are set cut in Note 24.1. The maturity
profile of the Group's financial tiabilities is set out above.

Fair value estimation
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets is determined with reference to quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods {such as estimated discounted cash flows) and makes
assumptions that are based on market canditions existing at each balance sheet date. The fair value of interest rate sweps is calculated as the present
value of the estimatad future cash flows. The fair value of farward foreign exchange contracts is derermined using quoted forward exchange rates at the
batance sheet date.

The carrying values less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables approximates their fair values due to their short-term aature. The fair
value of financial lizbilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is
available 1o the Group for similar financial instruments.
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21 Rnancial instruments continued
212 Company
Categories of financizl instruments
Loans and Loans and
aceivables st recenvahles at
costIncudi Francial Held to cost inchuding Financiat Hield 10
casha {fabilities at mmm! . cash and ligbikties a1 . eatuty
cash d Avatlabd fi ! Db cash amortised Availadle fnanciat Derwaives
aquivalents cosl for sale assets Naote (i} equivalems cost for sale assens Noe i)
008 2000 20 208 2008 my g 200 0 2007
Company £m [ tm £m fm £ £m £m £ £m
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 50 - - - - 80 - - - -
Trade and other receivables 617 - - - - 641 - - - -
Derivatives - - - - n - - - - 9
Total 667 - - - n 721 - - - 9
Financial liabilities
Liability componant of
preference shares - 87) - - - - 87 - - -
Trade and other payables - (1.41) - - - - (1,271 - - -
Unsecured borrowings - (51) - - - - {95 - - -
Derivatives - - - - M - - - - {9)
Total - (1,609) - - n) - {1.459) - - {9
Net 667 (1,609) - - - 2 {1.459) = = -
Note:
(i} Derivatives.
Finencis] sssets Financia| liahilities Financial zssets Firancialiiabilities
Non- Noa- Nor- Nan.
Cumem current Tatal Current current Total Cument cumrestl Taul Cusrent current Toul
2008 2008 0 2008 200 008 07 07 A07 2007 007 200,
[ £m im fm £m £m £m im fm [ fn £m
At fair value through profit and loss -
forward contracts in respect of
currency transactions —
held for trading 7 3 10 7 (3) {10) - - - - - -
At fair value through profit and loss —
forward contracts relating to net
investment hedging — held for trading 61 - 61 (61) - {61) i 2 9 {7 (2} {9)
68 3 n (68) 3 ml 7 2 9 {7) 2) {9

The Company is responsitle for executing all of the Group's extemal derivative instrument contracts, except for thosa in refation (o PPP cun_cessiuns.
The Company's external contracts are perfectly matched with derivative contracts issued by the Company to the Group’s operating companies.
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21 Financial insti'uments continued
Non-derivative financial liabilities gross maturity
The maturity profile of the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilites at 31 December was as follows:
Total
Other  non-derivative
financisl financial
Borrowings linbilities lisbiliies  Totaf discount  Carrying value
2008 7008 2006 2008 2008
m m £m £m [
Bue on demand or within one year (51) {1412} {1,523) 21 {1,496)
Due within one to two years - 11} 1) 1 -
Due within two to five years - {32} (32) 32 -
Due after more than five years ‘ - {208) {208) 95 {113}
{51) (1,723) (1,774} 165 {1,609)
Discount - 165 165
Carrying value 51} {1.558) (1,609}
Towl
Other non-gerivative
firancial fingncial
Bormowings Liabilities lighiiiies - Total discount Carnying vahie
200 007 2007 2007 7007
£m £m Em £m £m
Due on demand or within one year (95} (1.278) (1.373) 26 {1347}
Due within one to two years - {11) {11} " -
" Due within two to five years . - (32} {32 32 -
Due after more than five years - {219 {219) 107 na
{95} {1,540} {1,635} 176 {1,459) pt
Discount - 176 176 g
Carrying value 95 (64 {1459 2
fa] I
Derivative financial liabilities gross maturity 5 |
The maturity profile of the Company’s derivative financial lishilities, which comprise foreign exchange contracts, at 31 December was as follows: 7] !
Payable Recsivabis Payable Recewable :
208 2008 2007 2007
im £m £m frn
Due on demand or within one year (312) 245 (201} 184
Due within one 1o two years {28) 26 (190} 184
Due within two to five years - - - -
Due after more than five years - - - -
Total {340} m {391) 378
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21 Financial Instruments continued

Financial risk factors

{a) Market risk

(i} Foreign currency risk management

For the Company, there would be no material impact of any strengthening/weakening in US dollar exchange rates, Eura exchange rates or Hong Kong dollar
rates against sterling becavse the Company enters into forward foreign exchange contracts with the Group's eperating companies that offset its external
forward foreign exchange contracts.

(i} Interest rate risk management

A 50 basis point increase/decrease in the interest rate of each cusrency in which financial instruments are held would lead to a £4m {2007; £2m)
decrease/increase in the Company’s investment income. This is mainly atributable o the Company’s exposure o interest rates on its cash and cash
equivalents and term deposits and amounts due to and from its subsidiaries. There would be no effect on amounts taken directly by the Company to equity.

{b} Credit sisk
The additional credit risk that the Company bears is in respect of amounts due from subsidiaries. There were no amounts past due at the balance sheet
date. The maximum exposure is the carrying value of the financial assets recorded in the financial statements.

22 Trade and other receivables

Group Group Company Company
07 2008 2007
£m fm £
Current

Teade receivables 815 672 6 7
Less; Provision for impaisment of trade receivables (17 {11} - -
798 661 6 7
Due from subsidiaries - - 580 602
Due from joint ventures and associates 2 38 - -
Due from jeintly cantrolled operaiions . 5 6 - -
Contract retentions 229 127 - -
Accrued income 55 13 - -
Prepayments 81 36 1 1
Due on acquisitions 10 - - -
1193 881 587 610

Non-current
Trade and other recaivables 19 18 - -
Due from joint ventures and associates - - 3 32
Contract retentions 55 52 - -
Due on acguisitions - 9 - -
L 77 k]| 32
1,267 958 618 642

Comprising:
Loars and receivables at amortised cost 1,186 922 617 641
Prepayments 81 36 1 1
1,267 958 618 642

Based on prior experience and an assessment of the current economic environment, management believes there is no further credit risk provision required
in excess of the normal provision for impairment of trade receivablas.

The Directors consider that the carrying values of current trade and other receivablas approximate their fair values. The fais value of non-current trade
and other receivables amounts o £69m {2007; £71m) and has been deiermined by distounting future cash flows using yield curves and exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date.

It is Group policy that forward foreign exchange contracts are entered into as $oen as a foreign currency trade receivable is identified.
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22 Trade and other receivables continued

b1

The movement in the provision for impaimment of trade receivables is as follows:

Group

200 207
£m £m
Balance at 1 January {11} 113}
Credited/icharged) to the income statement
— additicnal provisions . {6} -
— unused amaunts reversed 1 1
Acquisitions of businesses . 2} -
Used during the year 1 }
Balance at 31 December (17) (11}

The provision for impairment of trade receivables is based on a review of the financial circumstances of individual customess. The ageing of the impaired

recefvables is as follows:

Group Group
2008 2007
fm £m
Up to three months 2 -
Three to six months 1 1
Six ™ ning months 1 1
Nine to twelve maonths 2 3
Mare than twelve months 1 6
17 1

At 31 December 2008, trade receivables of £127m {2007: £91m) were past due but not impaired. These refate to a number of individual customers for whom o

there is no reason to believe that their debt is not recoverable. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows: £

Gromp o 8

008 207 o

£m £m 5

Up to three months 84 60 &
Three to six months 2 12
Six to nine monihs 12 3
Nine to twelve months 7 ]
More than twelve months 3 10
127 9

The Company had ne provision for impairment of trade receivables and no trade receivables that were past due but not impaired in either year,
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23 Trade and other payables
Group Group Company Commny
2008 200 2008 2007
£m £m £m fm
Current
Trade and other payables 1,112 803 6 4
Actruals 899 n7 14 1
Deferred income 20 58 1 1
Advance payments on Contracts 4 7 - -
VAT, payroll taxes and social security 12 87 13 15
Due to subsidiaries - - 141 1,230
Due to joint ventures and associates & 27 - -
Due 10 jointly controlled operations 3 7 - -
Dividends on preference shares 5 6 L] 6
Due on acquisitions 4 & - 1
2,168 1718 1,460 1,268
Non-current
Trade and other payables 0 83 - -
Due on acquisitions bl 20 - -
Accruals 21 5 - -
Deferred income 1 2 - -
Due to joiat ventures and associates 5 25 25 25
152 135 25 25
2320 1853 1,485 1,293
Comprising:
At amortised cost 2,107 1646 147 1277
Accruals not at amortised cost 110 60 - -
Deferred income 3 60 1 L
VAT, payroll taxes and social security 2 87 13 15
2320 1.853 1,485 1,293
The maturity profile of the Group’s non-current trade and other payables at 31 December was:
Dun to joint Due 10 joint
uﬂm Dus on "m:;: Defered andLr;d; Due o kua':; Delprred
payshles  acquisition  associates Accrusls incoma Tl pavables acquistion assaciales Ascnals income Toral
2008 08 e ] 2008 2008 200 2007 20m 2007 2007 2007 007
fm £m £m im fm £m £m £ m £m £m m
Due within one
10 two years 34 6 - 13 57 40 3 - 3 - 45
Due within two
to five years 8 7 - 8 5 28 18 6 - 2 1 28
Due after more
than five years 28 12 25 - 2 67 24 N 25 - 1 61
0 i) 5 2 1 152 83 20 25 5 2 135
Fair values 57 5 13 20 10 125 ' 13 13 4 2 115

The fair value of ngn-current trade and other payables has been determined by using yield curves and exchange rates prevailing &t the balance sheet date
and discounting future cash flows at interest rates prevailing at the balance sheet date.

it is Group policy that forward foreign exchange contracts are taken out as soon as a foreign cursency trade or ather pavable is identified. Amounts due
10 joint ventures and associates and accruals and deferred income are all denominated in sterting.
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24 Cash and cash equivalents and borrowings

24.1 Group
Current Nen-currsm Total Current Nor-cuent Totl
008 008 o a0 207 2007
tm fm fm im £ fm
Unsecured barrowings at amostised cost: .
—bank overdrafts 10 - (10) s - (15}
—other short-term ioans {1} n {2) m - "o
Secured horrowings at amostised cost:
~finance leases 1) {8) {9 - {1 i1
: {12) {s) {21) (16} { {17}
Cash and deposits at amortised cost an - kh 293 - 293
Tem depesits at amortised cost 82 - [:74 98 - 98
Non-PPP cash and cash equivalents 461 - 461 391 - 391
449 (9) 40 375 (1} 374
PPP non-recourse term loans at amortised cost:
— sterling floating rate term loan {2008-2027) - (27} {zn {3) (19} 22}
— sterling floating +ate term loan {2011-2030) - {13) {13) - )] {9}
- sterling floating sate term loan {2012-2031) - (6} (6} - (2) (2}
— sterling floating sate term toan {2010-2034) - {99} {99} - {31 {31}
' - {145} {145} {3 {61) {64}
PPP cash and cash equivalents 2 - 2 3 - 3
2 (145) {143) - {61 (61}
Net cash/{borrowings) 451 (154) 297 375 {62} 313

The PPP project finance sterling debt obligations arise under non-recourse facilities in the cancession companies Connect Roads Sundertand Lid, Connect
Roads South Tyneside Ltd, Connest Roads Derby L1d and Transform Schoots (Knowsley) Ltd. The borrowings are secured by fixed and floating charges over
each concession company's right, title and interest in certain assets and/or revenues and over each concession company's shares held by their immediate
parent companies, Connect Roads Sunderland Holdings Ltd, Connect Roads South Tyneside Holdings Ltd, Connect Roads Derby Holdings Ltd and Transform
Schools {Knowsley) Holdings Ltd.

A significant part of the PPP non-recourse project finance ftoating rate term loans has been swapped into fixed rate debt by the use of interast
rate swaps.

Cash, deposits and term deposits include the Group's share of amounts held by contracting joint arrangements of £164m {2007: £122m).

The Group's undrawn committed borrowing facilities in respect of which all conditions precedent were satisfied at 31 December were:

SIUNODOe JNQD

PPP . PRP
DON-TeCOLTEe NOMH B
2 borowings Total e bt Total
= TR W R R B
Em £ fm £m Em fm
Expiring in ane year or less 1 - 1 3 - 5
Expiring in mare than one year but not more than two years - 70 10 - - -
Expiring in more than two years 121 134 455 198 395 993
122 404 526 203 395 593
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24 Cash and cash equivalents and borrowings continued

Group borrowings carrying value maturity
The maturity profile of the Group's borrowings at 31 December is as follows:

[T PPP
nun-rn::;g Other non-ra;rg:; Othet
finance berrowings Total fmance borrowings Total
2008 2008 208 2007 2007 2007
£m £m tm fm fm fm
Due on demand or within one year - {12) {12) (3 {16) (19
Due within one (o two years (17 (1} {18} - (1) {n
Due within two to five years (14) (8} (22} {22) - (22}
Due after more than five years {114) - (113) {39) - (39)
{145) {21} (166} {64) {17 {81
The table below compares the book values and the fair values of the Group's horrowings at 31 December:
Book value Fait value Book value Fair value
200 2008 w7 7007
fm £m fm £m
Unsecured borrowings at amortised cost;
—hank overdrafts {9) {9 (15) {15)
— gther shost-term loans {2) (2) {n M
Secured borrowings at amortiset cost:
—finance leases (10 10} 1 )]
—other - - - -
21) {21) (17) 17
PPP non-recourse term loan at amortised cost:
— sterling floating rate term loan (2008-2027) (21} 27} {22) {22)
— sterling floating rate term loan (2011-2030} 13} (13) {9 (9
— sterling floating rate term loan (2012-2031} (6} (6) (2] (2}
— sterling floating rate term Joan {2010-2034) (99) {99) {31) (31}
{145) {145) {64) (64}
Borrowings (166) (166) (81} {81
The fair values have been determined by using yield curves and axchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date and discounting future cash flows
at intarest rates prevailing at the balance sheet date.
242 Company
Current Non-current Total Current Nan-cunent Tata
2008 208 0% 207 2007
fm £m fm £m £m £m
Unsecured borrowings at amortised cost:
— bank overdrafts (51) - (51} (95) - {95}
(51) - (51) (95} - {95}
Term deposit 50 - 50 80 - 80
Net borrowings {1) - n {15) - (15)

The unsecured borrowings and term depasits are sterling denominated and variable rate instruments. The bank overdrafts are repayable on demand and the

term deposits matured on 2 January 2009.
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25 Deferred taxation
25.1 Deferrad tax assets and fiabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to setile its
current tax assets and Habilities on a net basis. The net deferred tax position at 31 December was:
im Em im [4:)
Deferred tax assets 132 125 - 1
Deferred tax labilities {10) {7} {1} - T
122 118 {1} 1
The movement for the year in the net deferred tax pasition was as follows;
Group Cotipany
fn tm
At 1 January 2007 97 -
Credited ¢ income statement 39 1
Charged to equity {3} -
Businasses acquired {4 -
Transfer to current tax {11} -
At 31 December 2007 118 1
Charged to income statement (a0} (1)
Credited/icharged) to equity y £ {1)
Businesses acquired 4 -
Exchange adjustments 17 -
At 31 Dacember 2008 - 122 {1)
252 Group o
The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised and the movements thereon during the year: o
Reticement _ §
Accederated tax benefit Urrelieved Stare-bated Fait valie e
depreciaton obipauons trading ksses T Provascons adpsstments Tonl =
Em fm Em fm frn 74
Deferred tax assets
At 1 January 2007 2 79 1 8 15 14 119
Credited/icharged) to income statement m {5) a7 1 {n m 40
{Charged)/credited to equity - {1 - i2) {n 1 {3)
Businesses acquived - - - - - {44 (4
Transfer to curent taxaiion - - - - 2 {13) {11}
Transfer to deferred texation liabilities - - - - - 3 3
At 31 Decembes 2007 1 73 48 15 - 144
(Charged)/credited 10 income statement - {23) {21) 1 {2} - {45}
Credited/[chargad} to equity - 17 - (4) - - 13
Businesses acquired {1) - - - - - {n
Exchange adjustments - - 13 - - - 1w -
Transterred from deferred tax liabilities - - - - - 19 19
At 31 December 2008 - 67 46 4 13 19 149
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25 Deferred taxation continued

Undistrituted
amengs of ot
Revatuation of ventures and Preference Fair vale
poperies Boadwll assecales shares adjustments Toal
£m fm fm £ Em £m
Deferred tax liabilities .
At January 2007 (1) ] {6) {8 - (22}
{Charged)/credited 1o the income statement - - 2 1 - (1}
Transfer from defered tax assets - - - - {3) (3}
A1 31 December 2007 n 7 {8} {7 (3} (263
{Charged)/credited to the income statement - - (2) - B 6
Businesses acquired - - - - 5 5
Credited 10 equity - - - - 9 9
Exchange adjustments - (2) - - - {2}
Transterred to deferred tax assets - - - - (19) {19}
At 31 December 2008 . 1} 9 (10) {7} - {27)
Total net deferred tax asset 122

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax losses that arose over a number of years of approximately £180m (2007: £250m) which are available
for offset against future profits. £19m {2007: £14m) will expire 20 years after the year in which they arose, using losses incurred in earlier years before those
incusred in later years, with the first expiry in 2019. The remaining losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed reserves of subsidiaries for which deferred
tax liahilities have not been recegnised was £350m (2007: £220m} and for joint ventures and associates was £nil {Z007: £13m}. No liability has been
recognised in respect of these differences because the Group is in a pasition to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that such differences will nat reverse in the foreseeable future.

253 Company
The following represents the major deferred tax assets and lighilities recognised by the Company and the movements thereon:
veferred
12x bigbeisly Deferred tax zssets
Fetueren Net deferted”
Preference . Sharehbased benefn 1ax assets/
shares myTents cbligations Bovisions Touwl {kabaliy)
fm m £m £m £m Em
A1 January 2007 {8) [] 3 1 B -
Creditedficharged) to income statement - i n 1 ) 1
{Charged)/credited to equity 1 {1} - - {n =
A1 31 December 2007 {7l 4 2 ] 1
Charged to income statemens - n - - {1) n
Charged to equity - {1 - - {1) {1}
A131 December 2008 {7) 2 2 2 6 n
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26 Retirement benefit obligations

a) Group

The Group, through trustees, operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes. Oefined benefit schemes provide benefits
based on employees’ pensionable service and their pensionable salary. Defined contribution schemes are those where the Group’s obligation is limited
to the amount that it contributes to the scheme and the scheme members bear the investment and actuarial risks.

The majority of the Group's defined benefit schemes are funded. Defined benefit contributions are determined in consultation with the trustees,
after taking actuarial advice.

The Group’s main scheme is the Balfour Beatty Pension Fund ("BBPF"), which includes defined benefit and defined contribution sections. The defined
benefit section is closed to new members with the exception of certain employees transferring under TUPE. During the current year the Group implemented
measures to limit the increase in pensionable pay of certain groups of in-service defined benefit mermbers, giving rise 10 a reduction in past semvice liabilities
of £60m, which has been classified as an exceptional item in the income statement.

Certain Group employees are members of the Balfour Beatty Shared Cost section of the Railways Pension Scheme {"Railways Pension Scheme”},
which is ciosed to new members wath the exception of certain empleyees transferring under TUPE. The economic interest of the Group in this sharad cost
scheme is approximately 60% of the scheme’s assets and liabilities, based on the relevant provisions of the trust deed and rules and trustee guidelines
regarding future surplus apporionments and deficit financing. Mansell plc operates two defined benefit schemes, which are both closed to new members,
the Mansell plc Pension Scheme and the Hall & Tawse Retirement Berefit Plan {"Mansell schemes”), Other schemes comprise funded and unfunded
post-retirement bengfit obligations in Europe and North America, the majority of which arrangements are closed 1 new entrants. Where schemes are
closed to new members, existing members continue 1o accrue benefits for future service, On 5 April 2007 the Birse Group Retirement Benefit Scheme
{"Birse scheme"} merged with the BBPF.

The membership of the principal schemes is as follows:

Railways Radways
Baltour Bastty Pension Manssll  Balfour Seatty Fension Marsel
Pension Fund Schems schemes Pension Fund Scheme sthemes
- 2008 08 208 2007 2007 2007
Number of members: '
Defined benefit
— active members 5338 425 453 6,306 4490 494
— delerred pensioners 13,363 1,594 1513 13,248 1,625 1,536
— pensioners, widow{er)s and dependants 17,063 1.256 1258 16,852 1,183 1,291
Defined contribution 6,870 - - 4,984 - -
Total 42,634 3275 3264 41,390 3,308 33

IAS 19 governs the accounting for defined benefit schemes in the Group's financial statements. Obligations are calculated using the projected unit credit
methed and discounted to a net present value using the rate of return on high quality corporate bonds. Pension expense relating to current service cost is
charged to coniracts or overheads based on the function of scheme members and is included in cost of sales and net operating expenses. The net interest
income arising from the expected return on plan assets and the intesest on scheme obligations s credited to investment income or finance charges as
appropriate. Actuarial gains and losses are reparted in full in the statement of recognised income and expense. The IAS 19 accounting valuation is sét
outin 26.1 below.

A different calculation is used for the regular valuations undertaken by the scheme trustees to gdetermine the future company contribution level
necessary so that over time the scheme assets will meet the scheme liabilities. The principal difference between the two methods is that under the funding
basis the liabilities are discounted using a rate of retum reflecting the composition of the assets in the scheme, rather than the rate of return on high-quality
corporate bonds as required by IAS 19 for the accounting basis. Details of the previous formal funding basis valuations are set out in 26.2 below.

26.1 |AS 13 accounting valuation
The principal actuarial assumptions for the 1AS19 accounting valuations of the Group's principal schemes are as follows:
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Raitwaya Raiways

Batfour Bastry Persion Mansafl Balfowr 8eatty Pens:on Mansell

fension Fund Schams schemes Pension Func Scheme chemes

2008 2008 008 2007 2067 2007

% % % % % %

Discount rate on obligations 6.45 6.45 6.45 585 5.85 5.85

Expected return on plan assets 627 745 6.40 653 745 6.83

Inflation rate 280 280 280 335 335 3.35
Future increases in pensionable salary:

— certain members of the Balfour Beatiy Pension Fund 280 - - 485 485 485

— other members 430 430 430 4.85 4.85 485

Rate of increase in pensions in payment {or such other
rate as is guaranteed) 280 280 280 335 335 335
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Balfour Beatty plc

The montality tables adopted for the 2008 and 2007 IAS 19 valuations are the 1992 series calendar year 2007 tables, with future improvements applicable
to each member’s year of birth under the medium cohort effect from 2007.

Average lile expectancy

at €5 years of ags

2007

Average hfe expectanty

8165 vears of age

Members in receipt of pensicn

—Male 2.3years 202 years
~Female Adyears 233 years
Members not yet in receipt of pension (current age 50}

—Male N3years 21.2 years
—Female 24.3years 247 years

The BBPF actuary underiakes reguiar mortality investigations based on the experignce exhibited by pensioners of the BBPF and due to the size of the
membership of the BBPF {42,634 members at 3t December 2008) is able to make comparisans of this experience with the moriality rates set out in the
various published martality tables. The actuary is alsa able t¢ menitor changes in the exhibited mortality over time. As a result of these reviews the Group
is able to adopt with a measure of confidence consistent mortality assumptions across its various defined benefit schernes. In 2007 the reviews suggested
continuing improvements in life expectancy and therefore the mortality assumptions were strengthensg compared with the pravious formal funding
valuations and the 31 December 2006 valuation reviews.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

Railways Railways
Batiour Beatty Pension Mansell Dther Balfour Beaty Pension Mansell Other
Pension Fund Scheme schemes schemes Total Pension Fund Scheme sehemes schesnes Totat
2008 208 2008 2008 2008 2007 20067 2007 2007
£m Em £m £m £m m fm £m £m £m
Present value of
funded abligations (1,733} {138) (188} (14) {2073} [2.036) {164) (207 12) {2.419)
Fair vaiue of
pian assets 1,540 120 170 1 1,841 © 1,796 160 191 " 2,158
Deficit (183) (18) (18) (3) (232} {240} ‘{4) {16} (1 {261)
Present value of
unfunded obligaticns - - - (29) (29} - - - (25) {25}
Liability in the
balance sheet (193) (18) (18} (32} (261} {240) {4} {16) (26} {286}
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:
Railways Railways
Baltour Beatty Peansion Mansal} Other Balfous Beatty Pension Mansell Other
Pension Fund Schems schemes schemas Totat Pension Fund Scheme sthemes sthemes Teal
2008 a0 008 2008 2008 om 2007 20607 2007 o037
Em £m £m £im Em fm £m fm fm Em
Current service cost (38) {3) (3) {1} (45) {47} {3 3} n {54}
Defined contribution
chargs {16) - - {12) {ZB) {10} - - {7) {17}
Included in employes
costs {Note 5} (54) (3) (3) {13) (13) {57} (3) {3} (8} {71}
Expected return
on plan assets 117 11 13 - L] 10 10 12 1 133
Interest cost (113) (9) {12} 2) {136} (99) (8] {11} {2} (1200
Net investment
income (Note 6) q 2 1 2) L] 11 2 1 {1} 13
Exceptional reduction
in pension past
service liabilities
[Note 8 60 - - - 60 - - - - -
Total credited/
[charged] to
income staternent 10 1) {2) {15} {8) {45} m {2} (9} {58)
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26 Retirement benefit obligations continued
The amounts recognised in the Statement of recognised income and expense are as follows:
Baklour Ba'four
Raitways Beany Failwavs
’ Pensicn Pansion Mansall Other Pension Pension Mansell Other
Fund Schame schames schemes Total F Scheme scheres schemes Total
208 2008 20 208 2008 a7 o0 2007 2007 200
£m £m tm £ Em £m £ £m tm £m

Actuarial gains on pension P
scheme obligations 314 30 26 - 3n 5 1 1 3 20
Actuarial losses an pension
scheme assets {350) {47 (35} - (432) {20 - {1} - r4)]
Total actuarial gains/{losses)
recognised in the Statement of
recognised income and expense
{Note 29.1) (36} {17} {9) - (62} {15} 1 10 3 {1
Cumulative gains/(losses) recognised
in reserves (76) )] 14 1 {68} {40} 10 23 1 {6}

BBPF defined contribution employer contributions paid and charged to the income statemant have been separately identified on page 68 and the defined
contribution section assets and liabilities amounting to £52m {2007: £42m} have been excluded from the tables on pages 68 to 71. Defined contribution

charges for ather schemes include contributions 1o multi-emptoyer pension schemes.
The actua! retumn on plan assets was a loss of £291m {2007 gain of £112m).

The movement in the present value of obligations is as follows:

Babtow Satiour
Baatty Railways Beany Ratways
Pension Pension Mansel! Other Pension Persion Mansell Brse Ower
Fond Schame schemes schemes Total Fund Seherne schermes scheme schemes Total
2008 2008 2008 20 2008 06 2007 007 2007 207 W O
£m m £m tm tn £ £m £m £m Em m &
At 1 January {2.036) (164) (207} (31 (2.444) 11876) (158) {210) (94} (371 {2378} 2
Exchange adjustments - - - - (e {6) - - - - {1 {1} §
Transfer - - - - - (94 - - 94 - - ?ﬂ.
Service cost {38) 3 {3 ) {45) {7 3 {3) - i {54}
Exceptional past
Service gain 60 - - - 60 - - - - - -
Intarest cost (113) 9) {12) {2) {136} (@9 (8l (1) - (2) (120)
Actuarial gains 314 30 26 - 370 5 1 n - 3 20
Contributions
from members 1 - {t) - {12} (11) - {1 - - 12)
Benefits paid 9 8 ) q 112 86 4 7 - 3 100
Businesses acquired - - - ) {1 - - - - (2) {2)
At 31 December (1,733 {138) {188) 43) {2102)  {2.035) (164) {207) - {37) (2424
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The movement in the fair value of plan assets is as follows:

S e T e
Pension Pension Marnssfl Other Pension Pension Mansell Sirse Other
Fund Scheme schemes schemes Teal Fund Scheme: schemes scheme sthemnes Joual
200 2008 2008 2008 208 207 e 20 707 200 207
£m £m m m tm m m £ £n £m
At1 January 1,796 160 191 1 2,158 1,683 150 177 62 10 2,087
Exchange adjustments - - - 1 1 - - - - - -
Transfer - - - - - 62 - - (62) - -
Expecied return 117 1 13 - 14 110 10 12 - 1 133
on plan asseis
Actuariel losses {350} (47} {35} - (432) (20} - {1 - - 21}
Contributions from. 28 2 2 - 2 0 2 2 - - 34
employer - regular funding
Contributions from i 2 7 - 38 1 2 7 - - 10
emplaver — deficit funding
Contributions n - 1 - 12 1 - 1 - - 12
from members
Benefits paid (91) (8) 9} 1) (109) (85} {4} @ - m {98}
Businesses acquired - - - - - - - - - 1 i
At 31 December 1540 120 170 1" 1801 1,79 160 191 - " 2158
The fair value and expected rates of return on the assets held by the schemes at 31 December are as follows:
Balfour Beatty Pension Fund Raitways Pension Schame Mansail sch Other sch
rate of v Value  rata ol vt Vatue e of rcurn Valon  ratm f e Valus
208 2008 2008 208 008 2008 208 2008
% im % fm b ] £m % £m
Equities 835 445 835 78 8.35 84 - -
Bonds .
—index linked gilts 380 sl - 3.80 15 - -
—fixed rate gihs 4,00 110 - - 3.80 k| - -
—corporate and other bonds 6.70 542 5.70 30 5.70 32 417 11
Funds of hedge funds 6.30 n - - - - - -
Property - - 6.10 12 - - - -
Cash and other net assets 360 2 - - 3.60 5 - -
Rate of retum/total 6.27 1,540 7.45 120 6.40 170 417 11
Batkos Beatty Pension Fund Raitways Penision Stmems Fiarsll schemes Other schernes
Expect Expected Expected
rate of retrn Value  rate of retum Vale  rate of retlum Vahe  rateof return Vahe
07 m? 267 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007
% £m % im % £m % £
Equities 8.25 694 8.25 104 825 107 - -
Bonds
—indexed linked gilts 440 333 - - 4,50 1% - -
~fixed rate gilts 460 96 - - 450 35 - -
- corporate and other bonds 6.15 649 5.85 40 585 K 4,88 "
Property 6.40 3 6.40 15 - - - -
Cash and other net current assets 440 2 435 1 435 1 - -
Rate of retum/total 6.53 1,79 745 160 6.83 191 489 "
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26 Retirement benefit obligations continued

DIRECTORS REPORT
AND ACCOUNTS 2008

The expected rates of retern on scheme assets were determined as the average of the expected returns on the assets held by the scheme on 31 December.

The rates of retum for each class were determined as follows:

— gguities, funds of hedge funds, and property: the rate adopted is consistent with the median assumption used in the actuary’s asset modelling wark

as at 31 December;

— bonds: the rate has been set to reflect the yields available on the gilts and corporate bond holdings held at 31 December;
— cash and other net assets: this class principally comprises inftation rate swaps and cash holdings and the rate adopted reflects current shori-term

returns on cash deposits.
The estimated amounts of contributions expected to be paid to the principal defined benefit schemes during 2009 are as follows:
Balfos
FPension Raitways Mansell Other
Fund  Pension Scheme srhemes Total
2009 008 2009 209 208
£m £ £m £ £m
Regular funding 29 Z 2 - 33
Deficit funding 17 2 7 - 26
Total 45 4 9 - 59
The sensitivity of the Group’s pansion abligations and of the prospective 2009 charge 1o the Group's income statement to different actuarial assumptions is
as follows:
Increase/
Inerease/ Incressef Inczease/ {deereasel
Inerzase./ decrezsel (Secrezsel  |decreasedin in totat
idecrease) 0 sevice in finance ivestment mension
Percentage 1" obidsgatons bost ot retm tosl
oouts vears % Im Im In im m
Increase in discount rate 05% {77 (158} % (1) - {5)
increase in inflation rate 0.5% 6.5 134 4 8 - 12
Increase in salary above inflation 05% 05 9 - - 1
Increase in retun on assets 05% - - - - {9) {9)
fncrease in life expectancy one year 32 66 1 4 - 5

The sensitivities relating to the discount rate, inflation rate and expected retum on assets in respect of the pension cost elements in the income statement
are shown for information only. The amounts that will be included in the 2009 income siatament are derived from the market conditions at 1 January 2009
and subsequent changes in markei conditions will have no effect on the 2009 income statement and will be reflected as actuarial adjustments in the

statement of recognised incame and expense.
Year end historic information for the Group's post-retirement benefit schemes is as follows:

o0 2007 206 % 2004

fm £ £m jir] fm

Defined benefit abligation at end of year (2,102} (2,444) {2.375) {2217} {1,984}
Fair value of assets at end of yaar 181 2,158 2.087 1,937 1,730
Funded staius at end of year {751} {286} (288} {280} {254}
Experience adjustment for liabilities 1 (56} {52} 24 {59)
Experience adjustment for assets {432) {21} 23 138 52
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26.2 Funding valuations
The last formal funding valuations are as detailed below. The Hall & Tawse and Mansell actuaries are undertaking formal valuations as at 31 March 2008
and 31 July 2008 respeciively. The Railways Pension Scheme actuary is undertaking a formal valuation as at 31 December 2007.

Batiou Mansedl schemes
Beatty Railways
Perssion Pension Hall & Tawse Mansell pic
Fund Scheme Pan stheme Birse scheme:
fm £m fm fm fm
Last formal funding valuation 31/03/2007 31/12/2004  31/3/2005 31/7/2005  5/4/2004
Scheme surplus/(deficit)
Market value of assets : 1.693 120 90 51 38
Present value of scheme liabilities {1.770) {130) 113} {65} {58)
Deficit in defined benefit scheme {77) o (23) (14 {z0)
Funding level 956% 92.4% 79.0% 78.0% 65.5%
b} Company

Certain employees of the Company are members of the BBPF. Assets, lighilities, income and expenditire relating 1o this fund are atlocated to Group
tompanies participating in the scheme in proportion to pensionable payroll for the year. The Company's share of the net IAS 19 deficit was £7m (2007: £9m).

27 Provisions

Group Company

,Emp"m oo Othe provisi Total  Other provisions

m tm £m Em tm

At 1 January 2008 25 15 57 128 10

Exchange adjustments 1 4 1 12 -
Charged to the income statement:

— additional provisions 6 b2} kL] 64 3

— unused amounts reversed (2 (8} t] (18) -

Utilised during the year {1 {5) 22) {28) {2)

Businesses acquired 5 2 1 8 -

At 31 December 2008 kx ) 62 70 166 1

Employee provisions comprise obligations to employees other than retirement benefit obligations. Contract provisions relate to pravisions on contracts,
in¢luding fault and warranty provisions, and other grovisions principally comprise environmental, lease, legal claims and costs and other onerous
commitments. .

The majority of provisions, ather than employee pravisions, are expected to be utilised within five years. Provision is made for the Directors’ best
estimate of known legal claims, investigations and legal actions in progress.




Batfour Beatty plc Prepiialeiail
28 Share capital
28.1 Ordinary shares of 50p each
Authonsed Issued
Mileon fm Million Em
At 1 January 2007 B35 48 430 215
Shares isswed - - 3 1
At 31 Decemnber 2007 695 38 433 216
Shares issued - - 45 3
At 31 December 2008 696 348 418 239
Allissued ordinary shares are fully paid. They carry no right to fixed income, but each share carries the right to one vote at genaral mestings of
the Company.
Ordinary shares issued during the year credited as fully paid:
Ordinary Qrdinary
shares  Considerstion shareg Conswdesation
a0 20 2007 2007
Number m Nymber £m
Share placing (Note 29.2) 43320411 182 - -
Savings-related share options exercised 1,286,053 3 1285018 2
Executive share options exercised 34,927 1 1271342 3
44,541,391 186 2557360 5
At 31 December, share options outstanding were as foliows:
Ordinary Ordinary
Exeftise price - WZE;S;
Year of isSve Bnce Normally exercisabie in periods to Number Norber
Savings-related
2002 184 December 2007 - 36,118
2003 133 December 2008 31,862 619,086
2004 210 December 2009 686,458 788,665
2005 250 December 2010 782276 1579788
2006 305 December 2011 1,615,135 1,788,816
2007 389 December 2012 2,167,889 2431556
2008 352 December 2013 2,412,703 -
701423 7244579
Executive
1998 181 May 2008 - 35,000
1999 110 November 2009 15818 87.818
2000 79 Aprit 2010 186,772 196,772
2001 200 June 2011 172,425 225725
2002 238 April 2012 306,000 366,000
2003 173 April 2013 452,066 519,566
2004 261 April 2014 761,672 924,934
1960,753 2,350,815

On 7 May 2008, options were granted over 2,499,744 ordinary shares under the Balfour Beatty savings-related share option scheme, at 362p per share,
and these are normally exercisable in the periods from July 2011 to December 2011 and from July 2013 to December 2013 depending upon the length

of savings contract chosen by the panicipant.
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28 Share capital continued

28.2 Cemulative convertible redeemable preference shares of 1p each

Autocsen Tsyued

Mitiion fm Millicn Em
A1 1 January 2007 177 2 117 -
Sharas repurchased - - (5} -
A% 31 December 2007 177 2 12 -
Shares repurchased - - - -
At 31 December 2008 77 2 12 -

Allissued preference shares are fully paid. During the year, 300,017 preference shares {2007: 4,957,163 were repurchased for cancellation by the Company
for a total consideration of £407,337 (2007: £7,500,535} at an average price of 135.8p{2007: 151.3p).

Holders of preference shares are entitled to a preferential dividend equivatent to a gross payment of 10.75p per preferance share per annum, payable
hatf-yearly. Any preference shares stil! outstanding are redeemable on t July 2020 at £1 each, together with any arrears or accruals of dividend, unless the
holder exercises any option granted by the Company 1o extend the redemption date. The masimum redemgtion value of all of the issued and outstanding
preference shares, excluding any arrears or accruals of dividend, was £112m at 31 December 2008 (2007: £112m).

At the option of the holder, preference shares are convertible on the first day of the next calendar month following receipt of the conversion notice into
new Balfour Beatty plc ordinary shares effectively on the basis of 21.05263 ordinary shares for every 100 preference shares, subject to adjustment in certain
circumstances. The Company is entitled to convert all outstanding preference shares into ordinary shares if there are fewer than 44,281,239 preference
shares in issue or if the average of the closing mid-market price for 2 Balfour Beatty plc ordinary share during a 30 day period exceeds 950p, subject to
adjustment in certain circumstances.

The preference shares carry no vating rights at a general meeting of the Company. except where the dividend is six months or mora in arrears, or
where the business of the mesting includes 2 resofution which directly affects the rights and privileges attached to the preferance shares or a resclution
for the winding-up of the Company. On a winding-up of the Campany, halders are entitled to receive the sum of £1 per preference share, together with any
arrears or accruals of dividend, in priority 1o any payment on any other class of shares.

The preference shares are regarded as a compound instrument, consisting of 2n equity and a liability companent. The fair value of the liability
component t the date of issue, included under non-current liabilities, was estimated using the prevailing market interest rate of 13.5% for a similar
aon-convertible instrument. The difference between the proceeds of issue of preference shares and the fair value assigned 1o the liability component,
representing the value of the equity conversion compenent, is included in sharehalders” equity, net of deferred tax.

The liability component recognised on the balance sheet is calculated as follows:

2008 2007

fm fm

Aedemption value of shares in issue at 1 January 112 1?7
Equity component {16} {1B)
Deferred tax and interest element {9) {11
Liability compaonent ai 1 January at amortised cost 87 90
Repurchase of preference shares - {3)
Liability component at 31 December at amoriised cost 87 87

The fair value of the liability companent of the preference shares at 31 December 2008 amounted to £192m (2007: £142m. The fair value is calcuiatad by
discounting the future cash flows at interest rates reflecting the vield curve at the balance sheet date.
Interest expense an the preference shares is calculated using the effective interest method.




Batfour Beatty plc B
29 Movements in equity
29.1 Group
uisz‘mar: Retangd
Equity venures Otherresens sy
Called-up Share  component of and PPP Curency {accurn-
sharg prenmh preference Specal  associaies’ Hedgmg francal  bemstavon uiated
capiat arcount shares reserve resenves reseves sels Eserve Cher lertses) imerest Total
tm £m fm im fm fm fm Em £m 'm fm
At 1 January 2007 215 43 16 169 243 - - {6} 11 {304) - 387
Net profit for the year - - - - 74 - - - - 77 - 151
Actuarial gains/ilosses} on
retirement benefit obligations - - - - 3 - - - - (1) - 2
PPP cash flow hedges
— fair value revaluations - - - - {2 {5} - - - - - {7
- reclassified and reported in
net profit - - - - 7 - - - - - - 7
PPP financial assets
— fair value revaluations - - - - {26} - - - - - - (28)
— reclassified and reported in net profit - - - - @3l - - - - - - (3)
Changes in fair value of
net investment hedges - - - - - - - (4} - - - (4}
Currency transiation differences - - - - - - - 7 - - - 7
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - 1 - 7 1 - 1 - {5) - 5
Total recognised income for the year - - 1 - - 60 {4 - 4 - 7 - 132
Ordinary dividends - - - - - - - - - (42) - {42}
Joint ventures' and associates’
dividends - - - - (83) - - - - a3 - -
Issue of ordinary shares 1 4 - - - - - - - - - 5
Repurchase of preference shares - 5 (1) - - - - - - 5} - {1
Movements relating to
share-based payments - - - - - - - - 4 (2} - 2
Transfers - - - {5) (42} - - - - a7 - -
At 31 December 2007 216 22 16 164 178 {4 - {2) 15 (152} - 483
Net profit for the year - - - - 2 - - - - 124 - 196
Actuarial losses on retirement
benefit obligations ~ - - - {1a) - - - - (82 - (1)
Other cash flow hedges
— fair value revaluations - - - - (3) 2 - - - - - {1
PPP cash flow hedges
— fair value revaluations - - - - 713} (33) - - - - - {107
PPP financial assets
-~ fair value revaluations - - - - 100 - 2 - - - - 102
Changes in fair value of
net investment hedges - - - - - - - (105) - - -~ {105)
Currency translation differences - - - - 27 - - 189 - - 1 217
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - - (4) 10 1) 3 - 17 - 25
Total recognised income for the year - - - - 105 (22} 1 87 - 79 1 251
Ordinary dvidends - - - - - - - - - (54) - (54)
Joint ventures’ and associates’
dividends - - - - {53} - - - - 53 - -
Issue of ordinary shares 3 2 - - - - - - 161 - - 186
Repurchase of preference shares - - - - - - - - - - - -
Mavements relating to
share-based payments - - - - - - - - 4 (8) - (4)
Minority Interests - - - - - - - - - - 3 3
Transfers - - - (25) - - - - {161} 188 — -
At 31 December 2008 239 54 16 139 230 {26) 1 85 " 1™ 4 865

Fair value gains/losses on PPP financial assets and cash flow hedges reclassified and reported in net profit in 2007 are included in exceptional items.
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29 Movements in equity continued

29.2 Company
Equity Retained
Called-up Share component of mafits/
share Premium prefetence Speciai Other {accumulated
tapial actou shares esgve 1aserves losses) Total
fra £m fm fm fm Em fm
At 1 January 2007 215 43 16 169 46 126 615
Net profit for the year - - - - - 106 106
Actuarial losses on retirement benefit obligations - - - - - (1} n
Ordinary dividends - - - - - (42} (42)
Issue of ordinary shares 3 4 - - - - 5
Repurchase of preference shares - 5 {1 - - {5 m
Movements relating io share-based payments - - - - 2 3l 3]
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - 1 - - {1} -
Transiers - - ~ {5} - 5 -
At 31 December 2007 216 52 16 164 48 185 681
Net loss for the year - - - - - {28} (28)
Aciuarial losses on retirement benefit obligations - - - - - n n
Ordinary dividends - - - - - {54) {54)
Issue of ordinary shares 23 2 - - 161 - 186
Movements relating to share-based payments - - - - 16 nj 5
Tax on iiems taken directly to equity - - - - - ] (1)
Transfers - - - 25) {161) 186 -
At 31 Decemnber 2008 239 54 16 139 64 2716 788

The retained profits of Batfour Beztty plc are wholly distribuzable.

By special resolution on 13 May 2004, confirmed by the court on 16 June 2004, the share premiur account was reduced by £181m and the £4m capital
redemption reserve was cancelled, effective on 25 June 2004, and a special reserve of £185m was cieated. This reserve becomes distributable to the extent
of future increases in share capital and share premium account, of which £25m occurred in 2008 {Z007: £5m).

On 20 May 2008, 43,320,411 ordinary shares were issued and placed with institutions at a price of 430p per share, raising £182m after issue costs of
£4m. The placing qualified for merger ralief under Section 131 of the Companigs Act 1985 50 that the pramium arising was not required to be crediied to the
Company’s share premium account.

29.3 The retained profits in the Group and the retained profit of the Company are stated net of investments in Balfour Beatty ple ordinary shares of 50p each
acquired by the Group's employee discretionary trust, the Balfour Beatty Employee Share Gwnership Trust, io satisfy awards under the Balfour Beatty
performance share plan and the Balfour Beatty deferred bonus plan. In 2008, 3.0m (2007; 0.9m) shares were purchased ata cost of £12.8m (2007: £4.2m).
The market value of the 3.7m {2007: 1.8m) shares held by the Trust at 31 Oecember 2008 was £12.2m (2007 £8.9m). Following confirmation of the
performance criteria at the end of the performance period in the case of the performance share plan, and at the end of the vesting period in the case of

the deferred bonus pian, the appropriate number of shares will be unconditionally transferred to participants. In 2008, 1.1m shares were transferred to
participants in relation to the April 2005 awards under the parfarmance share plan (2007: 0.7m shares for the Aprit 2004 awards). The trustees have waived
the rights to dividends on shares held by the Trust. Other reserves in the Group and the Company include £7.6m relating to unvested Performance Share Plan
awards [2007: £5.7m), £5.8m selating to unvested share options (2007; £5.2m), and £3.0r relating to unvested deferred bonus plan awards (2007: £1.3m).
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30 Acquisitions

The Group has made the following acquisitions during the year:

Fair values of
net assats/ o ari
Acquizition Date Subsidiary P gui d idercson Hereon Costs oot "::2:?;’ Gn::?c:;:::::
301 18March2008  Dean & Dyball Lid 100% £44m £im £1m £(1Im £4Tm
30.2 30 April 2008 Balfour Beatty Communities LLC 100% £176m - f4m £146m £34m
$350m $7m
303 5May2008 Regiona! & City Airports (Blackpool) Ltd 95% - £tm £2m £(3)m £6m
304 4 June 2008 Douglas E Barnhart Inc 100% £61m - £2m £25m £38m
$121m $4m
305 26 June 2008 Lesnard Wood Family Communities {ii} £2m - - 2m -
LEC {3} $£3m
306 31 July 2008 Schreck-Migves Grmbh {i) 100% £25m - - £15mn £16m
£€32m
30.7 2% August 2008 Branlow Limited (i) 100% £7m £im - fim £fIm
30.8 7 November 2008 Colledge Trundle & Hall Limited {i} 100% £3m - - £Im £Zm
I'd
309 23 December tacktand Family Housing LLC (i) (i) £3m - - £3m -
2008 $5m
£321m £3m £3m £189m £144m

(i} As at 31 December 2008 the fair values of acquired assets, liabilities and goodwill for these businesses have been determinad on a provisional basis,
pending finalisation of the post-acquisition review of the fair value of the acquired net assets.

(i} Leonard Wood Family Communities LLC and Lackland Famity Housing LLC are PPP military accommodation businesses in which the Group acquired a joint
venture interest where the Graup share of the resuts is limited to a pre-agreed prefered return on funds invested subject to the performance of the LLC.

30.1 Dean & Dyball Ltd is a |eading UK regional civil engingering and building business. The goadwill arising is attributable te the acquisition strengthening
the Group’s UK regional civil engineering and building businasses.

30.2 Balfour Beatty Communities LLC {formerly GMH Military Housing) was the military PPP accommodation business of GMH Communities Trust, a US
real estate investment trust. The goodwill arising is attributable to the acquisition extending the Group's position in the UK PPP and facilities management
markets o the USA.

30.3 Regional & City Airports (Blackpool) Ltd owns and operates Blackpool International Airpert. The goodwill arising is attributable to the acguisition
strengthening the Group's non-PPP infrastructure investment portiolio.

30.4 Douglas E Bamhart Inc is a US programme and construction management business. The goodwill arising is attributable to the acquisition
complementing the Group's US groject and programame management business.

305 Leonard Wood Family Communities LLC is a PPP military accommodation business located in Pulaski, USA.

306 Schreck-Mieves GmbH is a German railway engineering and construction company, The provisicnal goodwilt arising is attributable to the acguisiiion
strengthening the Group's European railway engineering business.

30.7 Branlow Ltd is a UK based ground engineering company. The provisional goodwill arising is attributable to the acquisition extanding the scope of the
Group's ground engineering business into the micropifing market,

30.8 Colledge Trundle & Hall Ltd is 2 UK system integratar in the intalligent building control sector. The provisional guodwill arising is atributable to the
acguisition extending the Graup’s capabilities within the UK facilities management market.

30.9 Lackland Famity Housing LLC is a PPP military accommodation business located in San Anionio, USA.

SUNOdJe INQ



78 A counrs gen Balfour Beaty plc

Notes to the accounts

30 Acquisitions continued

The tair value of the net assets acquired, consideration paid and goodwill arising on these transactions were:

Balfour Beztty Communities

tiormerty GMH Military Housing) Other Total
Book valus Fair valus of Boak valoe Fair value Book value Fair valua
of nssets Fair valun aszets of i ‘.Fnir vajue of Esgely fassets Fair vatue of aasety
" fm £m " fm m fm £m "t T fm T Em
Net assets acquired:
Intangible assets — other - 115 115 - 2 2 - 137 137
Investments in joint venitures
and associates 36 {9) 7 - - - 36 9} 27
Proparty, plant and equipment - - - 15 4 4 45 q 49
Working capital ] {1 8 7 (34) {21) 16 (35) (19)
Provisicns - - - (8) - (8) (8) - (8)
Deferred taxation (1) - 1 - 5 5 {1) 5 4
Cash and cash equivalents - - - » - kv 32 - 32
Borrowings - - - {29) - {29) {29) - (29)
Retirement benefit obligations - - - 1) - (1) {t) - (1)
Mingrity interests 3) - (3) - - - 3) - (3)
1 105 146 46 (3) 13 87 102 189
Goodwill 3. 110 144
180 153 333
Satisfied by: .
Cash consideration 176 145 k¥4
Costs incurred 4 5 9
' 180 ‘ 150 330
Deferred consideration and costs - 3 3
180 153 333

Fair value adjustments comprise intangible assets recognised in respect of customer contracts and relationships, brand namas, adjustments to harmonise
aceounting methods for the recognition of prefit on long-term contracts and provision for onerous commitments.

During 2008, £4m of deferred consideration was paid in respect of acquisitions completed in earlier years.

The acquired businesses eamed revenues of £502m and profits from continuing operations of £2m (after charging exceptional items of £5m and
amortisation of intangible assets of £12m) in the period since acquisition.

The following summary presents the Group as if all of the businesses acquired had been acquired on 1 January 2008. The amounts include the results
of the acquired businesses, depreciation and amortisation of the acouired fixed assets and intangible assets recognised on acquisition. The amounts do not
include any possible synergies from the acquisition. The results of acquired companies for the period before acquisition have not been ad;usted to reflect
Balfour Beatty accounting policies nor ta reflect the fair value adjustments made on acquisition. The information is provided for illustrativa purposes only
and does not necessarily reflect the actual results that would have occurred, nor is it necessarily indicative of the future results from operations of the
combined companies,

£m

Group revenue 8an
Profit for the year from continuing operations 195
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31 Share-based payments

31.1 The Company operates fous equity-settled share-based payment arrangements, namely the savings-related share option scheme, the executive
share option scheme, the performance share plan and the deferred bonus plan. The Group recognised total expenses related 10 equity-settled share-based
payment transactions since 7 November 2002 of £8.8m in 2008 (2007: £7.1m).

31.2 Savings-related share options;

The Company operates an Inland Revenue approved savings-related share option scheme {“SAYE") under which employees are granted an option to
purchase ordinary shares in the Company in either three of five years time, dependent upon their entering inte & contract to make monthly contributions to
a savings account over the relevant period. These savings are used 1o fund the option exercise. This scheme is open to all employees based in the UK and
performance conditions are not applied to the exercise 6f SAYE options, Employees normally have a period of six months after compietion of the savings
contributions during which 1o exercise the SAYE options, failing which they lapse. Details of SAYE options granted during the year and outstanding at the
end of tha year are shown in Note 28.1, The information in relation to SAYE options granted since 7 November 2002 was:

Weightsd Weghted

average average

SAYE exercise SaYE exercise

options price optens prce

208 200 207 2007

HNumber Pance Nurmber Pence

Qutstanding at 1 January 7.208401 2061 5954117 2442
Granted during the year 2,493,744 3620 2,500,148 383.0
Forteited during the year (694,636} 321 (5578931 2676
Exercised during the year (1,275,485) 1930  (666.656) 2095
Expired during the year {30,611) 210.0 {21,267) 1330
Outstanding at 31 December 1.107423 316 7208411 296.1
Exercisable at 31 December 37.862 133.0 44417 2100

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for those SAYE options exgrcised during the year was 401.2p {2007: 450.0p). Those SAYE options
outstanding at 31 Oecembes 2008 had a weighted average remaining contractual fife of 2.7 years (2007: 2.8 years).

The principal assumptions used by the consultants in the stochastic model for the SAYE options granted in 2008, inclutling expecied volatility determined
from the historic weekly share price movements over the three year period immediately preceding the invitatian date, were:

Closing share Expetted Expecied E d Calculated

Exareise prica belors dividend volatility tarm of Risk-froe fait velue of

price  invitation date yield of shares iong interest rate an option

Invitation date Fance Perce % % wan % Pence
10 April 2008 — three years savings contract 352.0 442.25 260 24 325 401 1137
10 April 2068 —five years savings contract 362.0 44225 250 4.4 5.25 410 1283

31.3 Executive share options:

The Company has not granted any executive share options in 2008, but has continued to operate a scheme under which emplayees were last granted
options in 2004 to purchase ordinary shares in the Company, which are exercisable between three and 10 years after the date of grant. Performance
conditions have been met for all executive options granted since 7 November 2002, as easnings per share befare goodwill amortisation and exceptional
items (“eps”} for the last year of the minimum three year perfarmance period have grown from their respective fixed base eps by a total of at least 3%
per annum plus the increase in RPI over the relevani period. Details of execwtive share options outstanding at the end of the year are shown in Note 28.1.
The information in refation to executive options granted since 7 November 2002 was:

Weighted Worgtned
Fvatage averape

Exocutive exnrcise Execidve expfite

sptions. price ot rce

=0 2008 0 267

Number Pence Nurber Ponce

Qutstanding at 1 January © 1,444,500 2294 2,398,342 2361
Granted during the year - - - -
Forfeited during the year {45,135) 2513 {10,000) 2610
Exercised during the year (179,527} 2304 (943842) 246.2
Expired during the year - - - -
Outstanding at 31 December 1,219,738 2284 1444500 2294
Exercisable at 31 December 1,219,738 284 1444500 2294

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for those executive options exercised during the yearwas 425.3p (2007: 473.6p). Those executive
options outstanding a: 31 December 2008 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.9 years {2007: 5.9 years).
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31 Share-based payments continued

31.4 Performance share plan awards:

The Company operates a perfarmance share ptan under which executive Directors and key senior employees are granted conditional awards of ordinary
shares in the Company, which are exercisable on the third anniversary of the date of award. These awards wilt ony vest to the extent that performance
targets are met over a three year performance peried. On 15 Aprit 2008 a maximum of 2,042,490 conditiona! shares were awarded which are normally
exercisable in April 2011,

50% of the 2008 award is based on an eps growth target: the maximum award of shares is made only where the Company’s eps increases by at least
AP} +45% in the relevant performance period; 25% of this element of the award is made where the Company’s eps increasas by RPl +15% over the pericd;
if growth in eps is between APl +15% and RPI +45%, the number of shares wili be awarded pro-rata to the growth in eps; and no shares from this element
of the award can be awarded if growth in eps is less than RPI +15% over the period.

The other 50% of that 2008 award is based on total shareholder return {TSR) performance measured against a group of UK listed companies operating
in comparable markets to the Company: the maximum award of shares is made only where the Company’s TSR is in the upper quartile; 25% of this elemant
of the award is made where the Company’s TSR is at the median; if the Company’s TSR is between the median and the upper quartife, the number of shares
will be awarded pro-rata; end no shares can be awarded if the Company’s TSR is below median.

The infarmation in relation to performance share awards was:

Conditional Condiional
awards awards

2008 2007

Number Nymber

Outstanding at 1 January 4631630 4577234
Granted during the year 2042490 1465383
Forfeited during the year (68,412)  {170,445)
Exercised during the year (1132,427)  {66B,023)
Expired during the year (250,113)  {572519)
Quistanding at 31 December 5223,168 4,631,630

Exercisable at 31 December - _

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for those perfermance share awards exercised during the year was 448.0p (2007: 474.2p}.
Those performance share awards outstanding at 3t December 2008 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.7 years (2007: 1.6 years).

The awards are satisfied by the transfer of shares for no censideration. For the 50% of the 2008 award which is subject to a parformance tast based on eps,
the fair value of the award is the closing share price before the award date {444 Z5p). For the 50% of that 2008 award which is subject to a market condition
based on TSR, the consultants have used a stochastic model, including expected volatility determined from the historic weekly share price movements aver
the three year period preceding the award date, with the following assumptions used:

" Closing share Expocted Expacted Calculated

price before volatility of et of Risk-tree tair value of
wward date shares wards interast rate an sward
Award date Pence % Years % Pence
15 Aprii 2008 4425 243 30 395 266.6

315 Deferred bonus plan awards:

The Company operates a deferred bonus plan under which one-third of the annual bonus of executive Directors and key seniar employees is deferred in the
form of ordinary shares in the Company, which will normally be released after three years, praviding the individual is still in the Group's employment at that
time. On 31 March 2008 a maximum of 528,855 conditional shares were awarded which will normally be released on 31 March 2011, On 1 July 2008 2
further 21,499 conditional shares were awarded in lieu of entitiements to the final 2007 dividend and on 10 December 2008 a further 18.973 conditional
shares were awarded in lieu of entitlements to the interim 2008 dividend. The information in relation to deferred bonus plan awards was:

Conditional Conditional

awards awarts

208 27

Number Nurmber

(utstanding at 1 January 137,998 258,126
Granted during the year 528,856 403,002
Awards n lieu of dividends 40,472 15439
Forfeited during the vear {mn2) (20805
Exercised during the year - {17,664}
Expired during the year - -
Qutstanding at 31 December 1286214 737,998

Exercisable 21 31 December - -

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for those deferred bonus plan awards exercised during the year was n/a (2007: 468.1p).
Those deferred bonus plan awards outstanding at 31 December 2008 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.4 years (2007 1.8 years).

As the awaxds are satisfied by the transfer of shares for no consideration, the fair vatues of the awards are the closing share price befare award date,
which was 464.25p, 425.0p and 330.25p for the awards made on 31 March 7008, ¥ July 2008 and 10 December 2008 respectively.
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32 Commitments

Capital expenditure authorised and contracted for which has not been provided for in the accounts amaunted to £34m {2007: £7m) in the Group and £nil
{2007: £nil} in the Company.

The Group has commitied to provide its share of further equity funding and subordinated debt of joint ventures and associates in PPP projects
amounting to £70m (2007; £86m}, £19m (2007: £22m) in respect of PPP subsidiaries and £27m (2007 £nit} in respect of Balfour Beatty Communities
military hausing concessions. The future cash flow profile of the Group's share of further equity funding and subordinated debt is shown in Note 37(g}.

The Group leases land and buildings, equipment and other various assets undar non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases have varying
1erms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. The lsase expenditure charged to the income statement is disckosed in Note 4.1

Future operating lease expenditure commitments comprise:

Land and Land and

buildings Dther tuildings Other
zE 2008 2001 2007
fm £m £m fm
Group
Due within one year kL] 2 26 23
Due between one and five years 17 33 7i 32
Due after more than five years 3 - 37 -
158 54 14D 55
Company ) -
Due within ane year 3 - 3 -
Due between one and five years 13 - 14 -
Due after more than five years 4 - 7 -
0 - 24 -
Future operating lease income commitmants comprise:
Land and Land and
buikdings Other buiings Other
"t i i i
Group
Due within one year 2 - 3 1
Due between one and five years 10 - 6 2
Due after mare than fve years 2 - - -
14 - d
Company
Due within one year 2 - 3 -
Due between one and five years 9 - 4 -
Due after mare than five years 2 - 1 -
13 - 8 -

81
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33 Contingent liabilities

The Company and certain subsidiary undertakings have, in the normal course of business, given guarantees and entered into counter-indemnities in respect
of bonds refating to the Group’s own contracis and given guarantees in respect of the Group’s share of certain contractual obligations of joint ventures and
associates. Where the Company enters into such agreements, it considers these o be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such. In this
respect, guarantees are freated as contingent liabilities until such time as it becomes probabfe that the Company will be required 1o make payment under
the guarantee.

As stated in Note 27, provision has been made for the Directors’ best estimate of known lega! claims, investigations and legal actions in progress.
The Group takes (egal advice as 10 the likelihood of success of claims and actions and no provision is made where the Directors consider, based on that
advice, that the action is unlikely to succeed or a sufficiently reliable estimate of the potential obligation cannot be made.

On 17 April 2008, the Office of Fair Trading {"0FT"} published its Statement of Objections arising from a major investigation into tender activities
across the entire UK construction sector. The Company has provided the OFT with its response to the Statement of Objections. Subject to ongoing
co-operation, the Company has been granted leniency, which will reduce any fines ultimately levied; however the outcome remains uncertain.

34 Related party transactions

Jaoint ventures and associates:

The Group has contracted with, provided services to, and received management fees from, certain joint ventures and associates amaunting to £693m (2007;
£1.020m}. These transactions occurred in the normal course of business at market rates and terms. In addition, the Group procured equipment and fabour
on behalf of certain joint ventures and associates which wese recharged at cost with no mark-up. The amoun:s due to or from joint ventures and associates
at 31 December are disclosed within trade and gther receivables and rade and other payables in Notes 27 and 23 respectively.

Pension schemes:
The Group recharged the Balfour Beatty Pension Fund with the costs of administration and advisers' fees borne by the Group amounting o £4.5m in 2008
{2007: £3.5m}.

Key personnel:
The remuneration of key persannel of Balfour Beatty ple was:

2008 007

£m £m

Short-term benefits 7137 4951
Post employment benefits om 0.560
Share-based payments 3.0 2408
10.939 7517

Key persannel comprise the Board and seven Group managing directors (2007: five} who are directly responsible for the Group’s operating companies,
engineering and safety. The remuneration included above is that paid in respect of the peried of the year during which the individuals were Directors
and Group Managing Directors. Further details of Directors’ emoluments, pension benefits and interests are set out in the Remuneration report on
pages 18 to 25. .

35 Post balance sheet events

Gn 23 February 2009 the Group acquired Dooley Construction Limited Partnership, a leading North Caroling USA firm in the interiors construction market,
for a cash consideration of $40m. As this company has been acquired recently and prepares its local accounts under US GAAP, at the date of authorisation
of these accounts it is impracticable to determing the fair value of the net assets and goodwill acguired.
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36 Notes to the cash flow statement
Group Group . Company Compary
2 0074 2008 7
fm £ £m m
36.1 Cash generated from operations comprises: .
Profit from operations — continuing 51 136 15 124
Exceptional reduction in pension past service hiabilities {60) - (2} -
Trading loss from discontinued operations - (1} - -
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 72) ral - -
Dividends received - - {28) {55)
Depraciation of property, plant and equipment 65 50 - 1
Amortisation of other intangible assets 27 9 - -
Pension deficit paymants {38) {10} n -
Movements relating to share-based payments 9 7 ] 4
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4) {3} - -
Other nan cash items 5 - - -
Profit on disposal of investment - - - {82}
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 183 117 (11} (8}
Decrease in working capital 14 160 2 5
Cash generated from/{used in) operations 297 277 9 (3}
# Re-presentad {Note 1.28 and Note 6).
Group Group Company Company
208 0 2008
Em £m Em
36.2 Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash and deposits s 293 - -
Term deposits 82 96 50 80
PPP cash balances 2z 3 - -
Bank overdrafis (10} {15) {51} {95)
453 3719 1) {15)

Cash and cash equivalants include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liguid investments with originat maturities of less
than three months and bank overdrafis. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities within the balance sheet.

Group Group Company Company
B & TE

36.3 Analysis of movement in net cash;
Opening net cash 33 284 {15} 154
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2 63 14 {169}
Acquisitions — borrowings at date of acquisition (29) {36} - -
Businesses sold - borrowings at date of disposal - 35 - -
Proceeds from new loans {81) {42} - -
Repayment of loans 18 1 - -
Repayment of finance leases 2 - - -
Exchange adjustments 7 8 - -
Closing net cash 297 313 (1) {15}

36.4 Borrowings
During the year to 31 December 2008 the significant movements in borrowings were an increase of £81m in non-recourse borrowings funding the
development of financial assets in PPP subsidiaries, the inclusion of £29m of borrowings in acquired companies and repayment of £18m of loans.

83
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36 Notes to the cash flow statement continued

36.5 Acquisitions of businesses:

Group Group
8 007
£m fm
Net assets acquired:
Intangible assets ~ goodwill 144 263
Intangible assets — other 131 59
Property, plant and equipment 49 7
Joint ventures and associates 27 -
Assets held for sale - .24
Waorking capital (19) (113}
Retirement benefit obligations {1 (1)
Provisions {8} (18)
Current tax asset - 2
Deferred tax assets 4 {4}
Barrowings (29} -
Minority interests {3) =
an 218
Due an acquisitions (3) {20)
298 198
Satisfied by:
Cash consideration including costs {Note 30} 30 333
Cash, deposits and overdrafts acquired {32) (135)
Cash outflow — current year acquisitions (Note 33) 298 198
36.6 Disposals of businesses:
Group Groug
i i
Net assets disposed of:
Investments in joint ventures and associates - 10
Assets held for sale - 25
- 35
Profit an sale — 57
- 92
Satisfied by:
Cash consideration - 96
Cash, deposit and overdrafts sold - {4

92




Balfour Beaity plc pripieiiiasi 85
37 Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
Country of Courtry af
NICOrpOrazion incorporgtion
. o registration or regEsration
{a) Principal subsidiaries Investments
Building, civil and rail engineering PPP
Balfour Beatty Civil Engineering Ltd Balfour Beatty Capital Ltd
Balfour Beatty Construction Group Inc USA  Balfour Beatty Capital Group Inc USA
Balfour Beatty Construction LLC USA  Balfour Beatty Communities LLC USA
Balfour Beatty Construction Northern Ltd Balfour Beatty Infrastructure [nvestments Ltd*
Balfour Beatty Construction Scottish & Southern Ltd Scotland  Connect Roads Derby Holdings Ltd
Balfour Beatty Group Ltd Connest Roads South Tyneside Holdings Ltd
Balfour Beatty Infrastructure Inc USA  Connect Roads Sunder!and Holdings Ltd
Balfour Beatty Infrastructure Services Ltd Transform Schools {Knowsley} Holdings Ltd
Balfour Beatty Management i Infrastructure
Balfour Beatty Rail AB Sweden  Regionat & City Airports (Btackpoo!) Ltd {Note iii}
Balfour Beatty Rail GmbH Germany  Other
Balfour Beatty Rail inc USA  Balfous Beatty inc usa
Balfour Beatty Rail Infrastructure Services Ltd Balfour Beatty fnvestment Holdings Ltd*
Baifour Beatty Rail Plant Ltd Balfour Beatty Netherlands BV Netherlands
Balfour Beatty Rail Projects Ltd Balfour Beatty Property Ltd®
Balfour Beatty Rail Signal GmbH Germany  BICC Finance BV Nethertands
Balfour Beatty Hail SpA ltaly  BICC Overseas Investments Ltd
Balfour Beatty Rail Technologies Ltd Delphian insurance Company Lid* Isle of Man
Balfour Beatty Rail Track Systems Lid Guinga Investments Ltd o
Balfour Beatty Refurbishment Ltd Country of Qwnemhp
. K incorporation interest S
Balfour Beatty Utility Solutions Ltd o regisiration * g
Batfour Beatty WorkPlace Ltd (b} Principal joint ventures and associates =
Balfour Kitpatrick Ltd Scotland ~ Building, civil and rail engineering @
Balvac Lid Balfour Beatty Abu Dhabi LLC Abu Dhabi 490
Barnhart Ing UsA BKGulfLLC Dubai 49.0
Birse Civils Ltd Dutce Balfour Beatty LLC Dubai 494
Birse Construction Lid Dutco Construction Co LLC Dubai 490
Birse Group plc* Gammon China Lwd Hong Kong 50.0
Charter Builders Ltd USA  Kerjaya Balfour Beatty Cementation Sdn Bhd Malaysia B0
Covion Holdings Lt Monteray Ltd 245
Cowlin Group Ltd PT Balfour Beatry Sakti Indonesia Indonesia 49.0
Cruickshanks Ltd" Scotland  RomecLid 490
Dean & Dybal! Ltd Signalling Solutions Ltd 50.0
Edgar Allen L.1d Scotland  Transdm Ltd 250
Haden Building Services Ltd Investments
Haden Young Lid PPP
Hzery Intemational inc USA  Aberdesn Enwironmental Services {Holdings) Ltd Scotland 450
Heery International Ltd Connect M1-A1 Holdings Ltd™ 50.0
Lounsdale Electric Ltd Scottand  Connect M77/GS0 Heldings Ltd {Note vi) 85.0
Mansell Build Lid Connact Roads Ltd* (Note vi) 85.0
Mansell Construction Services Ltd Consort Healthcare {Birmingham} Holdings Lid 400
Mansell plc Consort Healthcare (Blackburn) Holdings Lid 51.0
National Engineering and Contracting Company USA  Consort Healthcare {Durham) Holdings Ltd* 500
Painter Brothers Ltd Consort Healthcare {Edinburgh Royal
Raynesway Construction Lid Infirmary} Holdings Ltd* {Note vi) Scotland 739
Schreck-Mieves GmbH Germany

Stent Foundations Ltd
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37 Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates continued

Count:y 6t Dwnershin Coursary of Dweersnip
EHOrDON MHEres meorparat:on mterest
of regsration % . o regisTation %
{b} Principal joint ventures and associates continued (c) Principal jointly controlied operations
Investments The Group carries out a number of its larger construction contracts in joint
PPP arrangement with other contractors so 2 to share resources and risk.
Consort Healthcare [Mic Yorkshire) Holdings Ltd 600  The principal construction projects in prograss are given below.
Cansort Healthcare (Salford} Holdings Ltd 500 EastLondon line 50.0
" Consort Healthcare (Tameside) Holdings Ltd 500 M1 Widening Junctions 6A-10 50.0
EDF Energy Pawerlink Ltd (Note vii) 10.0  South-East England Roads 600
Gammon Investments Pie Ltd Singapore 590  South-West England Roads 730
Health Management {UCLH) Holdings Ltd 333 University College London Hospital 50.0
Power Asset Development Company Lid 250 Westminster Transerv 80.0
- Transform Islington Ltd (Note vi) 800 High speed ling Bologna:Firenze haly 26.0
Transform Schools (Bassetiaw) Holdings Ltd 500  High speedline Milano:Bologna haty 268
Transform Schools {Birmingham) Holdings Ltd 500 M74 motorway Scotland 250
Transform Schools {North Lanarkshive] Scotland Transerv Scatland 700
Holdings Lid 500 Gotthard Base Tunnel Switzerland 250
Transform Schools {Rotherham) Holdings Ltd 50.0  Greenbush Railroad Rehabilitation Project USA 50.0
Transform Schools {Stoke} Holdings Ltd 50.0  5/1-15 Highway Projects USA 300
Infrastructure New Campus East at Fort Belvoir UsA 50.0
Regional & City Airports (Exeter} Holdings Ltd SH130 Highway USA 30
(Note vi) 600  wWalter Reed Army Medical Center UsA 40,0
Thames Power Lid™ (Note v} 50.0 -
Military housing Notes. . .
o . 0} Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates whose results did not, in
Carlisle/Picatinny USA (vill) the opinion of the Directors, matarially affect the results or net assets
Fort Bliss/White Sands Missile Range UsA {viif) of the Group are not shown.
Fort Carson usa {viij (il " indicates held directly by Balfour Beatty plc, except Consort
Fort Eustis/Fort Story USA fuviti} Healthcare {Edinburgh Royal Infirmary) Holdings 1td 42.5% held directly
Fort Gordon USA i) DyBalowrBeatyple e G A
) 7 [ifi) The Group has an economic interest of 35% in Regional & City Alrports
Fort Hamilton USA {viii) {Blackpool; Ltd.
Fort Jackson USA (vii) (i} Unless otherwise stated, 100% of the equity capital is owned and
Fort Leonard Waood USA {viii) companies are registered in England and Wales. The principal
Fort Stewart/Huntar Airfield LSA {vifiy _operationls_ of each company are conducted in its country of
) . incorporation.
Walter R.EEd Army Medical Center/Fort Detrick USA (fof’ {v) Tharrnpes Power Ltd owns 51% of the equity capital in Barking
West Point USA {wiii) Power Lid,
Navy Nertheast USA {vii) (] Due to the Connect Roads Ltd, Connect M77/GSO Holdings Ltd,
Navy Southeast USA {uiii) go(r}sol Heatmrtzgre (Edli}niblll(;gh Hcl)-ygl IngawlfHoldlir}gs Ltd, {izgionai
. . - ity Aurports (Exeter) Holdings Lid and Transtorm Islington Et
.élr[jﬁgulcauon and Training Command {AETC) USA Wil shareholder agreements between Balfour Beatty and the ather
Ait Mobility Co J (AMCI Wi USA shareholders requiring unanimity of agreement in respect of significant
t\_' mmang {AMC} West fwii) matters related to the financial and operating policies of those
Lackland Air Forcs Base USA {viii} companigs, the Directors are of the opinion that, as at the balance
Vandenberg Air Force Base USA {wiii} sheet daie, the Group did not control those companies and they have

been accounted for as joint ventures.

{viil The Group exercises significant influence through its participation in
the management of EDF Energy Powerlink and therefore accounts far
its interest as an associate.

tvin} The share of the resulis of the military housing join ventures of Balfour
Beatty Communities is limited to a pre-agreed preferred retum on
funds invested.
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37 Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates continued

{d) PPP concessions

Roads
Summary: Balfour Beatty is a promoter, developer and investor in roads projects under Balfour Beatty's Connect brand, 1o construct new roads and upgrade
and maintain existing roads and to replace and maintain street lighting.

Project descriptions: The roads projects comprise the design, construction, operation, maintenance and associated financing of the following roads: the
M1-A1 link road, A30 Honiton to Exeter, A35 Tolpuddle to Puddletown bypass, AS0 Stoke-Oerby, M77 Fenwick to Malletsheugh and the Glasgow Southern
Orbital. The roads concessions typically run for 30 years and reached financia! close at various dates between March 1396 and May 2003. The street
lighting projects are for the replacement and maintenance and associated financing over a 25-year period of the street lighting and highway signs in
Sunderland, South Tyneside and Derby. All canstruction is new build rather than refurbishment.

Contractual arrangements: The principal contract in the roads concessions is the project agreement with the governmental highway authority setting
out the obligations for the construction, operation and maintenance of the roads including life cycle reptacement by Connect for the hife of the concession
to specified standards. In the case of M1-Al, A30/A35 and AS0 the inflation indexed payment is related to traffic volumes. In the case of M77/GS0, the
inflation indexed payment is partly based on availability and partly the traffic volumes and subject to any performance related deductions. Construction of
the roads was subcontracted to construction joint ventures in which Balfour Beatty had a 50% interest or, in the case of the M77/630, o Balfour Beatty
Civil Engineering Ltd. On the street lighting projects, payment is by a periodic inflation indexed availability payment subject to performance deductions
and the replacement and maintenance obligations have been subcontracted 1o Balfour Beatty Infrastructure Sewvices, There are no provisions ta reprice
the contracts and all assets transfer to the client at the end of the concession.

Equity end subordinzted debt

Imvertedto  Coxnminiod post

Totzl det and Constuction 31 Docember 31 December

Concession company Frolet  equity funding Sharenokling Fingngial elose  Duration yeas completion 2008 ot

Connect M1-A1 Lud M1-A1 30km road £290m 50% March 1996 30 1999 £14m -

Connect ASQ Ltd AS50 57km road £42m 85% May 1996 30 1998 £6m -

Connect A30/A35 Lid A30/A35 102km road £127m 85% July 1996 30 2000 £21m -

Connect M77/GS0 plc M77/GS0 25km road £167m 85% May 2003 32 2005 £15m -
Connect Roads Sreet lighting apparatus

Sundesland Ltd in Sunderland £27m 100%  August 2003 25 2008 £3m -
Connect Roads Street lighting apparatus

South Tyneside Ltd in South Tyneside £28m 100% December 2005 25 2019 - £2m
Connezt Roads Street highting apparatus

Derby Ltd in Derby £36m 100% Agril 2007 25 2012 - £2m

£59m £4m
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37 Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates continued

{d) PPP concessions continued

Hospitals

Summary: Balfour Beatty is a promoter, developer and investor in eight hospital projects, seven of which are under Baliour Beatty's Consost Healthcare
beand, comprising the building or refurbishment of hospital accommodation and associated financing and the pravision of certain non-medical facilities
management services over the remainder of the concession period.

Project descriptions: The projects comgrise University Hospital of North Durham, Edinburgh Royal Infismary, Royal Blackburn Hospital, University College
Lendon Hospital, University Hospitat Birmingham, Pinderfields and Pontefract Hospitals in mid Yorkshire, Hope Hospital Salford and Tameside General
Hospital. Construction is new build rather than refurbishment.

Contractual arrangements: The principal contract is the project agresment between the concession company and the NHS Trust. An inflation indexed

payment is primarily based upan availability of the hespital subject to any performance refated deductions. Construction of the hospitals has been

subconiracted to construction jeint ventures in which Balfour Beatty subsidiaries particigaied 100% (University Hospital of North Durham, Royal 8lackburn
Hospital, University Hospital Birmingham, Pinderfields and Pontefract Hospitals, Hope Hospital Salford and Tameside General Hospitall, 85% {Edinburgh
Royal Infirmary}, and 50% {University Callege London Hospital). In the case of Edinburgh Royal Infirmary, University Hospital of North Ourham, Roya!
Blackburn Haspital, University Hospitat Birmingham, Pinderfields and Pontefract Hospitals, Hope Hospital Salford and Tameside General Hospital, faciiities
management has bean subcontracted to a Balfour Beatty subsidiary, Balfour Beatty WorkPiace Ltd. The payments for the facilities management services

are repriced every five years.

All assets transfer to the client ai the end of the concession, with the excegtion of Edinburgh Royal Infiemary, where the client has the option to
terminate the amangement for the provision of the hespital and services in 2028.

Eguity and subordinated debt
Invested ta  Cormnitied post
Towl debt and Construction 1 December 31 Decamber
Concession compary Project equity funding Shareholding inancal clse Duration years completion 2008 008
Consort Healthcare
{Durham} Ltd Teaching hospital £90m 50% March 1398 30 2001 fIm -
Consort Healthcare
{Edinburgh Royal Teaching hospiial and
Infirmary) Ltd medical school £220m 73.9% August 1998 30 2003 £40m -
Health Management University College London |
{UCLH) Ltd teaching hospital £282m 33.3% July 2000 40 2008 £9m -
Consort Healthcare
{Blackburmn} Ltd District general haspital £116m 50% July 2003 3B 2006 ftm -
Consort Healtheare Teaching hospital and
(Birmingham} Ltd mental health haspizal £553m 40% June 2006 40 onm - £23m
Consort Healthcare Pinderfields and Pontefract
{Mid Yorkshire) Ltd general hespitals £31Im 50% June 2007 35 2010 - £15m
Consort Healthcare Teaching hospital and September
{Salferd) Ltd medical sehool £136m 50% 2007 Kis} 2012 - £10m
Consort Healthcare September
{Tameside} Lid General hospital £77m 50% 2007 kL] 2m - £6m
£62m £54m
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{d) PPP concessions continued

Schools

Summary: Balfour Beatty is a promoter, developer and investor in seven schools projects under Balfour Beatty's Transform Schools brand to design,
build or refurbish schools and to provide certain non-educational services over the concessicn period.

Project descriptions: The projects comprise 98 sehocls in the city of Stoke-on-Trent, 15 schools in Retherham, 21 schoo's in North Lanarkshire and six
new schools, two post-16 leaming centres and two leisure centres in Bassetlaw, Notunghamshire, 12 schoots in Birmingham, seven {saming centres in
Knowsiey and a first phase of three schools in isfington. Construction in Bassetiaw, North Lanarkshire and Knowsley is all new build. On Stoke, construction
comprises £16m of new build and £83m of refurbishment, on Rotherham, £78m of new build and £21m of refurbishment, on Birmingham £69m of new build

and £5m of refurbishment and on Islingtan's first phase £65m of new build and £10m of refurbishment.

Contractual arrangements: The principal contract is the project agreement between the concession company and the local authority that provides for an
inflation indexec zvailability based payment subject ta any performance: related deductions. Construction is subcontracted to a construction jeint venture
of Balfour Beatty subsidiaries and the facilities management services are subcontracted to a Balfour Beatty subsidiary, Balfour Beatty WorkPlacs Ltd.

The paymants for the facilities management services are repricad every five vears. All assets transfer to the client at the end of the concession.

Equity and subordinated debt

Invested to  Committed post

Total dehrt and Construction 31 Decamber 31 December

Concession comgany Prosect aquity funding Sharehelding Friancial chose Durationyears _ completion 2008 2008
Transfarm Schaois Grouped schools project

{Stoke] Ltd in Stoke-on-Trent £84m 50%  October 2000 5 2005 £5m -
Transfarm Scheols Grouped schaols project

(Rotherham) Ltd in Rotherham £113m 50% June 2003 k| 2006 £5m -
Transform Schoals Grouped schaols project

{Narth Lanarkshire} Ltd in North Lanarkshire £140m 50% June 2005 32 2008 £9m -
Transform Schools Grouped schools project

(Bassetlaw] Ltd in Bassetlaw, Notts £127m 50% July 2005 27 2007 fIm -
Transform Schools Grouped schools project

{Birmingham) Ltd in Birmingham £89m 50% March 2006 33 2009 - £4m

Transform Schools
[Knowsley) Lid BSF project in Knowsley £183m 100% December 2007 i 2010 - £15m
Transform Islington Ltd BSF project in Istington £47m 80% July 2008 26 2010 - £4m

£26m £23m
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37 Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates continued

{d) PPP concessions cantinued

Other concessions
Summary: Balfour Beatty is a promoter, developer and investor in @ number of other cancessions.

Project descriptions: Aberdeen Environmental Services Ltd {AES) has a contract to design, build and finance wastewater treatment facilities in North-
East Seotland and aperate them for the remainder of a 30-year period. The construction was principally new build. The Powerlink project comprises two
companies: EDF Energy Pawerlink Ltd (EDFEPL), which operates the London Underground high voltage power system under a 30-year contract and is
responsible for procuning various new power assets, and Power Asset Davelopment Company Ltd {PADCQ), which constructed the new build power assets
and is leasing them to EDFEPL. Gammon Capital {West) Pre Ltd has a contract to design, build and finance the New Institute of Technical Education ("ITE™)
College West in Singapore and provide long-term facifities management services for the remaindar of the 27-vear project. Pevensey Coastal Defence Ltd
[PCDL) has a 25-year contract with the Environment Agency which requires PCDL to maintain sea defences consisting of a shingle bank that extends 9 km
between Eastbourne and Bexhill-on-Sea in East Sussex.

Contractuzl arrangements: For AES the principal agreement is the project agreement with Scottish Water under which AES receives inflation indexed
payments on the bass of flows and loads of influent to the treatment works less any performance related deductions. AES subcontracted construction 10 a
construction joint venture in which Balfour Beatty Civil Engineering Ltet had a 50% interest and subcontractad operations and maintenance to a subsidiary

of one of the other shareholdars. For the Pawerlink project the principal project agreement is the power services contract between EDFEPL and London
Underground Ltd that provides for an inflation indexed availability payment subject to any performance deductions: EDFEPL operates and maintains the
power network using its own staff and is leasing the new power assets from PADCO, which subcontracted construction to a construction joint venture in
which a Baifour Beatty group company, Balfour Kilpatrick Ltd, had a 40% interest. There are na provisions to reprice contracts and all assets transfer to the
client at the end of the concession. For the Singapore project, the principal agreement is the project agreement with the [TE of Singapore that provides for
an inflation indexed availability based payment subject to any performance deductions. Construction is subcontracted to Gammon Pte Ltd, & fully-owned
subsidiary of Gammon China Ltd in which the Group has a 50% inierest. The facitities management services under the FTE agreement are provided by a third
party. PCOL's principal contract is the flood defence services agreement with the Environment Agency that provides for an inflation indexed payment subject
to any performance related deductions.

Equity and subordinated debt
irvested o Committed post
Total gebt and Construction 3 Decamber 31 December
Concession company Project equity funding Shareholding Financal tlose Duration years completion 2008 2008
Aberdeen Environmental Wastawater treatment
Services Ltd in North East Scotland £82m 5% May 2000 30 2002 £4m -
EDF Energy Powerlink
Lid/Power Asset
Development London Underground
Company Ltd power sysiem fiBdm  10%/25% August 1998 30 2006 £4m -
Gammon Capital
(West) Pte Lid Technical education college £100m S0%  August 2008 27 2010 - £8m
Pevensey Coastal
Defence Ltd Flood defencas £3m 25% July 2000 25 n/a £1m -
£3m £8m
Total for all PPP
concessions listed above ) £156m £89m

(e} Non-PPP infrastructure investments )
Summary: Balfour Beatty is an investor in and a promoter and developer of non-PPP infrastructure investments.

Project descriptions: Balfour Beatty is a 50% shareho!der in Thames Power Ltd, which owns 51% of the equity in Barking Power Ltd, the company
which built, eguipped, owns and operates Barking Power Station, a combined cycle 1,000MW capacity gas-fired facility in East London. [n January 2007
Regianal & City Airports {Exeter) Holdings Ltd purchased Exeter and Bevon Airport Ltd, which owns and operates Exeter Imemational Airpost. In May 2008
Regiona! & City Airports {Blackpoot} Holdings Ltd purchased Blackpool Airport Lid, which owns and operaies Bfackpool iniemational Airport.

Equity and subordinated debt
breastad 1o Committad post

Tom! dem and 31 Decomber I December

Compeny Proect  equiyfondng  Shaehodng Faneal chose 2 08
Barking Power Ltd Gas fired power station in East London E6B1m 255% March 1992 £24m -
Exeter and Devon Airport Ltd Exeter International Airport £60m 60%  January 2007 £18m -
Blackpool Airport Ltd Blackpool Intemationa! Airpart £14m 9%5% May 2008 £14m -

£56m -
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37 Principal subsidiaries, jeint ventures and associates continued

(f} Military housing
Summary: Balfour Beatty through its subsidiary Balfour Beatty Communities LLC is a manager, deveioper, and investor in a number of US military
privatisation projects associated with a total of 44 military bases that provide speciality housing to US military personnel and their families.

Project descriptions: The projects comprise 11 military family housing privatisation projects with the United States Department of the Amy {Army),
covering 16 Army bases; four projects with the United States Depariment of the Air Force {Air Forcel, covering nine Air Force bases and two projects with
the United States Department of the Navy {Navy), covering 19 Navy bases. In addition, during the first quarter of 2008, Balfour Beatty Communitias, through
its subsidiaries, completed the closing on the award of its fir$t unaccompaniad personnel housing {UPH} project at Fort Stewari, located in Hinesville,
Geargia. These projects in operation cover 44 domestic bases located in 20 states and Washington, DC and Balfour Beatty Communities expects them to
contain aver 33,000 end-state housing units once full development, construction and renovation have been completed. The first phase of the project, known
as the initiat development period, covers the period of initial construction or renovation of military housing an a base, typically lasting three to eight years.
For each project, Balfour Beatty Communities creates a special purpose entity to serve as the owner of the project, which is typically either a limitad liability
company or general partnership, With respect to Army and Navy projects, the government becomes a membes or partner of the project entity (Project LLC};
and, whereas the Air Force is not & named pariner or member in Batfour Beatty Communities' Project LLCs, it contributes a commitment to provide a
government direct loan to the Project LLC and has similar rights to share in distributions and cash flows of the Project LLC.

Contractual arrangements: In connection with each project, the Praject LLC enters into a ground lease with the government, which provides the Praject
LLC with a leasehold interest in the land and title to the improvements on the land for a pesicd of 50 years. Each of these military housing privatisation
projects includes agreements covering the management and development of existing housing units, as well as the development, construction, rengvation
and management of new units during the term of the project, which, in the case of the Army, potentially could extend for up tc an additional 25 years.
The 50 year duration of each project calls for continuous renovation, rehabilitation, demalition and recenstruction of housing units through various
predetermined project phases. At the end of the ground lease term the Project LLC's leasehold interest terminates and all project improvements on the
land generaily transfer to the US Government.

Preferred returns: The projects will typically receive, to the extent that adequate funds are available, an annual, minimum preferred rate of raturn.

On most existing projects, this annual minimum preferred rate of return ranges from 9% to 12% of Balfour Beatty Communities” initial eguity contribution

to the project. During the initial deve!opment period, the project is precluded from distributing funds to pay the minimum preferred rate of retum. The unpaid
amounts generally will accrue and accumulate, and can be used to fund renovation and construction costs, if necessary. If the accumulated funds are not
neaded 1o fund renovation and construction costs, they are at the end of the initia} development period distributed to pay accrued preferrad returns to
Balfour Bestty Communities and the US Gevernment in accordance with the tarms of the project agresmants.

Split of remaining operating cash flows: Subsequent to the initial development periad, any aperating cash flow remaining after the annual minimum
preferred rate of return is paid is split between Balfour Beatty Communities and the US Gavernment, and the reinvestment account held by the project for
the benefit of the US Government. On most of the existing projects, the total amount that each party is entitled to receive (inclusive of the preferred return)
is generally capped at an annual modified rate of retum, or cash-on-cash return, on its initial equity contribution to the project. Historically, these annual
caps have ranged betwesn approximately 11% to 17% (depending on the particular project). However, in some of the more recent projects, there are
either no annual caps or lower projected annual rates of return. The total capital retum generally will include the annual minimum preferred return
discussed above. The reinvestment account is an account established for the benefit of the military, but funds may be withdrawn for angoing construction,
development and renovation costs during the remaining life of a privatisation project upon approval by the applicable military branch.

Return of equity: Generally, at the end of a project term, any monies remaining in the reinvestment account are distributad te Balfour Beatty Communities
and the Army, Navy or Al Force, as applicable, in a predeternined order of priority. Typically these distributions will have the effect of providing the parties
with sufficient funds to provide a minimum annual return over the life of the project and a complete return of the initial capital contribution. After payment
of the minimum annual return and the return of a party's initial contribution, all remaining funds will typically be distributed to the Army, Navy or Air Farce,
as applicable.
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37 Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates continued

{f) Military housing continued

Eguity and subordinated debt
Tolal:urla_a:l Investsdto Committed post
funding Costuciion 31 Oecember 31 December
Military prvatisation prosett Project m Financial close Drration years corpletion 20 2008
Carlisle/Picatinny Two army bases located £55m Jul-06 50 2011 - £2m
in Carlisle, PA and Dover, NJ
Fort Bliss/White Sands Missile  Two army bases jocated in El Paso, £292m Jul-05 50 201 - £5m
Range TX and Las Cruces, NM
Fort Carson Army base located f£i6im Nov-03 49 2004 £3m -
in Colorado Springs, CO
Fort Carson expansion Army base located £89m Nov-06 46 2009 - -
in Colorado Springs, CO
Fort Eustis/Fort Story Two ammy bases lacated in Newport £1i6m Mar-05 50 M - £3m
News, VA and Virginia Beach, VA
Fort Gordon Army base located in Augusta, GA £77m May-06 50 M2 - £3m
Fort Hamifton Army base located in Brooklyn, NY £37m Jun-D4 50 2008 £2m -
Fort Jackson Amy base located in Calumbia, SC £115m QOct-08 50 03 - £2m
Fort Leonard Wood Army base Iocated in Putaski, MO £138m  Acguired June 47 014 - £3m
2008
Fort Stewart/Hunter Airfield Two army airfield bases located £246m Nov-03 50 om - f6m
in Hinesville, GA and Savannah, GA
Fort Stewart UPH Army airfield base located £22m Jan08 50 mo - £1m
in Hinesville, GA
Walter Read Army Medical Two amy bases located in £6Im Jul-04 50 2008 f4m -
Center/Fort Detrick Washington, DC and Frederick, MD
West Point Army base located £142m Aug-08 50 6 - 2m
in Orange County, NY
Navy Northeast Region Eight navy bases located £342m Nov-04 50 2010 f6m -
in Brunswick, ME; Kittery, ME;
Newport RI; Groton, CT; Saratoga
Springs, NY; Long Island, NY; Colts
Neck, NJ; Lakehurst, NJ
Navy Southeast Region Eleven Navy bases located £471m Nov-07 50 2013 £5m -
in Charleston, SC; Kingsbay, GA; . .
Jacksonviile, FL; Mayport, FL;
Panama City, FL; Whiting Figld, FL,
Pensacola, FL; Key West, FL;
Gutfport, MS; Meridan, MS;
Forl Worth, TX
AETC Group 1 Four Air Force bases located £204m Feb-07 50 012 £5m -
in Alws, OK; Wichita Falts, TX;
Panama City, FL; Phoenix, AZ
AMC West Three Air Force bases located £281m Jut-08 50 2015 £10m -
in Spokane, WA; Fairfield, CA;
Oklahoma City, OK
Lackland Air Force base located £98m Acguired 50 2013 £3m -
in San Antonio, TX December 2008
Vandenberg Air Force base in Lompac, CA £114m Nov-07 50 012 £5m -
£43m £21m
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31 Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates continued
(g} Total commiited equity and debt funding ]
The future cash flow profile of committed equity and debt funding for the concession companies listed above is:

200 a0 2 2072 corwards Total
Concessions £m tm fm £m
Roads - - 2 2 4
Hospitals 5 Y] - - 54
Schools 9 19 - - 3
Qther . 8 - - 8
Military housing 1 H B 7 27
Total 30 67 10 9 116
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Group five-year summary

08 a7 a% 2005 prof&nn;
RS fm 5] £m im fm
Income
Revenue {including share of joint ventures and associates} 9,486 7488 5,506 4,590 3942
Share of revenue of joint ventures and associates {1,225) (1.022) {1,018} (753) {452)
Group revenue 8.261 6,460 4,487 3837 3.490
Profit from continuing aperations before exceptional items and amortisation
of intangible assets 230 78 15 94 76
Net investment income befare exceptional items 19 23 2 23 19
Profit before taxation, exceptional items and amortisation of intangible assets 249 201 136 17 95
Excepiionat items 48 {35) (26} 7 m
Amortisation of intangible assets {27} {8 {1 - -
Profit from continuing ogerations before taxation 210 157 109 124 94
Taxation on profit from continuing operations {74} 12 (34) {35) {28}
{Loss}/profit from discontinued operations after taxation - {18} 16 17 180
Profit for the year atwributable to equity shareholders 196 151 9N 106 246
Capital employed
Equity shareholders’ funds 861 483 387 292 7
Liability component of preference shares 87 87 90 98 103
Net cash (297} {313} (284} {301} {67)

651 257 193 B9 263
Statistics
Adjusted earnings per ordinary share™ 39.9p 35.0p 21.3p 24.p 221p
Basic eamings per ordinary share 42.9p 35.1p NZp 24.9p 58.7p
Diluted eamings per ordinary share a7p 348p 21.8p 24.7p 58.1p
Proposed dividends per ordinary share 12.8p 1150 S1p 8.1p 6.6p
Profit from continuing operstions before exceptional items and amortisation
2s a percentage of revenue (including share of joint ventures and associates) 28% 24% 21% 2.0% 1.9%
Notes:

Figures for the five years endad 31 December 2008 shown above wera prepared under International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS} with pro forma
figures shown for the year ended 31 December 2004 which include the impact of 1AS 32 and |AS 39 as if the Group had adopted them for that year.

The comparative figures for the years 2004 to 2007 hava been re-preserited from previously published accounts for the re-classification of the net
amount of the expectad return on pension assets and pension liability interest costs out of net operating expenses ta investment income.

The Company’s annual report and accounts for 2004 were prepared under UK generally accepted accounting principles (UK GAAP) and as these results
are not comparable with results under IFRS, they are not presented abave.

An explanation of the transition from UK GAAP to IFRS and reconciliations showing the effect of changes in presentation and accounting policies
arising from the adoption of IFAS on the figures prepared under UK GAAP for the year ended 31 December 2004 are set out in Note 37 of the Company's
annual report and accounts 2005,

* Adjusted earnings per ordinary share before exceptional items and amortisation of intangible assets, and including the pre-exceptional results of
discontinued operations, have been disclosed to give a clearer understanding of the Group's underlying trading performante.

Designed and sroduced by Radlay Yetdar. www.ry.com
Printed in England fy CTD

This report is printed on Take 2 Silc which 1s FSC-cenifisd and contatns 75% recycied and de-inked
putp from post consumer waste and 25% ECF {Elemental Chlarine Free} virgin pulp. This report was
printed by an FSC- and 150 14001-cenified printer using vegatable oil and soye-based inks.

£SC - Forest Stewargship Council. This ensures that thete is an audited chain of custody from the
tres in the well-managed forest through to the finished document i the printing factory.

150 14001 ~ A pattem of control for an emvironamental management system against which an
organisation can be credied by a third party.




Shareholder information

Financizl calendar

2008
22 Apiil Ex-dividend date for final 2008 ordinary dividend
24 April Final 2008 ordinary dividend record date
14 May Annual General Meeting
27 May Ex-dividend date for July 2009 preference dividend
29 May July 2009 preference dividend record date
10 June Final date for receipt of DRIP mandate forms {see below)
1 July Preference dividend payable
6 July* Final 2008 ordinary dividend payable
12 August* Annguncement of 2009 half-year resulis
10 December* Interim 2009 ordinary dividend payable

Batfour Beatty plc

DIRECTORS” REPORT
AND ACCOUNTS 2008

Balfour Beatty actively supports Climate Care, a not-for-profit organisation
that funds global sustainable energy and forest restoration projects that
reduce greenhouse gases. Climate Eare's projects also help to imprave
opte’s standard of living and to protect wildlife habitats.
or more information on Climate Care, visit www.climatecare.org_
In support of the Climate Care programme, Balfour Beatty will
donate £1 10 Climate Care for every shareholder that registers to receive
shareholder communications electronically.

Gifling shares to your family or to charity

* Provisional dates.

Registrars

Al administrative enquiries relating to shareholdings and requests to
receive corporate documents by email should be directed o the Company’s
Registrars and clearly state the shareholder’s registered address and,
if available, the full shareholder reference number. Please write to:
Capita Hei’lstrars. The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent

BR3 4T, Telepnone: 0871 664 0300 from the UK {calls cast 10p per minute
Elus netwaork extras) and +44 20 8639 3399 from outside the UK (Monday —

riday 9.00 am - 5.30 pm, UK time). Alternatively, you can email them at:
ssd@capitaregistrars.com

They can help you to;

check your shareholding;

register a change of address or name;

obtain a replacement dividend cheque or tax voucher;
secord the death of a sharcholder;

amalgamate multiple accounts;

resolve any other question about your shareholding.

Dividends and dividend reinvestment plan

To transfer shares to another member of your family as a gift, please ask
the Registrars for a Balfour Beatty gift transfer form. Alternatively, if you
onlty have a small number of shares whose valug makes it uneconamic to
sell them, you may wish to consider denating them to the share donation
charity ShareGift (registered charity no. 1057686}, whose work Balfour
Beatty supports. o

Any shares that you donate to ShareGift will be aggregated, sold when
possible, and the proceeds will be donated to a wide range of other UK
charities. Since ShareGitt was launched, over £13m has been given to more
than 1,500 charities. The relevant share transfer form may be accessed at
wwaw.balfourbaatty-shares.com. For more information on ShareGift, visit
www.ShareBift.org

Share dealing services

If you wish dividends to be paid directly into your bank or butlding sotiety
account, through the Bankers Automated Clearing Systern (BACS),
you should contact the Registrars for a dividend mandate form.

Balfour Beatly has a dividend reinvestment plan {DRIP) which allows
ordinary shareholders to reinvest their cash dividends in the Cempany's
shares ou?ht in the market through a specially arranged share dealing
service. Full details of the DRIP and its charges, together with mandate
forms, can be accessed at www.baifourbeatty-shares.com

Shareholder information on the intemet and electronic communications

Capita (RG Trustees Limited provide a telephone and online share dealing
service for UK and EEA resident shareholders. To use this service,
shareholdars should contact Capita, Tefephone: 0871 664 0454 - lines are
open Monday to Friday 8.00 amto 4.30 pm, UK time {calls cost 10p per
minuig plus network extras). Altematively, log on to www.capitadeal com

The Company has also established an execution-only postal share
dealing service through JPMorgan Cazengve Limited far private investors
who wish to buy or sell Balfour Beatty pic's shares. Further details can
be obtained from The Batfour Beatty Share Dealinz Senvice, JPMorgan
Cazenove Limited, 20 Moorgate, London ECZR 8DA,
Telephone: 020 7155 5155,

An execution-only share dealing service for the purchase and sale
of Balfour Beatty shares is also available from NatWest Stockbrokers.
For details, please contact; NaiWest Stocklvokers, Waterhouse Square,
138142 Hoﬁ)orn, London EC1N 2TH, Telephone: 0308 208 4433.

Capita IRG Trustees Limited, JPMargan Cazenove Limitedand
NatWest Stockbrokers are each authorised and regulated by the Financtal
Services Authority.

Share price

The Balfour Beatty website at www.balfourbeatty.com offers shareholders
and prospective investors a range of information about the Company,
its people and businesses and its policies on corparate governance and
corporate responsibility.

It should be regarded as your first point of reference for information
on any of these matters.

In conjunction with Capita Registrars, you can create a Share Portal
account, through which you are able to access the full range of anline
shareholder services, including the ability to:

*  view your holdings and indicative share price and valuation;

*  view movements on your holdings and your dividend payment history;

*  register a dividend mandate to have your dividends paid directly into
your bank account;

= change your registered address:

*  sign-up io receive e-communications or access the anline praxy
voting facility;

+ download and print shareholder forms.

The Share Portal is easy io vse. Please visit www.ballourbeatty-shares.com.
Alternatively, you can email; shareportal@capita.co.uk

The Baliour Beatty share price can be found at the Balfour Beatty website
at www.balfourbeatty.com and in the appropriate sections of national
newspapers under the classification “Construction and Buitding Materials”.
It is also available on a number of personal finance websites on the Internet
and from television text services.

The London Stock Exchange Daily Official List (SEDOL) codes are:
Ordinary shares: 0096162.
Preference shares; (097820.

The London Stock Exchange “ticker” codes are:
QOrdinary shares: BBY.
Preference shares: BBYB.

Capital gains tax

For capital gains tax purposes the market value an 31 March 1982 of
Baltour Beatty plg's ordinary shares of S0p each was 307.3p per share.
This has baen adjusted for the 1-for-5 rights issue in June 1992 and the
2-for-11 rights issug in September 1996.

Enquiries

Enquiries relating to Balfour Beatty's results, business and financial position
should be made in waiting to the Corporate Communications Department at
the Company’s Registered Qffice address or by email to
info@balfourbeatty.com

Batfour Beatty plc
Regisiered Office; 130 Wilton Road, London SW1V 1L0
Registered in England Number 335826

95




Print or onling?

it's quick and easy online...
it's more environmentally friendly online...
it's more cost-effective online.
Why not try online?

Why not view our online Annual review 2008 at:
www.halfourbeatty.com/bby/investors/reports/
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